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Message to our shareholders

I. Message to our shareholders
We have witnessed tremendous upheaval in the global economy and financial markets in the past
year. The implosion of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, and the bankruptcy of Lehman Brothers, set off
a chain-reaction financial crisis that has since expanded into a global economic crisis, triggering a
contraction of unforeseen speed and scope. Taiwan's economy has been gravely affected, and many
complex variables in the economy, and especially the financial sector, make it difficult to be sure exactly
what we can expect going forward. To weather the storm, TFH has adopted a pragmatic growth strategy,
concentrating on running the business with professionalism and expanding on our core competencies.
We have sought to run our business with professionalism, and expand on our core competencies. In
2008, this strategy resulted in net profit after tax of NT$7.1 billion, fifth highest among Taiwan's 15
financial holding companies. Among our subsidiaries, the Bank of Taiwan actively accommodated
government policy by providing concessionary loans to individuals and businesses, and the FSC ranked
the Bank of Taiwan No. 1 among domestic banks for loans to small and medium enterprises for the
period of July 2007 to June 2008. BankTaiwan Life Insurance (BTLI) ranked 4th, 5th, and 3rd for first-year
premiums, continued premiums, and gross premiums respectively in 2008, thanks in no small part to its
cross-selling capabilities as a TFH subsidiary, while BankTaiwan Securities (BTS) received NT$77.8 billion

Chairperson
Susan S. Chang

in trading orders in 2008, many of which came in thanks to referrals from the group's banking channel.
TFH is thus beginning to capitalize on group synergies and to achieve its growth potential. In this report
we will set out the 2008 operating results of TFH and each of its subsidiaries, their 2009 business plans,
and their development strategies for the future.

Taiwan Financial Holdings (TFH) had a vigorous first year in operation after the company was
formally established at the beginning of 2008. After the Bank of Taiwan became our principal subsidiary

1. 2008 operating results

in a share swap deal, it spun off its insurance and securities operations in capital reduction deals that

(1) Corporate restructuring

resulted in two more subsidiaries for TFH, which now ranks as Taiwan's largest state-run financial

TFH was established by the Bank of Taiwan in a share swap on 1st January 2008 in accordance

holding company with assets of NT$3.8 trillion. The birth of TFH represents a milestone in the forward

with the provisions of the Financial Holding Company Act, the Company Act, and other applicable

march of Taiwan's financial industry. The company has been launched at a crucial time, with the world

laws and regulations. With authorized capital of NT$90 billion, the company is Taiwan's first wholly

economy in the midst of great ﬂux. Our goal is to be Taiwan's ﬂagship financial holding company, and

state owned financial holding company. Then on the following day (2nd January), the Bank of Taiwan

to develop the superior quality and stability that will enable us to act as a guiding force in Taiwan's

spun off its securities and insurance operations to form two separate TFH subsidiaries - BTS and

financial industry in support of the government's financial policy, so as to stabilize our financial markets,

BTLI - and became Taiwan's 15th financial holding company, with three wholly owned subsidiaries in

help our industries upgrade, and strengthen the national economy. Anchored by our banking subsidiary,

banking, securities, and life insurance.

and relying on our holding company platform, we intend to take advantage of our integrated resources

The Bank of Taiwan, TFH's principal subsidiary, was established on 20th May 1946 with capital

and cross-selling capabilities to bolster our strength and competitiveness, so that TFH can shoulder the

contributed by the National Treasury Agency. On 1st July 2003 it was reorganized as a company

mission that befalls us - and the advantages that we enjoy - as a large financial holding company. Our

limited by shares, and on 16th September 2004 became a public company. Thereafter, in order to

task is to lead Taiwan's financial industry forward, and take it onto the international financial stage.

coordinate with the government's financial reform policies, the bank on 1st July 2007 merged with
Central Trust of China. As of the end of March 2009, the bank held 12.66% of all deposits in Taiwan

6
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(d) We set up a universal banking arrangement covering our banking, life insurance, and securities
businesses to improve cross-selling results, product integration, and customer services, so as
to increase the penetration rate of group products.
(e) We integrated group resources, introduced new IT systems and financial products, and
adopted a platform for shared access to financial laws and regulations as well as research.
This will lower our operating costs and enable us to reap the benefits of group synergy.
(ii) Bank of Taiwan
The Bank of Taiwan held deposits of NT$2,687,630 million, had outstanding loans of
NT$1,970,042 million, and its foreign exchange business amounted to US$261,314 million. The
non-performing loan (NPL) ratio stood at 1.06%, the NPL coverage ratio was 54.84%, and the
BIS ratio was 11.63%.
(iii) BankTaiwan Life Insurance
At BTLI, first-year premium income came to NT$37,032 million, continued premium income was
NT$12,535 million, gross premium income was NT$49,567 million, the NPL ratio was 0.54%, the
NPL coverage ratio was 245.35%, and the RBC ratio was 147.66%.

President
Tse-Cheng Lo

(iv) BankTaiwan Securities
At BTS, securities brokerage volume came to NT$414,021 million, average outstanding margin
positions stood at NT$1,356 million, and the BIS ratio was 1,503%.

(3) Budget
1.Budgeted and actual figures for 2008 (TFH):

and accounted for 10.63% of loans, tops among domestic commercial banks on both counts, and

Unit: NT$1,000

with assets of US$103.2 billion stood at No. 29 in Asia and No. 133 in the world on a list of the
world's largest 1,000 banks published in the July 2008 issue of The Banker magazine.

(2) Business plan and strategy
(i) TFH
2008 was our first year in business, and featured the following successes:
(a) We crafted a carefully conceived business strategy, and adopted a roadmap and a basic

Item

Budgeted

Budget achievement rate (%)

Net revenues

60,911,116

68,255,393

89.24

Expenses and losses

53,914,330

59,255,393

90.99

EBT from continuing operations

6,996,786

9,000,000

77.74

Net earnings

7,123,945

8,412,553

84.68

0.79

0.93

84.95

Earnings per share (NT$)

Note: Profitability fell short of the forecast due to the financial crisis, which forced TFH subsidiaries to write down asset values by NT$4.718 billion.

2. Budgeted and actual figures for 2008 (TFH subsidiaries)

strategy. These constitute a program of action that will provide the basis for efforts by TFH to

Unit: NT$1,000

develop into a top-ﬂight financial holding company.
(b) To foster a strong cadre of financial holding company managerial talent, we sent observation

Actual

Subsidiary
Bank of Taiwan

Net earnings

Budgeted net earnings

Budget achievement rate (%)

8,152,201

7,947,664

102.57

teams overseas to world-leading financial holding companies to study advanced management

BTS

-63,265

70,790

－

techniques - including channel marketing, risk management systems, and IT systems.

BTLI

-940,348

477,050

－

(c) We established a target management system for subsidiaries, and monitored its implementation
on a monthly basis. Through systematic oversight and management, the TFH group in its very
first year was able to exceed targets for deposits, loans, foreign exchange business, and life
insurance business. The group ranked the 5th in the industry for profitability.

8
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(4) Revenues/expenditures and profitability
Unit: NT$1,000

Company

EBT from
continuing
operations

Net earnings
after tax

Earnings per
share after tax

Net earnings
rate (%)

ROA (%)

ROE (%)

TFH and subsidiaries,
consolidated

6,996,786

7,123,945

0.79

11.70

0.19

3.15

TFH only

7,115,731

7,123,945

0.79

99.60

3.09

3.15

Bank of Taiwan

8,502,509

8,152,201

1.81

29.13

0.23

3.45

BTLI

-1,406,401

-940,348

-1.88

-1.40

-0.16

-47.05

BTS

-66,465

-63,265

-0.21

-16.78

-1.29

-2.07

Note 1: The losses incurred by TFH's life insurance subsidiary were due primarily to the financial crisis, which forced asset writedowns of NT$1.720
billion
2: The losses incurred by TFH's securities subsidiary were due primarily to the financial crisis, which caused investment gains to fall short of
what was expected.

(5) Research and development
TFH and its subsidiaries engaged in the following R&D activities in 2008:
(i) TFH
(a) We sent senior management to take part in overseas seminars and learn about financial
holding company business strategies and resource integration.

(b) We developed and set up a platform for integration of groupwide financial information, new
products, and laws and regulations, to be accessed via company intranet. The platform
enables information sharing, and saves on costs.
(c) To spur increased exchange of knowledge, we integrated groupwide research resources, held
a major international financial forum, made plans to invite Nobel laureate Dr. Paul Krugman
to speak in Taiwan, and arranged opportunities for the business, government, and academic
communities to hear Dr. Krugman's ideas.
(ii)Bank of Taiwan
(a) The bank continued working to improve its capacity for analysis of domestic and international
economic, financial, and business conditions. It also issued business and financial publications,
as well as various periodical and non-periodical reports, to serve as reference for the bank's
other units in their efforts to grow their business and provide guidance to customers.
(b) The bank helped TFH to develop group businesses, and integrate information and channels, to
tap into group synergies.
(iii) BTLI
(a) BTLI developed new insurance products to meet consumer and trade-marketing needs.

10
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(b) Took part in a research project contest organized by the Ministry of Finance, building up
valuable capabilities in the process.

(3) Credit ratings
TFH was established in January 2008, and plans to have itself rated by credit ratings agencies in

(c) Adopted key technologies, streamlined operating procedures, improved service quality and

2009. The most recent credit ratings for the Bank of Taiwan are shown in the following table:

competitiveness.
(iv) BTS

Ratings agency

(a) Hired and trained securities personnel, and sent employees to take part in training programs.
(b) Established a managerial accounting system to support planning, control, performance

Last rating

Assigned rating
Long-term credit

Short-term credit

Outlook

Standard & Poor's

Oct. 2008

A+

A-1

Stable

Moody's Investors Service

Jan. 2009

Aa3

P-1

Stable

evaluations, and decision making.
Looking to the year ahead, Taiwan's domestic economy has been weaker than expected due to

2. 2009 business plan

the financial tsunami, so the government has introduced a series of economic stimulus measures since

(1) Basic business strategy

the latter half of 2008, including: expanded infrastructure development projects; issuance of spending

(i)

Coordinate with government policy by expanding the scope of our business and catalyzing

vouchers; job creation measures; financial assistance for low-income groups; tax cuts; and the opening

financial industry consolidation. Actively plan overseas M&A strategy and benefit from economy

of Taiwan to tourists from mainland China. These measures are expected to be helpful. In addition,

of scale.

the government is working to improve cross-strait relations and provide enticements to attract back to

(ii) Look to the world's leading financial holding companies as our guideposts as we work to

Taiwan capital that has been parked overseas, and has adopted a "three supports" policy (government

become the principle force for both stability and reform in Taiwan's financial markets. Live up to

supports banks, banks support enterprises, enterprises support employees) and introduced a blanket

the core values and social responsibilities that we rightly take up as the nation's ﬂagship financial

guarantee for all bank deposits to bolster confidence in the financial system. In addition, it appears likely

holding company.

that three cross-strait MOUs on financial supervisory cooperation will be signed in the near future, which

(iii) Accelerate the process of making the company more international. Establish strategic tie-ups
with the world's leading financial holding companies. Introduce modern managerial techniques.
(iv) Use the financial holding company organizational setup to exercise comprehensive management
over integrated groupwide resources. Carry out risk management. Develop bundled sales
involving our best products. Move toward a multicore business model. Lay the groundwork for a
sustainable business.

will be an event of momentous significance for financial institutions and enterprises in other sectors, as
well.
We find ourselves in an age of great challenges and opportunities. We are presented with a
chance to cast off old ways of thinking, and achieve decisive change. TFH intends to implement
flexible marketing strategies, solidify the foundations of our business, tap into group synergies, post
strong business results, and become the nation's ﬂagship financial holding company, characterized by

(v) Take full advantage of our competitive advantages as a corporate group. Work to improve capital
efficiency. Reduce operating costs and create synergies through cross-selling. Build up unique
competitive advantages as a corporate group.

both high performance and stability. The government has bestowed upon us a great mission, and the
business world looks to us with great anticipation. On both counts, we will do everything it takes and
more to ensure that the hopes invested in our company's establishment will not go unanswered.

(2) Business targets
Unit: NT$1,000

Subsidiary
Banking
Life insurance
Securities

Line of business

Target for 2009

Lending

1,800,000,000

Deposit taking

2,420,700,000

Foreign exchange

US$87,000,000

Premium income

33,460,071

Brokerage

450,000,000

Underwriting
Dealing

12

President

Chairperson

150,000
1,850,000
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II. Company profile
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1. Date of establishment: 1st January 2008

1. Organization System

2. Company history

(1) Chart of Relations Within the TFH Group

At a Cabinet meeting on 15th August 2007, Taiwan's premier issued instructions to begin
preparations for establishment of Taiwan Financial Holdings (TFH), and on 1st January 2008 TFH was
established (in accordance with the provisions of the Financial Holding Company Act, the Company

Ministry of Finance

Act, and other applicable laws and regulations) as Taiwan's first state-run financial holding company

(Sole shareholder)

by the Bank of Taiwan in a share swap. On the following day (2nd January), the Bank of Taiwan spun
off its securities and life insurance businesses to create group subsidiaries BankTaiwan Securities
and BankTaiwan Life Insurance, thus bringing into existence Taiwan's first wholly government-owned
financial holding company, with three wholly owned subsidiaries.
The "Act Governing the Taiwan Financial Holdings Company" (promulgated by the president on

Taiwan Financial Holdings

26th November 2008, and entered into force retroactively from 1st January 2008) provided a complete

Ownership percentage: 100%

set of statutory procedures for the company's establishment, and empowered TFH to take over other

No. of shares owned: 9 billion

financial institutions through M&A deals in accordance with the provisions of the "Financial Holding

Capital: NT$90 billion

Company Act."

Bank of Taiwan

14

BankTaiwan Life Insurance

BankTaiwan Securities

Ownership percentage: 100%

Ownership percentage: 100%

Ownership percentage: 100%

No. of shares owned: 4.5 billion

No. of shares owned: 500 million

No. of shares owned: 300 million

Capital: NT$45 billion

Capital: NT$5 billion

Capital: NT$3 billion
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(2) Organization Chart

2. TFH directors, supervisors, and key executive officers
(1) Directors and supervisors
Strategic Development Committee
Position

Name

Risk Management Committee

Shareholding
Shareholding
Shareholding Present by Spouse
in the Name
at Time of Shareholding
and
of Other
Date of
Term of Date of First
Appointment
Dependent
People
Employment Employment Appointment
Children

20th June 2009

Positions Currently Held
in the TWFHC and other Companies

Education and Career

No. Ratio No. Ratio No. Ratio No. Ratio

Board of Directors /
Chairperson of the
Board

General Auditor

President

Channel Integration
Section
Treasury Section

Board of
Supervisors /
Supervisors

Finance
Department
Accounting
Section

Jul.14,
2008

Consumer Banking &
Wealth Management
Section

Risk
Management
Department

Information
Systems
Section

Administration
Department

General Affairs
Section

Corporate Finance
Section

Investor
Relations
Section

Logistical & Management
Support Functions

Name

Relation
ship

M.A. in Economics, National Taiwan University
Vice- Chairperson ,Financial Supervisory Commission,
Executive Yuan
Administrative Deputy-Minister, Ministry of Finance
Director General, National Treasury Agency, Ministry of
Finance
Deputy Director General, Bureau of Monetary Affairs,
Ministry of Finance
Deputy Director, Department of Monetary Affairs, Ministry
of Finance
Deputy Director, Economic Research Department,
Council for Economic Planning and Development

Chairperson,Taiwan Financial Holding Co., Ltd
Chairperson,Bank of Taiwan
Director-General, the Bankers Association of the
Republic of China
Director, Joint Credit Information Center
Director,Taiwan External Trade Development Council
(TAITRA)
Director ,Taiwan Academy of Banking and Finance
(TABF)

-

-

-

Tse-Cheng Aug.31,2007 Aug.30,2010 Aug.31,2007
Lo

M.A. in Economics, Chinese Culture University
Acting Chairman, Taiwan Business Bank
President, Taiwan Business Bank
Supervisor,Taiwan Business Bank
Director, Taiwan Life Insurance Co., Ltd
Executive Vice President, Bank of Taiwan

President,Taiwan Financial Holding Co., Ltd
President and Managing Director,Bank of Taiwan
Supervisor,Bankers Association of the R.O.C.
Managing Director,Cathay United Bank
Director,Taiwan Small Business Integrated Assistance
Center
Director,Taiwan Stock Exchange

-

-

-

Director

Jun-Ji Shih Aug.31,2007 Aug.30,2010 Aug.31,2007

Research Fellow,Research Center for Humanities and
Ph.D.in Economics,National Taiwan University
Chairman,Financial Supervisory Commission,Executive Social Sciences,Academia Sinica
Managing Director,Bank of Taiwan
Yuan
Commissioner,Fair Trade Commission,Executive Yuan

-

-

-

Director

Frank
Dec.21,2007 Aug.30,2010 Dec.21,2007
Kuen-Bao
Ling

Ph. D. in Insurance,Georgia State University,U.S.A
Chairman,Taiwan Residential Earthquake Insurance Fund
Chairman, Taiwan Life Insurance Co.,Ltd
Adjunct Professor,Dept. of Finance,National Taiwan
University
Visiting Professor,Dept. of Risk Management &
Insurance,
Feng Chia University
Senior Executive Officer,Financial Supervisory
Commission,Executive Yuan
Director & President,Taiwan Life Insurance Co.,Ltd

Chairman,Weshare Education & Charity Fund
Independent Director ,Universal Microwave Technology,
Inc. (UMT)
Director,SHACOM.COM Inc, Inc.

-

-

-

Director

Kuo-Ching
Chang

Dept. of Shipping and
Transportation Management,
National Taiwan Ocean University
Executive Vice President, Bank of Taiwan

Chairman, Bank Taiwan Life Insurance Co.,Ltd

-

-

-

Director

Fu-Chun
Chu

M.A. in Economics, National Taiwan University
President、Chairman,Taiwan Depository & Clearing
Corporation
President,Taiwan Stock Exchange

Chairman,Bank Taiwan Securities Co.,Ltd
Director, Securities & Futures Institute

-

-

-

Director

Fu-Chi Tsai

Dept. of Business Administration,Feng Chia College
Executive Vice President,Bank of Taiwan

Executive Vice President,Bank of Taiwan
Supervisor,Taiwan Asset Management Corporation
(TAMCO)
Director, Taipei Forex Inc.

-

-

-

Administration
Section

Planning
Department

100% of Shareholding:Ministry of Finance

Position

Director

Planning
Section

16

Aug.30,
2010

Investments
Section

Cross-selling Committee

Customer-driven
Marketing

Jul.14,
2008

Vice-president

Business Operations
Committee

Ministry of
Finance /
Shareholders
Meeting

Chairperson Susan
S.Chang

Auditing Department

Being the Spouse or Relative within
2 Tiers of Other Managers,
Directors, or Supervisors

Feb.20,
2009

Aug.30,2010

Feb.20,
2009

Aug.20,2008 Aug.30,2010 Aug.20,2008

Dec.20,
2008

Aug.30,2010 Aug.31,2007
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Position

Name

Shareholding
Shareholding
Shareholding Present by Spouse
in the Name
at Time of Shareholding
and
of Other
Date of
Term of Date of First
Appointment
Dependent
People
Employment Employment Appointment
Children

Positions Currently Held
in the TWFHC and other Companies

Education and Career

No. Ratio No. Ratio No. Ratio No. Ratio
Director

President and Director,Bank Taiwan Securities Co.,Ltd

-

-

-

Independent Chung-Hua Jan.01,2008 Aug.30,2010 Jan.01,2008
Director Shen

Ph. D. in Economics, Washington University,U.S.A
Chairperson、Professor,Dept. of Money & Banking,
National Chengchi University
Associate Professor,Dept. of Banking,National Chengchi
University
Associate Professor、Chairperson,Economics Dept.,
National Central University

Professor,Dept. Finance,National Taiwan University
Director, Securities & Futures Institute
Director,Small and Medium Enterprise Credit Guarantee
Fund of Taiwan

-

-

-

Independent Yi-Hsiung
Director Hsu

M.A. in Economics,National Taiwan University
Deputy Governor, Central Bank of the Republic of
China(Taiwan).
Director-General,Dept. of Financial Inspection,Central
Bank of the Republic of China(Taiwan).

-

-

-

Supervisor A-Ting
Chou

Supervisor Jui-Fang
Ho

100% of Shareholding:Ministry of Finance

-

M.A. in Accounting,Mississippi State University,U.S.A
Excutive Vice President,EnTie Commercial Bank

Aug.30,2010

Dec.20,
2008

-

-

Dec.20,
2008

Aug.30,2010

Name

President and Director,Bank Taiwan Life Insurance
Co.,Ltd
Consultants,The Life Insurance Association of the
Republic of China

ChangMing
Chen

Dec.20,
2008

Position

Relation
ship

M.A.in Accounting,National Chengchi University
Comptroller,Ministry of Finance
Vice Comptroller、Comptroller,Ministry of Economic
Affairs

Director

Fu-Teng
Hsieh

Being the Spouse or Relative within
2 Tiers of Other Managers,
Directors, or Supervisors

Dec.20,
2008

Mar.12,2008 Aug.30,2010 Mar.12,2008

Aug.31,2007 Aug.30,2010 Aug.31,2007

Mar.13,2009 Aug.30,2010 Mar.13,2009

Bachelor of Business Administration,National Taiwan
University
General Director,Dept. of Foreign Exchange,Central Bank
of the Republic of China(Taiwan)
Chief Representative of London Representative
Office,Central Bank of the Republic of China(Taiwan)

(ii) Professional qualifications and independence of directors and supervisors
20th June 2009
Conditions

Department of Economics , Fu Jen Catholic University Director-general, Financial Data Center, Ministry of
Finance
Executive Secretary,Taxationand Tariff
Supervisor,Bank of Taiwan
Committee,Ministry of Finance
Deputy Director-general,Training Institute, Ministry of
Finance
Deputy Director-general,National Tax Administration of
Southern Taiwan Province, Ministry of Finance

-

-

-

-

-

-

Is licensed
as a judge,
prosecutor,
lawyer, or CPA,
or in another
specialty
related to the
company's
business.

1

Susan S. Chang

v

v

Tse-Cheng Lo

v

Jun-Ji Shih

v

Frank Kuen-Bao, Ling

v

Kuo-Ching Chang

v

Fu-Chun Chu

v
v

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

Fu-Teng Hsieh

v

Chang-Ming Chen

v

v
v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

Chung-Hua Shen

(i) Main shareholders of institutional shareholders

v

Fu-Chi Tsai

2

v

10

No. of public
companies
where he/she
concurrently
serves as
independent
director

v

Yi-Hsiung Hsu

Note: For directors and supervisors acting as an institutional shareholder representative, indicate the name of the institutional shareholder and fill out
the following form.

Qualifies as independent (see note)

Has worked
in business,
law, finance,
accounting, or
another line of
work related to
the company's
business.

Has worked
at the rank
of instructor
or higher
at a public
or private
university or
jr. college,
teaching
business,
law, finance,
accounting,
or another
subject
related to the
company's
business.

Name

Deputy Governor,Central Bank of the Republic of
China(Taiwan)
Supervisor,Bank of Taiwan
Director,Taipei Foreign Exchange Market Development
Foundation

Has 5 yrs work experience plus the following
professional qualification

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v
1

v

A-Ting Chou

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

Jui-Fang Ho

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

Notes: For each of the below-listed qualifications that is satisfied by a given director or supervisor during the two years prior to his/her appointment,
and during the appointment, please indicate by placing a check mark (v) in the corresponding box.
1. Is not an employee of the company or any of its related enterprises.
2. Is not a director, supervisor of the company or any of its related enterprises (note, however, that this does not apply in cases where the
person is an independent director of the company, its parent company, or any subsidiary in which the company holds, directly or indirectly,

20th June 2009

Name of institutional shareholder

Main shareholders of institutional shareholders

Ministry of Finance

Government agencies (stake: 100%)

more than 50 percent of the voting shares.)
3. Is not a natural-person shareholder who holds shares, together with those held by the person's spouse, minor children, or held by the
person under others' names, in an aggregate amount of one percent or more of the total number of issued shares of the company or
ranking in the top 10 in holdings.
4. Is not a spouse, relative within the second degree of kinship, or lineal relative within the fifth degree of kinship, of any of the persons in the
preceding three subparagraphs.
5. Is not a director, supervisor, or employee of a corporate shareholder that directly holds five percent or more of the total number of issued
shares of the company or that holds shares ranking in the top five in holdings.
6.

Is not a director, supervisor, officer, or shareholder holding 5 percent or more of the shares of a specified company or institution that has
financial or business interactions with the company.

7.

Is not a professional individual who, or an owner, partner, director, supervisor, or officer of a sole proprietorship, partnership, company, or
institution that, provides commercial, legal, financial, accounting services or consultation to the company or to any affiliate of the company,
or a spouse thereof.

8. Is not the spouse of, or related within the second degree of kinship to, another director.
9. Does not meet the descriptions set out in any of the subparagraphs under Article 30 of the Company Act.
10. Has not been elected as a government agency or juristic person, or as a representative thereof, as provided for in Article 27 of the
Company Act.
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(2) President, vice-presidents, deputy vice-presidents, and department heads

3. Implementation of corporate governance

20th June, 2009

Position

Name

Date of
Employment

Shares Held
Shares Held
by Spouse and
Shares Held
in Name of
Dependent
Others
Children
No.

President

Executive Vice
President

Su-Tien Chen

July.14,2008

Apr.16,2009

Interal Auditing Chung-Hsiung
Dept.,Board of Chen
Directors,General
Auditor

Jan.01,2008

Senior Vice Presi- Lih-sheue Tsay
dent and Acting
Chief Secretary

May.15,2009

Senior Vice
President

Senior Vice
President

Senior Vice
President

20

Tse-Cheng Lo

Man-yi Chu

Jaw-Jane Guu

Shiou-Jsu Yeh

May.15,2009

Dec.20,2008

July.24,2008

Ratio

No.

Ratio

No.

Education and Career

Positions Held with Other
Companies

Ratio

100% of shareholding:Ministry of Finance

M.A. in Economics, Chinese Culture
University
Acting Chairman, Taiwan Business Bank
President, Taiwan Business Bank
Supervisor,Taiwan Business Bank
Director, Taiwan Life Insurance Co., Ltd
Executive Vice President, Bank of Taiwan

M.A.in Public Finance,
National Chengchi University
SVP and General Manager ,Department of
International Banking, Bank of Taiwan
SVP and General Manager,Department of
Treasury, Bank of Taiwan
SVP and General Manager ,Offshore
Banking Branch, Bank of Taiwan

The Spouse or Relative within 2
Tiers in the Bank as a Manager
Position

Name

Relationship

President,Taiwan Financial Holding
Co., Ltd
President and Managing
Director,Bank of Taiwan
Supervisor,Bankers Association of
the R.O.C.
Managing Director,Cathay United
Bank
Director,Taiwan Small Business
Integrated Assistance Center
Director,Taiwan Stock Exchange

-

-

-

SVP and General Manager,
Department of International
Banking, Bank of Taiwan
Director‚ United Taiwan Bank S.A.

-

Dept. of Accounting and Statistics,National Cheng Kung University
General Auditor,Interal Auditing
Dept.,Board of Directors,Central Trust of
China

The Board of Directors met 21 times (denoted as "A" in the following table) in 2008, with attendance
as shown:
Job title

Name

Meetings
attended (B)

Meetings
attended via
proxy

Actual
attendance rate
(B/A) (see note)

Chairperson

Susan S. Chang

11

0

100.00

Appointed 14th July 2008

-

-

-

-

-

Jer-Shyong Tsai

10

0

100.00

Director

Fan-Chih Wu

17

1

100.00

Appointed 31st Aug. 2007
Appointment ended 12th Nov. 2008

Director

Tse-Cheng Lo

20

1

100.00

Appointed 31st Aug. 2007

Director

Sheng-Yann
Lee

19

1

100.00

Appointed 31st Aug. 2007
Appointment ended 20th Dec. 2008

Director

Jun-Ji Shih

16

5

100.00

Appointed 31st Aug. 2007

Director

Hui-Ling Lin

13

3

100.00

Appointed 31st Aug. 2007
Appointment ended 30th Sep. 2008

Director

Hao-Min
Chu

15

5

100.00

Appointed 31st Aug. 2007
Appointment ended 20th Dec. 2008

Director

Jen-Shou
Hsu

13

1

100.00

Appointed 21st Dec. 2007
Appointment ended 20th Aug. 2008

Director

Wei-Hao
Ting

21

0

100.00

Appointed 1st Jan. 2008
Appointment ended 20th Feb. 2009

Director

Chin-Tien
Liu

6

1

100.00

Appointed 1st Jan .2008
Appointment ended 26th May 2008

19

2

100.00

Appointed 21st Dec. 2007

16

3

90.48

Appointed 1st Jan. 2008

Director

Frank Kuen-Bao
Ling
Chung-Hua
Shen
Yi-Hsiung Hsu

14

0

77.78

Appointed 12th Mar. 2008

Director

Fu-Chun Chu

7

0

100.00

Appointed 20th Aug. 2008

Director

Yao-Shing
Wang

2

0

100.00

Appointed 12th Nov. 2008
Appointment ended 20th Dec. 2008

Director

Fu-Chi Tsai

1

0

100.00

First appointed on 31st Aug. 2007
Appointment ended 1st Jan. 2008
Reappointed 20th Dec. 2008

Director

Fu-Teng Hsieh
Chang-Ming
Chen

1

0

100.00

Appointed 20th Dec. 2008

1

0

100.00

Appointed 20th Dec. 2008

Director

M.A. in Business Administration, National
Taiwan University
Senior Vice President & Vice President
and Deputy General Manager , Information
Management Office,Bank of Taiwan
General Manager ,Department of
Information Management, Central Trust of
China

-

General Manager,Dept. of Risk
Management,Bank of Taiwan
Supervisor‚ Small Business
Integrated Assistance Center
Commissioner,Risk Management
Committee, Bankers Association of
the R.O.C.

Bachelor of Business Administration,
Senior Vice President,Dept. of
National Taiwan University General
Treasury,Bank of Taiwan
Manager,Dept. of Treasury,Bank of Taiwan
General Manager,New York Agency,Bank
of Taiwan

-

-

-

-

-

Director

Director

-

-

-

Remarks

Appointed 31st Aug. 2007
Appointment ended 14th July 2008

Chairperson

M.A. in Adminitration,Ming Chuan Universiry
Chief Secretary,Taiwan Financial Holding
Co.,Ltd.
Deputy Chief Secretary,Bank of Taiwan
General Manager,Hsighih Branch, Land
Bank of Taiwan

Dept. of Economics,Chinese Culture
University
General Manager,Dept. of Risk
Management,Bank of Taiwan

(1) The state of operations of the Board of Directors

Note: Each person's attendance rate (%) is calculated by dividing the number of board meetings during his/her tenure by the number of meetings
attended during that same period.
Other notes:
1. Has any of the matters set out under Article 14-3 of the Securities and Exchange Act has arisen? Or has an independent director given a dissenting
opinion or qualified opinion regarding a Board of Directors resolution, with said opinion noted in records or a written statement? If yes, note the
date of the board meeting, the meeting number, the content of the agenda item, and how the opinions of all independent directors and independent
supervisors were handled:
No such matters came up.
2. Have any directors have exercised recusal due to possible conﬂict of interest. If so, indicate the name of the director(s), the content of the agenda
item, the reason why recusal was necessary, and whether the director took part in the vote:
No such matters came up.
3. Was any action taken in the current year or the most recent year to upgrade the function of the Board of Directors (e.g. establishment of an audit
committee; steps taken to increase information transparency; etc), or to evaluate the Board's execution of its duties?
No such matters came up.
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(2) Participation by supervisors in Board of Directors meetings

(iii) In response to the Ministry of Finance Action Plan

The Board of Directors met 21 times (denoted as "A" in the following table) in 2008, with attendance

for Energy Savings and Carbon Reduction, TFH

as shown:

encouraged group employees to sign an online

Job title

Name

Meetings attended
(B)

Supervisor

Chin-Chen Cheng

18

85.71

Supervisor

A-Ting Chou

2

9.52

Supervisor

Chan-Jane Lin

15

93.75

Appointed 31st Aug. 2007
Appointment ended 30th Sep. 2008

65.00

Appointed 31st Aug. 2007
Appointment ended 20th Dec. 2008

Supervisor

Jui-Min Chen

13

Actual attendance
rate (B/A) (see note)

for the Implementation of Energy Conservation and

Appointed 31st Aug. 2007
Appointment ended 13th Mar. 2008

Carbon Reduction Measures. Each month, we cut

Appointed 31st Aug. 2007

Note: Each person's attendance rate (%) is calculated by dividing the number of board meetings during his/her tenure by the number of meetings
attended during that same period.
Other notes:
1. Job duties of supervisors:
(1) Were there any communications between supervisors and company employees and shareholders?
The company's supervisors can communicate with employees via written documents, telephone, fax, email, or face to face. Communication
channels are excellent.
(2) Were there any communications between supervisors and the chief internal auditor and CPAs (e.g. company financial or business matters
discussed, how they were discussed, and the results of discussion)?
(i) The Board of Directors Internal Auditing Department reports regularly to the supervisors on the state of its internal auditing work.
(ii) Our supervisors attend as observers at meetings of the Board of Directors to monitor the company's business and financial operations, and
closing of the semi-annual and annual accounts, and provide their views in a timely manner.
2. Did any supervisor attending as an observer at a meeting of the Board of Directors express an opinion there? If so, please indicate the date of the
meeting, the meeting number, content of the agenda item, the result of the board vote on the resolution, and the company's handling of the opinion
expressed by the supervisor:
No such matters came up.

(3) Disclosures required under the "Corporate Governance Best-Practice Principles
for Financial Holding Companies"
Disclosures required under the "Corporate Governance Best-Practice Principles for Financial
Holding Companies" were posted on the company's website at www.twfhc.com.tw.

(4) Social responsibility
(i)

Carbon Reduction Declaration, and adopted a Project

Remarks

As a state-run financial institution, TFH actively accommodated government policy, provided
both business firms and consumers with a full range of financial services. Our power financial
intermediation spurs industrial activity and development of the national economy, and

our use of paper, gasoline, electricity, and water, and
we encouraged our employees to take active part in
tree planting and other greenification activities. TFH is
taking concrete action to care for the earth!
(iv) Group subsidiary Bank of Taiwan has long sought to
get more people playing basketball and develop topnotch basketball talent in Taiwan. The bank holds a
Summer Basketball Camp every year to help young
players hone their skills. If more people play basketball,
we will have a healthier society.

(5) Easy access to TFH corporate governance best practice principles and related
company bylaws
TFH has placed its governance best practice principles and related company bylaws on its website
at www.twfhc.com.tw for easy access.

4. The total number of shares and combined equity stake held in any
single enterprise by TFH, TFH subsidiaries, TFH directors, supervisors,
and executive officers, and any companies controlled either directly or
indirectly by TFH.
31st December 2008

contributes to the well-being of the nation.
(ii) To fulfill our social responsibility, TFH led its
subsidiaries in an active push to engage in

TFH investments
Investee (see note)

community service activities. We sponsored
advocacy groups for the disadvantaged,
community environmental preservation,

Combined investments

Shares

Ownership stake

Shares

Ownership stake

Shares

Ownership stake

4.5 billion

100%

-

-

4.5 billion

100%

earthquake relief efforts, and blood donation

BTLI

5 billion

100%

-

-

5 billion

100%

drives. These activities are our way of giving

BTS

3 billion

100%

-

-

3 billion

100%

back to society.
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Bank of Taiwan

Investments by TFH directors,
supervisors, and executive officers, and
any companies controlled either directly
or indirectly by TFH

Note: Investments made by TFH in accordance with Article 36 of the Financial Holding Company Act.
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Capital raised by TFH

IV. Capital raised by TFH

1. Shares and dividends

from previous fiscal years before setting aside 10% to legal reserve. In addition, TFH must also
set aside an additional 40% to 60% of after-tax income, along with an amount equal to the figure

(1) Source of share capital
Date

Issue price

January 2008

NT$10

Authorized capital

Paid-in capital

recorded to shareholders equity under "Unrealized losses on financial instruments," to special

Remarks

Shares

Dollar amount

Shares

Dollar amount

Source of share capital

Other

reserves. If further earnings still remain, they are aggregated with cumulative undistributed

9 billion

NT$90 billion

9 billion

NT$90 billion

Share swap

see note

earnings from the preceding fiscal year and distributed in accordance with the provisions of

Note: The date of record for the share swap with the Bank of Taiwan was 1st January 2008. The transaction was approved by the Ministry of Finance
on 30th August 2007 (Letter No. Tai-Cai-Ku 0960038139) and by the Financial Supervisory Commission on 6th December 2008 (Letter No. JinGuan-Yin (II) 09620007790).

(2) Shareholder structure, dispersion of ownership, and list of principal shareholders
TFH is a state-run enterprise wholly owned by the government, with its shares owned by the Ministry
of Finance.

Unit: NT dollars

Year

capital. If there are no earnings, TFH shall not distribute cash dividends or bonuses; provided,
in the form of cash dividends and bonuses.
(ii) Dividend distributions in 2008
In closing the annual accounts for 2008, TFH set aside provisions to the legal reserve and the

As of 31st Mar 2009

special reserve on the basis of audited after-tax earnings, then distributed cash dividends

High

-

-

of NT$3.59 billion (NT$0.40 per share). However, in accordance with Article 50 of Taiwan's

Low

-

-

Government Auditing Act, the earnings reported in TFH's annual accounts are subject to the

Average

-

-

final approval of the Ministry of Audit. TFH's annual accounts for 2008 are still under review by

Before distributions

25.11

25.12

After distributions

24.71

24.72

9,000,000,000

9,000,000,000

Earnings per share

0.79

0.09

Cash dividends

0.40

Net worth per share

Weighted average shares
Earnings per share

Return on investments

earnings distribution that may be paid out in the form of cash shall not exceed 15% of authorized

2008

Item

Dividends per share

Unless and until the accumulated legal reserve equals TFH's authorized capital, the maximum

however, that if its legal reserve exceeds 50% of its paid-in capital, TFH may distribute the excess

(3) Share prices, net worth per share, earnings per share, dividends per share, and
related information (for the past two fiscal years)

Price per share

applicable laws and regulations.

-

Dividends out of earnings

-

-

Dividends out of capital reserve

-

-

Cumulative undistributed dividends

-

-

Price/earnings ratio

-

-

Price-to-dividend ratio

-

-

Cash dividend yield

-

-

Bonus shares

the Ministry of Audit, therefore the actual amount to be distributed as cash dividends cannot be
determined until after Ministry of Audit has finished its review.

2. Issuance of corporate bonds: none
3. Issuance of preferred shares: none
4. Issuance of global depositary receipts: none
5. Issuance of employee stock warrants: none
6. Mergers and acquisitions: none

Note: TFH is a state-run enterprise. Our stock is not exchange-listed, so there is no data for market capitalization or return on investments.

(4) Dividend policy and its implementation

7. Comments on implementation of capital allocation plan: none

(i) Dividend policy
Under the provisions of the TFH articles of incorporation, if earnings remain after closing of the
annual accounts, TFH is required after paying its income taxes that year to first offset any deficit

26
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V. An overview of operations

1. Business activities

(b) Types of business:
Unit: NT$1,000

(1) Scope of business

2008

Year

(i) TFH

Item

(a) Main lines of business: TFH is a financial holding company. Its main lines of business, as
required under the provisions of the Financial Holding Company Act, are investing in other
enterprises and managing their operations.

Personal life insurance
Personal injury insurance
Personal health insurance
Personal annuity insurance

(b) Types of business
Unit: NT$1,000

44,272,566

95.24%

159,428

0.34%

692,505

1.49%

1,025,540

2.21%

Group life insurance

180,416

0.39%

Group personal injury insurance

122,721

0.26%

Group health insurance

21,171

0.04%

Share of total

Reinsurance assumed

12,900

0.03%

Gross premium income

46,487,247

100.00%

2008

Investment gains/losses recognized under the equity method

Share of total

Dollar amount

Year
Item

Dollar amount

7,148,588

99.95%

Other operating revenue

3,612

0.05%

Total revenues and gains

7,152,200

100.00%

(iv) BTS
(a) Main lines of business: Securities brokering, dealing, underwriting, margin trading services,

(ii) Bank of Taiwan

short selling services, futures introducing broker services, and other lines of business as may

(a) Main lines of business: In addition to conducting ordinary banking business in accordance with

be approved by the competent authorities.

the provisions of the Banking Act, the Bank of Taiwan also (on contract to the Central Bank)

(b) Types of business:

handles ancillary matters pertaining to the issuance of New Taiwan Dollar notes and coins, and
engages in other lines of business as may be approved by the competent authorities.

Item

(b) Types of business:
2008

Year
Item

Dollar amount

Net interest income

Share of total

23,666,146

84.57%

4,685,598

16.74%

-16,641,793

-59.47%

1,621,691

5.80%

－

－

645,772

2.31%

3,823,490

13.66%

Schedule of asset impairment losses, and gains on reversal of impairment

-2,896,101

-10.35%

Schedule of other net non-interest income/losses

10,339,567

36.95%

2,738,530

9.79%

27,982,900

100.00%

Net fee income
Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Realized gains (losses) on available-for-sale financial assets
Realized gains (losses) on held-to-maturity financial assets
Investment gains/losses recognized under the equity method
Translation gains/losses

Net earnings

Dollar amount

Share of total

238,836

67.58%

Interest income

91,695

25.95%

Dividend income

1,169

0.33%

Securities brokering and underwriting revenue
Unit: NT$1,000

Gains on property transactions

Unit: NT$1,000

(iii) BTLI
(a) Main lines of business: Life insurance; acts on behalf of the government in running military
personnel insurance and insurance for men serving alternative military service; other lines of
business as may be approved by the competent authorities.

2008

Year

Futures commission revenue

622

0.18%

Other operating revenue

21,075

5.96%

Total operating revenue

353,397

100.00%

(2) 2009 business plan
(i) TFH
(a) Enhancement of corporate governance
．Plan and execute a public offering of shares, and improve information transparency.
．Select a fair and impartial third party to assist with introduction of a corporate governance
evaluation mechanism.
(b) Integration of group resources
．To reduce overhead and maximize corporate value, TFH will establish a platform that enables
all TFH subsidiaries to make coordinated allocation and shared use of common resources.
．Improve our cross-selling of securities and insurance products, and begin evolving toward a
multicore business model.
(c) Management with professionalism

28
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．Establish vertical management by our parent company over the subsidiaries, and a laterally
oriented management platform to enable groupwide oversight and coordination.
．Track the growth of our subsidiaries and evaluate their performance to improve groupwide
business results.
．Improve our financial management in order to optimize the amount of capital at our
subsidiaries and reap synergies in the utilization of capital.
(d) Improvement of risk management
．Make use of information technology to plan and set up a groupwide integrated risk
management mechanism and platform.
．Exercise effective control over groupwide and subsidiary-specific risk indicators, and acted
in a timely manner to issue warnings and take corrective action.
(e) Business expansion
．Accommodate government policy by formulating plans for business expansion. Add
securities investment trust and advisory services, asset management services, and other
related lines of business to our corporate group, whether through M&A or by establishing
new companies from scratch, thereby creating greater economies of scale and scope.
．Accelerate the pace of internationalization and become a leader in our region by cooperating
with the world’s leading financial holding companies, bringing in independent directors of
foreign nationality, and establishing strategic partnerships with foreign entities.
(ii) Bank of Taiwan
(a) Deposit business

．Improve the bank's Student Loan Portal website, begin sending out payment reminders via
recorded phone messages to recipients of student loans and home mortgage loans, and
begin sending out text message notices where automatic withdrawals fail to process.
．Capitalize on the bank's base in deposit taking and lending by expanding into international
credit card issuance and acquirer services.
．Continue providing year-round 24-hour customer service which, in combination with
innovative new marketing channels, will increase product exposure and strengthen
competitiveness.
(d) Foreign exchange and international finance
．Make inroads into export financing and outward remittance business, and enhance the
breadth and depth of the bank's foreign exchange business and online banking services to
put the bank on more solid business footing.
．Closely track market trends and promote structured products, foreign exchange swaps,
options contracts, and a host of other products.
．Integrate the bank's domestic and overseas marketing platforms to provide overseas
investors and offshore customers with capital management capacity and a full range of
personal financial advisory and investment services.
(e) Electronic banking services
．Promote the bank's marketing management system by adding a one-stop "sign on" service
window and a software/hardware system operations function to the e-Business website.

．Improve bulk collections and payments service, integrate wealth management and electronic

．Strengthen information operations, continue expanding system functions (e.g. data

banking services to become a capital management center for corporations, expand auxiliary

warehousing, customer relations management, marketing, and wealth management), and

banking services, and raise the ratio of demand deposits to total deposits.

bolster the bank's competitiveness.

．Actively seek to attract foreign exchange deposits to lower the cost of foreign currency
capital and increase translation gains.
(b) Corporate finance

(f) Trust business
．Take on more investments in trust and custodial business from customers at home and
abroad, generating increased fee income.

．Coordinate with the government's economic stimulus program by actively expanding lending

．Develop a more diverse range of trust services and integrate the bank's wealth management

to private-sector companies, especially small and medium enterprises. This support should

products, providing customers with a full range of personal financial planning and asset

help Taiwan's industry upgrade and develop.

management services.

．Step up sales visits, expand lending where our niche lies, do a better job of assessing credit
risks, and factor customer risks into the pricing of loans to reduce overall risk and spur
growth in auxiliary services.

30

(c) Retail Banking

．Achieve outstanding performance through management and investment of reserve funds for
the old Labor Pension Fund and Government Employees Insurance scheme.
(g) Investment business

．Lead or participate in syndicated loans, develop lending to Taiwan-invested firms throughout

．Coordinate all NT Dollar and foreign currency investments, and keep close track of financial

the Asia-Pacific region, develop online financing and accounts receivable factoring services,

markets, foreign exchange, and interest rate trends. Trade ﬂexibly in securities while tightly

expand corporate finance business, and bring in additional fee income.

controlling risks.
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．Invest carefully, buying blue-chip stocks and high-yield stocks for the bank's core portfolio,

．Meet with leading insurance brokers and insurance agencies, make an aggressive push

while holding shares in mutual funds on a mid- to long-term basis and trading at opportune

to join hands with the best industry players, expand marketing channels, and build a solid

times to enhance overall portfolio performance.

business foundation.

(h) Government Employees Insurance

(c) Improved returns on capital

．Improve coverage and cash benefits, continue promoting the handling of Government

．Establish a management mechanism that keeps assets and liabilities in line with risk-

Employees Insurance matters online, hold Government Employees Insurance seminars, and

adjusted returns. Effectively allocate capital, guard more closely against investment and

familiarize the staff of insured organizations with related laws and regulations in order to

operational risk, and achieve a higher overall rate of returns on capital.

provide quality service to our nation's citizens.

．Keep close track of both internal and external factors, including macroeconomic conditions

．In response to economic conditions at home and abroad, strengthen management and use

and financial industry trends, as well as the company's own capital sources and allocations,

of the Government Employees Insurance reserve fund to improve returns.

and on the basis of the resulting findings develop appropriate products and make ﬂexible

(i) Wealth management

use of marketing strategies designed to yield the best possible risk-adjusted return on

．Formulate a plan for integrated marketing operations. The idea is to innovate management and
provide a more diverse range of superior financial services by introducing new products and
adopting new marketing methods.

investments.
(d) Strong sales force
．Keep up with rapidly expanding sales by aggressively recruiting new talent with expertise in

．Capitalize on the bank's competitive strength in e-banking by encouraging customers to submit
trading orders online for mutual fund products and "gold passbook" accounts. Market the

fields such as life insurance, marketing, actuarial practice, and asset management.
．Enhance education and training programs, encourage employees to take part in professional

bank's wealth management services to retired demographic.

development courses and obtain professional licenses, and work to improve sales force

．Sharpen the professionalism of personnel handling wealth management, and organize lectures
on investing and management of personal finances to provide customers with professional
expertise and develop long-term relationships with them.

capabilities.
(e) Optimization of after-sales service
．Streamline claims settlement procedures,

(iii) BTLI

strengthen insurance conservation measures

(a) Market-driven product research

in connection with policy surrender cases,

．Take advantage of the group's banking channel and BTLI's own strong customer base to

and take steps to reduce adverse selection,

design insurance products with a tie-in to the group's wealth management services. This will

mortality gains/losses, and expense gains/

enable BTLI to provide customers with a full range of asset allocation choices.

losses.

．Capitalize on BTLI's affiliation with the TFH group by developing group accident insurance

．Strengthen the company's after-sales service

products for persons retired from the military, civil service, and teaching professions, thereby

system, and improve persistency rates and

reducing their reliance on traditional insurance policies and expanding into a unique niche

repeat-purchase rates.

market.
．Respond to aging demographics in Taiwan by continuing to design investment-linked and
annuity-type insurance products, as well as policies that provide for long-term nursing care.
(b) Establishment of strong marketing channels

(iv) BTS
(a) Brokerage business:
．Take advantage of groupwide resources
by setting up special securities business

．Use groupwide resource sharing and cross-selling arrangements to take advantage of

counters at branches of the Bank of Taiwan

BTLI's status as Taiwan's only state-run insurance company and move toward a "dual-core"

and BTLI, and providing services via the

business model (i.e. bancassurance and traditional channels). These innovative new steps

group's online banking channel.

should enable the company to expand the range of its business activities.

32

Taiwan Financial Holdings Annual Report 2008

33

An overview of operations

These innovations will enable BTS to expand its securities brokerage business.
．Actively tap into groupwide marketing resources to expand the customer base, increase the
share of business accounted for by institutional investors, and grow market share.

(3) Future research and development projects
(i) TFH
(a) TFH will embark upon the second phase of efforts to integrate internal resources and create a

．Improve the company's electronic order submission system by upgrading to faster and more

groupwide resource sharing platform. Products and channels will be a particularly important

functional broadband connections, thereby enabling the company to grow its online trading

focus of resource integration efforts. In the meantime, the resource sharing platform is intended

business.

to provide all group affiliates with access to shared IT resources, personnel, research papers,

．Guide company branches through the process of setting up business operations and

media relations materials, procurement arrangements, and real estate management resources.

establishing risk management systems, thereby bringing about stable business growth and

TFH has been moving ahead first on those aspects with the greatest cost-benefit potential.

enhanced competitiveness.

These moves toward integration promise to maximize the benefits of group synergy.

．Establish an operations center, coordinate measures to achieve standardization, cut

(b) TFH will develop an integrated risk management mechanism, making use of four key aspects

back on the number of personnel needed for marketing, and achieve improved business

of risk management – strategy, organization, procedures, and information systems – to imple-

performance.

ment integrated risk monitoring and control, thereby reducing the risks associated with cross-

(b) Underwriting business:
．Take advantage of holding company resources, engage in cross-selling with other group

selling.
(ii) Bank of Taiwan

affiliates, identify potential high-quality customers, and actively seek opportunities to serve

In response to changing economic conditions and its own business development needs, the Bank

as the lead underwriter for securities offerings.

of Taiwan will continue to carry out research relating to business innovation and development

．Gather information on listings and share offerings by public companies on organized

and other issues pertaining to the financial services industry. And in order to spur its employees

exchanges and OTC markets, establish a marketing database, and attract the business of

to improve their job skills, the bank will also encourage them to put forward work-related

high-quality customers in order to act as an intermediary in Taiwan's capital markets.

proposals, take on self-directed research, and travel abroad to take part in advanced professional

．Actively train underwriting personnel, improve the quality of service provided by the
company's underwriting team, and establish long-term strategic partnerships with
customers in order to achieve growth in operating revenues and profits.
(c) Securities dealing

development activities.
(iii) BTLI
BTLI in 2009 will continue to take part in the research project contest held by the Ministry of
Finance. BTLI's contest entry for 2009 will be entitled "Adapting to an Aging Society – A Study on

．Use the group's professional research to keep close track of economic trends, ﬂexibly adjust

the Market Potential for Commercial Annuity Insurance in Taiwan." The study will focus primarily

proprietary trading strategies, build a stably profitable investment portfolio, and improve

on products, marketing, and customer needs, and propose a feasible method for selling annuity

trading performance.

insurance that will meet the need of customers to plan for retirement. Developing this market

．Send company personnel to take part in training courses and observation visits both at
home and abroad so that they can build up practical experience, hone their professional
skills, develop trading experience and techniques, and develop a subtle grasp of what it
takes to stay profitable.
．Improve the company's principal trading management system to ensure tight control
of investment risks and make effective use of hedging instruments to achieve steady
investment returns.

would help to build a more complete social safety net.
(iv) BTS
(a) BTS will apply for a hedge account, research hedging mechanisms, design hedging strategies, and hedge its own mid- and long-term equity positions to optimize the performance of
its investment portfolio.
(b) BTS will study laws and regulations from throughout the East Asian region regarding securities
issuance and underwriting, and make plans for the development of international underwriting
services.
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(4) Long-term and short-term business development plans
(i) TFH
(a) Short-term business development plan

(b) Long-term business development plan
Build up business competence, identify the best growth strategies, search for appropriate
M&A targets, expand into a broader range of business activities, expand the size of operations,

Capitalize on the group's advantageous position as a financial holding company by integrating

actively establish new overseas locations, join them together with domestic branches into a

groupwide marketing resources, establishing a mechanism for cooperation among group

tight-knit international network, and develop into a world-leading bank.

affiliates, strengthening the group's cross-selling capabilities, and pursuing "multi-core" growth

(iii) BTLI

in consumer banking, corporate finance, foreign exchange, life insurance, trust services, wealth

(a) Short-term business development plan Use

management, and securities. Carefully plan for the use of our banking subsidiary's superior

groupwide resource sharing and cross-

channels to strengthen the competitiveness of our life insurance and securities subsidiaries,

selling arrangements, continue implementing

put them on more solid business footing, enable them to contribute a larger share of groupwide

various business plans, move toward a "dual-

profits and spur overall growth in business volume and profitability, achieve better business

core" business model (i.e. bancassurance

performance, and execute the roadmap we have set forth for ourselves as the nation's ﬂagship

and traditional channels), develop a diverse

financial holding company.

range of competitive new insurance products

(b) Long-term business development plan

designed to accommodate the changing

Work within the framework of our group's business roadmap to develop a long-term business

structure of society, and work together

development plan, and grow our organization internally to expand group operations in the

with other group affiliates to establish our

domestic market, gradually building out a presence across the full spectrum of the financial

marketing channels as a leading brand in the

services industry, thereby achieving greater business volume and profitability. Accelerate

hope of achieving faster business growth

moves to establish an overseas presence in tandem with the progress of internationalization

and fully reaping the benefits of group

in the financial services industry. Lay plans to establish cooperative relations with the world's

synergy.

leading financial holding companies or equity tie-ups with foreign entities, establish strategic

(b) Long-term business development plan

partnerships, introduce modern managerial techniques, and work toward becoming one of the

Take advantage of the opportunities afforded by e-business marketing channels, research

leading financial holding companies in the East Asian region.

strategies for the diversification of marketing channels, set up a high-performance, high-

(ii) Bank of Taiwan
(a) Short-term business development plan

value management information system, implement effective customer relations management,
improve our insurance product design capabilities, improve our expertise in long-term asset

Consolidate the bank's existing strengths in channels and business operations, actively expand

planning and management, and work to become one of Taiwan's five largest insurance

into corporate finance and consumer banking. Provide a diverse range of international financial

companies.

services, and become a capital management center for Taiwan-invested businesses operating
overseas and in mainland China. Continue expanding the scope of wealth management

(iv) BTS
(i) Short-term business development plan

services, and provide customers with a wider array of choices in their investments and personal

Conduct business with top priority on stability, concentrate on getting the basics right and

financial planning. Capitalize on our position as a market leader to aggressively promote our

perfecting operations, use the group's cross-selling platform to actively expand the company's

gold trading services. Evaluate how and whether the company has benefited from recent

customer base, increase market share, establish a comprehensive risk management system,

reorganization efforts, continue forward with further organization changes, and consolidate our

effectively control overall risk, and achieve better business results.

position as a leading bank.
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(ii) Long-term business development plan

and in order to develop its international financial services and increase its overseas earning potential,

Formulate overall strategic goals, adopt concrete plans to bring the company roadmap to

in addition to existing offshore banking units (OBUs), the bank has also set up branches in New

fruition, actively expand into a more diverse range of business activities, and move step by

York, Los Angeles, London, Hong Kong, Tokyo, Singapore, and South Africa, as well as a foreign

step toward the goal of "cultivating our business in the capital markets and developing into an

trade center in Panama. By expanding its operations network, the bank is able to provide first-rate

investment bank."

financial services to its customers.

2. Benefits of cross-selling

(2) BTLI
BTLI's main products fall within the category of insurance of the person (i.e. "life insurance" in the

(1) Setup of specialized counters at group affiliate locations to provide customers
with one-stop financial service

broadest sense of the term), and are sold only in Taiwan, where the company has eight branches,

Specialized business counters are a key cross-selling tool. After going into business in January

cross-selling facilities at 163 Bank of Taiwan locations, and 690 cooperative marketing points at

2008, TFH began planning to set up a cross-selling system. Before the year was out, we had

the business locations of nine contracted financial institutions. These business locations form a

obtained approval from the Financial Supervisory Commission to establish 163 insurance counters

marketing channel with outstanding coverage.

and 156 securities counters at branches of the Bank of Taiwan to integrate our banking, insurance,
and securities sales forces, establish an efficient and integrated cross-selling platform, and use
our highly developed banking channels and overwhelmingly superior customer base to provide
customers with integrated, one-stop financial services and reap the benefits of group synergy.

(2) Benefits of cross-selling
(i)

Cross-selling of life insurance via the Bank of Taiwan went extremely well in 2008, bringing

five correspondence offices, and 64 contracted agencies and brokerages. The company also has

(3) BTS
BTS is principally engaged in securities brokering, dealing, and underwriting. Its customers include
both institutional and individual investors, mainly in Taiwan. The company has seven branches,
cross-selling facilities at 156 Bank of Taiwan locations, and very strong online banking operations,
via which it provides customers with a full range of services relating to investment and personal
financial planning.

in first-year premiums of NT$29.3 billion (of 79.19% of BTLI's total first-year premiums) and
NT$1.02 billion in insurance service charge revenues, up by 115.44% and 73%, respectively,
from 2007. These results clearly demonstrate the synergies released by cross-selling, and the
brand value of the Bank of Taiwan channel.
(ii) Buoyed by the strength of the Bank of Taiwan channel, BTLI in 2008 achieved first-year premium
income of NT$37.0 billion, up by 88.23% year-on-year and vaulting the company's industry rank
for market share from 13th to 6th. Total premium income, in the meantime, came to NT$49.5
billion, up 61.93% year-on-year and the 3rd best growth rate in the industry.
(iii) The group's banking channel in 2008 referred NT$77.8 billion worth of brokerage business to
BTS, and the Bank of Taiwan acted as lead bank in 49 syndicated loan deals, up 36% over the
previous year.

3. TFH's geographical footprint
(1) Bank of Taiwan
The Bank of Taiwan does business in the fields of banking, trust services, procurement, and trade,
and has branch units in principal cities throughout Taiwan. It currently has 163 business locations,
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4. Corporate responsibility and ethics
(1) TFH is a state-run enterprise, and the MOF is the sole shareholder. Apart from certain activities
undertaken in support of government policy, our business is no different from that of any privatesector enterprise, and is run with an eye to improving groupwide performance, maximizing profits
paid to the treasury and bolstering the government's finances.
(2) TFH has taken a number of actions to support the economy and the government's "three
supports" policy, including the following: help enterprises get access to operating capital; grant
mortgage relief to involuntarily unemployed residents of owner-occupied homes, including
deferment or rescheduling of principal; provide concessionary loans to caring enterprises that
elect not to lay off employees; and aggressively hire temporary workers in response to the
government's call to provide short-term job opportunities. These actions are designed to stabilize
the nation.
(3) Ever since its establishment, TFH has taken its social responsibilities very seriously, and for this
reason has required its subsidiaries to participate in disaster relief efforts and many other types
of community service activities. We encourage group employees to take part in tree planting and
other greenification activities, and to take concrete steps to reduce energy consumption and their
carbon footprint. In these and many ways, TFH is giving back to society.
(4) TFH and its subsidiaries have adopted management systems, and update them as necessary
in response to legal and regulatory changes to ensure proper legal compliance. We run our
businesses fairly and impartially, and are very concerned about upholding the legal rights and
interests of all employees, customers, and other stakeholders. Our financial and operating

5. Labor relations
(1) Employee benefits, labor agreements, measures to safeguard employee interests:
(i)

Employee benefits:
TFH and its subsidiaries attach great importance to labor relations. We provide Government
Employees Insurance, Labor Insurance, and National Health Insurance, as required by law, and
in addition to that each of our subsidiaries also has an employee benefits committee, which is
responsible for providing financial assistance payments to employees who are hospitalized due
to injury or illness, recreational activities, and retirement benefit supplements. In addition, we
periodically hold fire drills and regularly inspect fire fighting equipment in an effort to create a
safe working environment.

(ii) Pension system: Administered in accordance with the Labor Standards Act as well as laws and
regulations governing civil service employees.
(iii) Safeguarding of employee interests:
To safeguard the interests of employees, each TFH subsidiary has a labor-management council
for discussion of specific issues raised by unions, and management also maintains frequent
communications with the unions to foster harmonious relations. TFH and its subsidiaries have
not been adversely affected during the most recent fiscal year, or in the current year as of the
date of this report's printing, by any labor disputes.

(2) Dollar amount of losses from possible future labor disputes, and response
measures: None anticipated.

information is disclosed in a transparent and timely manner, and we adhere strictly by our
corporate governance principles so as to serve as a model of responsibility within the financial
services industry.
(5) TFH and its subsidiaries each have an employees' handbook and a code of conduct that require
all directors, supervisors, executive officers, and rank-and-file employees to carry out their duties
in an honest and ethical manner. They are required to avoid conflicts of interest, refrain from
using their positions for personal profit, maintain the confidentiality of undisclosed information,
safeguard company assets, and allocate them effectively. TFH and its subsidiaries are serious
about ensuring the ethical conduct of their employees, and examine ethical issues closely when
evaluating job performance, so as to promote a corporate culture that emphasizes ethical ideals,
and to establish a clean and capable image for state-run enterprises.
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Financial status

VI. Financial status

1. Condensed financial statement for most recent five years
(1) Condensed consolidated balance sheet
Unit：NT$ thousand

Year
Item

2008

Cash and cash equivalents

80,104,961

Due from Central Bank and call loans to banks

996,241,280

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

78,655,609

Bills and bonds purchased under resell agreements

12,321,566

(2) Condensed income statement
Unit: NT$ thousand

Year

Financial Information for Past 5 years (Note 1)

Available-for-sale financial assets, net

175,527,297

Item

Receivables, net

105,651,162

Net interest income

27,958,330

Revenues other than Interest

32,952,786

Loans, net

1,997,536,704

Held-to-maturity financial assets, net

117,196,368

2008

Credit provisions

1,598,254

Equity investments using the equity method

31,125,625

Provisions for insurance policy reserves

33,710,941

Fixed assets, net (Note 2)

81,040,624

Operating expenses

18,605,135

Intangible assets

1,451,116

Other financial assets, net

77,978,931

Real estate investments, net

2,003,965

Other assets, net

3,775,149,136

Due to Central Bank and other banks

181,489,738

Deposits

2,932,562,905

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

5,804,419

Bills and bonds sold under repurchase agreements

20,251,220

Payables

97,379,549

Reserves for operation and liabilities

Consolidated Net Income After Tax

7,123,945

Cumulative Effect of Changes in Accounting Principles (after tax)
Consolidated Net income

Attributable to TFH shareholders
Attributable to Minority interest

Basic earnings per share (Note 2)

7,123,945
0.79

Note 1: The financial information provided above has been audited and attested by Yen-Ling Fang, and Derek Hsu, CPAs at the firm of KMPG
Taiwan, who hereby express an unqualified opinion with modified wording because the financial statements of some the company's strategic
investees were not audited by the same CPA.
Note 2: "Basic earnings per share" is denoted in NT Dollars.
Note 3: The company was established on 1st January 2008 and is currently preparing to conduct a public stock offering, and is therefore included in
the financial information for 2008.

6,429,020

Other liabilities

25,416,064

Total liabilities

3,549,181,171
Share capital

90,000,000

Additional paid-in capital
Retained
Earnings

111,495,264

Before distribution

7,123,945

After distribution (Note 3)

3,533,818

Equity adjustments
Minority Interest
Total Stockholders' Equity

6,996,786

279,848,256

Other financial liabilities

Equity Attributable to
Stockholders of TFH

Income before Income Tax

18,313,928

Total Assets

44

Financial Information for Past 5 years (Note 1)

Note 1: The financial information provided above has been audited and attested by Yen-Ling Fang, and Derek Hsu, CPAs at the firm of KMPG
Taiwan, who hereby express an unqualified opinion with modified wording because the financial statements of some the company's strategic
investees were not audited by the same CPA.
Note 2: The Bank of Taiwan on 4th February 2009 revalued its real estate. The revaluation (approved by the National Tax Administration on 12th
March 2009, and effective retroactively from 2nd January 2008) resulted in the recognition of a revaluation gain of NT$212,411,000 and
caused an increase in fixed assets (by NT$77,482,000) real estate investments (by NT$134,929,000) and unrealized revaluation gains (by
NT$212,411,000).
Note 3: The figure for retained earnings after distribution is based on the NT$3,590,127,000 paid by the company to the national treasury in
accordance with its statutory budget.
Note 4: The company was established on 1st January 2008 and is currently preparing to conduct a public stock offering, and is therefore included in
the financial information for 2008.

17,348,756
-

Before distribution

225,967,965

After distribution (Note 3)

222,377,838
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(3) Condensed balance sheet

2. Financial analysis for most recent five years
Unit: NT$ thousand

Year

Financial Information for Past 5 years (Note 1)

Unit: NT$ thousand；％

Item

2008

Cash and cash equivalents

348,555

Receivables, net

535,787

Equity Investments Accounted for by The Equity Method, net

122

Other Liabilities

Profitability

3,973,930
Before distribution

90,000,000

Capital Surplus

111,495,264
Before distribution

3,533,818

After distribution (Note 2)

17,348,756
Before distribution

225,967,965

After distribution (Note 2)

222,377,838

Note 1: The financial information provided above has been audited and attested by Yen-Ling Fang, a CPA at the firm of KMPG Taiwan, who hereby
express an unqualified opinion with modified wording because the financial statements of some the company's strategic investees were not
audited by the same CPA.
Note 2: The figure for retained earnings after distribution is based on the NT$3,590,127,000 paid by the company to the national treasury in
accordance with its statutory budget.
Note 3: The company was established on 1st January 2008 and is currently preparing to conduct a public stock offering, and is therefore included in
the financial information for 2008.

(4) Condensed income statement
Unit: NT$ thousand

Year
Item
Investment Income from Equity Investments Accounted for by the
Equity Method
Other Income
Other Expenses and Losses
Income Before Income Tax
Net Income After Tax
Earnings per share (before tax)
Earnings per share (after tax)

Return on Assets (%)

3.09%

Return on Equity (%)

3.15%

Net Margin (%)

99.60%
0.79
1.96%

Financial
structure(%)

Liabilities to Net Worth Ratio

2.00%

TFH's Double Leverage Ratio

99.80%

Leverage
ratio

Operating Leverage Ratio

Growth
Rates

Growth Rate of Assets

－

Growth Rate of Profit

－

100.51%

TFH's Financial leverage ratio

100%

Cash Flow Ratio (Note 1)
Cash Flows

-5.38％

Cash Flow Adequacy Ratio (Note 1)

-461.99％

Cash Flow Reinvestment Ratio

Operating
Scale

Financial Information for Past 5 years (Note 1)

460.66%

Market Share by Assets

15.39%

Market Share by Net Worth

13.67%

Market Share of Deposits of Banking Subsidiary

12.17%

Market Share of Loans of Banking Subsidiary

10.22%

Bank of Taiwan

2008
Capital adequacy ratio

7,148,588

Eligible self-owned capital

75
7,123,945

Capital
Adequacy

172,902,518

BankTaiwan Life Insurance
BankTaiwan Securities

2,696,758

Group's capital adequacy ratio

1,486,972,081

BankTaiwan Life Insurance
BankTaiwan Securities

Group's statutory capital requirement

3,840,391

179,406,811
Bank of Taiwan

Subsidiary's statutory capital
requirement

147.66%
1503.00%

Group's eligible capital

0.79
0.79

BankTaiwan Life Insurance (Note 2)

Bank of Taiwan

36,394
7,115,731

11.63%

BankTaiwan Securities

3,612

Note 1: The financial information provided above has been audited and attested by Yen-Ling Fang, a CPA at the firm of KMPG Taiwan, who hereby
express an unqualified opinion with modified wording because the financial statements of some the company's strategic investees were not
audited by the same CPA.
Note 2: "Earnings per share" is denoted in NT Dollars.
Note 3: The company was established on 1st January 2008 and is currently preparing to conduct a public stock offering, and is therefore included in
the financial information for 2008.
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821

7,123,945

Equity Adjustments

Operating Expenses

7,021

Debt Ratio

922,486

Capital Stock

1.06%

Earnings Per Share (NT$)

4,512,613

After distribution (Note 2)

NPL Ratio of Banking Subsidiary (%)

The Group's Average Profit Per Employee

538,561

Accrued pension liabilities

66.36%

The Group's Average Operating Revenue Per Employee

230,480,578

Payables

Total Stockholders' Equity

Operating
Ability

3,598,341

Total Assets

0.03

Loans to Deposits Ratio of Banking Subsidiary (%)

14

Other Assets, net

Retained Earnings

Total Assets Turnover

5,274

Intangible Assets, net

Total Liabilities

2008

225,992,607

Property And Equipment, net

(1) Financial analysis

2,600,832
179,425
128,559,770
139.55%
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2008
Paragraph 46 of the Financial Holding Company Act
requires disclosure of the ratio of aggregate credit
extensions, guarantees or other transactions between all
subsidiaries and any single party, single group of related
parties, or single group of related enterprises.

Single party (%)

See page100~104

Single group of related parties (%)

See page100~104

Single group of related enterprises (%)

See page100~104

Note 1: The cash ﬂow ratio and cash ﬂow adequacy ratio were both negative because the company was established on 1st January 2008 and its
subsidiaries have not yet paid out cash dividends, which caused net cash ﬂow from operating activities to be negative.
Note 2: The company has taken (or will take) the following steps to raise BTLI's risk-based capital (RBC) ratio:
(1) BTLI revalued its assets in 2008 and adjusted its capital accordingly.
(2) TFH will increase BTLI's capital by NT$2 billion in 2009.
(3) TFH will increase BTLI's capital by an additional NT$4 billion in 2010. This amount has already been included in the budget that was
submitted to the Legislative Yuan for approval.
Note 3: Formulas used for the above financial analysis are as follows:
1.Operating Ability
(1) Total Assets Turnover = Net Revenue / Total Assets
(2) Loans to Deposits Ratio of Banking Subsidiary = Total Loans Outstanding / Total Deposits Outstanding
(3) NPL Ratio = Non-Performing Loans / Total Loans Outstanding
(4) The Group's Average Operating Revenue Per Employee = Net Revenue / Total Number of Group Employees
(5) The Group's Average Profit per Employee = Net Income / Total Number of the Group Employees
2.Profitability
(1) Return on Assets = Net Income + Interest Expense - Tax Rate / Average Total Assets
(2) Return on Equity = Net Income / Average Shareholders' Equity
(3) Net Margin = Net Income / Net Revenue
(4) Earnings Per Share = Net Income - Preferred Stock Dividend / Weighted Average Number of Shares Outstanding
3.Financial Structure
(1) Debt Ratio = Total Liabilities / Total Assets
(2) Liabilities to Net Worth Ratio = Total Liabilities / Total Shareholders' Equity
(3) Financial Holding Company's Double Leverage Ratio = Equity Investments made under Article 36, Paragraph 2 and Article 37 of
Financial Holding Company Act / Net Worth
4.Leverage
(1) Operating Leverage = (Net Revenue - Variable Cost) / Net Income Before Tax
(2) Financial Holding Company's Financial Leverage = (Net Income Before Tax + Interest Expense) / Net Income Before Tax
5.Growth Rates
(1) Growth Rate of Assets = (Total Assets - Total Assets of Previous Year) / Total Assets of Previous Year
(2) Growth Rate of Profit = (Net Income before Tax - Net Income before Tax of Previous Year) / Net Income before Tax of Previous Year
6.Cash Flow
(1) Cash Flow Ratio = Net Cash from Operating Activities / Due to Other Banks and Overdrafts + Commercial Paper Payable + Financial
Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss + Bills and Bonds Sold under Repurchase Agreements + Payables with Maturity within
One Year
(2) Cash Flow Adequacy Ratio = Five-Year Sum of Net Cash from Operating Activities / Five-Year Sum of Capital Expenditures and Cash
Dividends
(3) Cash Flow Reinvestment Ratio = Net cash ﬂow from operating activities / Net cash ﬂow from investing activities
7.Scale of Operations
(1) Market Share by Assets = Total Assets / Total Assets of all Financial Holding Companies
(2) Market Share by Net Worth = Net Worth / Total Net Worth of all Financial Holding Companies
(3) Market Share by Deposits of Banking Subsidiary = Total Deposits / Total Deposits of all Financial Institutions
(4) Market Share by Loans of Banking Subsidiary = Total Loans / Total Loans of all Financial Institutions
8.Capital Adequacy
(1) Group's Net Eligible Capital = Financial Holding Company's Eligible Capital + (Financial Holding Company's Shareholding Ratio ×
Subsidiary's Eligible Capital) - Statutory Deductions
(2) Group's Regulatory Capital Requirement = Financial Holding Company's Regulatory Capital Requirement + Financial Holding
Company's Shareholding Ratio × Subsidiary's Regulatory Capital Requirement
(3) Group's Capital Adequacy Ratio = Group's Net Eligible Capital / Group's Regulatory Capital Requirement

4.Consolidated financial statements for the most recent fiscal year
The Board of Directors
Taiwan Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Taiwan Financial
Holding Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31, 2008, and the related
consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders' equity, and cash ﬂows for the year
then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of some investee
companies. The Company's investment in those investee companies on December 31, 2008, was
$26,359,199 thousand, constituting 0.70% percent of the related consolidated total, and its equity
in earnings of those investee companies was $2,652,306 thousand, constituting 37.91% percent
of the related consolidated total, for the year ended December 31, 2008. The financial statements
of those investee companies were audited by other auditors whose reports were furnished to us,
and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for those investee companies, is
based solely on the reports of the other auditors.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the "Regulations Governing Auditing and
Certification of Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants" and auditing standards
generally accepted in the Republic of China. Those regulations and standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of the other
auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the consolidated
financial statements referred to in the first paragraph present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Taiwan Financial Holding Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries as of December 31,
2008, and the results of their operations and their cash ﬂows for the year then ended, in conformity
with the "Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Financial Holding
Companies" and accounting principles generally accepted in the Republic of China.
As described in note 1(1), the Company was incorporated on January 1, 2008, in accordance
with the Act of Taiwan Financial Holding Co., Ltd.

March 26, 2009
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TAIWAN FINANCIAL HOLDING CO., LTD. ANDITS
SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheet
December 31, 2008
(expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (notes 4 and 33)

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
$

Due from Central Bank and call loans to banks (notes 5, 33 and 34)

80,104,961
996,241,280

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (notes 6, 31 and 33)
Bills and bonds purchased under resell agreements (note 7)
Receivables, net (notes 8, 9, 25 and 33)

Bills and bonds sold under repurchase agreements (note 7)

12,321,566

Payables (note 19)

1,997,536,704

Other financial liabilities (notes 22 and 31)

Held-to-maturity financial assets, net (notes 11, 29, 31 and 34)

117,196,368

Other liabilities (notes 15, 23 and 24)

31,125,625

Other financial assets, net (notes 9, 13, 29 and 31)

77,978,931

Real estate investments, net (notes 14 and 15)

2,003,965

Fixed assets, net (notes 15, 24, 29 and 33)

81,040,624

Intangible assets

1,451,116

Other assets, net (notes 16, 25 and 29)

18,313,928

5,804,419
97,379,549
2,932,562,905

Reserves for operation and liabilities (notes 3 and 21)

175,527,297

181,489,738
20,251,220

Deposits (notes 20 and 33)

Available-for-sale financial assets, net (notes 10, 29, 32 and 34)
Equity investments using the equity method (note 12)

$

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (notes 18, 31 and 33)

78,655,609
105,651,162

Loans, net (notes 9, 31 and 33)

Due to Central Bank and other banks (notes 17 and 33)

279,848,256
6,429,020
25,416,064

Total liabilities

3,549,181,171

Stockholders' equity (notes 15, 25 and 26):
Common stock

90,000,000

Additional paid-in capital

111,495,264

Retained earnings:
Unappropriated retained earnings

7,123,945

Equity adjustments:
Unrealized increments on revaluation

16,930,538

Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments

(155,274)

Unrealized gain (loss) on financial instruments

573,492
17,348,756

Total stockholders' equity

225,967,965

Commitments and contingencies (note 37)
Total Assets
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$

3,775,149,136

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

$

3,775,149,136
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TAIWAN FINANCIAL HOLDING CO., LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

TAIWAN FINANCIAL HOLDING CO., LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Income

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity

For the year ended December 31, 2008

For the year ended December 31, 2008

(expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, except for earnings per share)

(expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Interest income

$

91,627,406

Less: interest expenses (notes 8 and 33)

63,669,076

Net interest income

27,958,330

Net non-interest income
Net income on service charges and commissions

3,448,857

Net insurance business income (note 28)

32,980,859

Gains (losses) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (note 33)

(16,583,003)

Realized gains (losses) on available-for-sale financial assets

1,621,691

Gains on equity investments recognized using the equity method

902,005

Gains (losses) on real estate investments

(28,210)

Foreign exchange gains (losses)

2,832,927

Asset impairment losses (gains on reversal of impairment) (note 29)

(4,718,429)

Other net non-interest income (losses)

109,467,296

(109,467,296)

-

-

-

-

-

Non-cash share capital
reduction (note 26)

(109,467,296)

5,429,052

-

(6,723,557)

51,010

(698,138)

-

-

-

-

-

33,710,941

Consolidated total income
for the year ended
December 31, 2008

-

-

7,123,945

-

-

11,976,296

Balance as of December
31, 2008

Operating expenses:

$

90,000,000

111,495,264

7,123,945

-

48,413

16,930,538

(155,274)

29,690,022

(4,387,274)

359,641,618

(115,847,213)

-

51,010

-

48,413

(24,729,256)

-

(24,729,256)

7,123,945
573,492

225,967,965

1,385,284

Other business and administrative expenses

5,243,555

Total operating expenses

18,605,135

Income before income taxes

6,996,786

Income tax benefits (note 25)

(127,159)

Consolidated total income

(320,552)

-

1,598,254

Depreciation and amortization expenses

-

-

(2,054,898)

Personnel expenses (note 24)

-

-

60,911,116

Credit provisions (note 9)

-

-

(7,730,890)

Provisions for insurance policy reserves (notes 3 and 30)

-

Change in unrealized losses
(gains) on financial
instruments

3,023,687

Net income

(320,552)

-

Capital surplus transferred
to capital stock

494,451

Change in cumulative
foreign currency
translation adjustments

(48,954,392)

Other miscellaneous expenses (notes 3 and 30)

-

-

2,738,530

Excess interest expenses (note 8)

Adjustments for change
in subsidiaries' special
reserve

23,603,085

Total

215,854,060

-

16,132,445

Service charges

90,000,000

-

49,341,607

Government grant income
Other miscellaneous income

Balance as of January 1,
2008

Additional paid-in Unappropriated
capital
retained earnings

Cumulative
foreign currency Unrealized gain
translation
(loss) on financial
adjustments
instruments

Change in unrealized
increments on
revaluation

Service fees
Gains on disposal of properties, plant, and equipment (note 29)

Common stock

Unrealized
increments on
revaluation

$

7,123,945

$

7,123,945

$

7,123,945

Attributable to:
Parent company shareholders
Minority interest

-

Before
income
tax
Basic earnings per share (note 27)
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$

0.78

After
income
tax
0.79

Taiwan Financial Holdings Annual Report 2008

53

Financial status

TAIWAN FINANCIAL HOLDING CO., LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

TAIWAN FINANCIAL HOLDING CO., LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2008

December 31, 2008

(expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Consolidated total income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
cash ﬂows provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Credit provisions
Adjustments for valuation of
available-for-sale assets
Provisions for reserves
Asset impairment loss
Discount on long-term bond investment
Unpaid recognized pension expense
Loss on disposal of financial assets
Gain on disposal of fixed assets and
non-operating assets
Cash dividends received in excess of gains
on equity investments recognized using
the equity method
Reclassification of accumulated
depreciation
Loss on write-off of other assets
Increase in financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Decrease in bills and bonds purchased
under resell agreements
Decrease in receivables
Deferred income tax
Decrease in other financial assets
Decrease in other assets
Increase in bills and bonds sold under
repurchase agreements
Increase in financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Increase in payables
Increase in other financial liabilities
Increase in other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating
activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Increase in due from Central Bank
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$

7,123,945

1,387,983
1,598,254
2,606,912
(5,130,930)
1,823,346
(1,257,483)
317,403
43,559
(2,720,854)

368,402
(2,249)
1,119
(13,842,075)
940,479
3,836,347
(937,492)
6,734,916
327,808
3,580,928
4,215,428
2,104,434
136,891
38,318,191
51,575,262
(370,276,268)

(expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, unless otherwise specified)

(1)

Decrease in available-for-sale financial
assets
Decrease in debt investments without
quoted prices in active markets
Increase in held-to-maturity financial
assets
Increase in loans
Increase in real estate investment
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets and

633,235
915,211
(10,870,399)
(73,953,730)
(93,912)

non-operating assets
Purchase of fixed assets and
non-operating assets
Increase in intangible assets
Increase in other financial assets
Increase in other assets
Net cash used in investing activities

4,366,335
(1,033,962)
(510,995)
(2,849,787)
(7,741,641)
(461,415,913)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Decrease in due to Central Bank and other
banks
Increase in deposits
Increase in other financial liabilities
Increase in other liabilities
Cash dividends
Net cash provided by financing activities
Exchange effect
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
Supplemental disclosure of cash ﬂow
information:
Interest paid
Income tax paid
Non-cash investing and financing
activities:
Unrealized increments on revaluation
Cumulative foreign currency translation
adjustments
Unrealized loss on financial instruments
Decrease in additional paid-in capital

(63,925,017)
466,383,659
(234,074)
778,409
(4,447,566)
398,555,411
2,096
(11,283,144)

$

91,388,105
80,104,961

$
$

63,723,736
487,567

$

15,496

$
$
$

(41,967)
(20,112,035)
(320,552)

Organization and Business
1) Taiwan Finance Holding Co., Ltd.
On January 1, 2008, Taiwan Financial Holding Co., Ltd. (the Company) was incorporated in accordance with the Act of
Taiwan Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
The Company engages mainly in investing and managing investee companies. The investing business follows the
Financial Holding Company Act.
As of December 31, 2008, there were 8,675 employees in the Company and its subsidiaries.
2) The consolidated subsidiaries
Bank of Taiwan (BOT) was established on May 20, 1946. BOT became a legal entity in 1985 in accordance with the
Banking Act of the Republic of China, and transformed into a corporate entity starting from July 1, 2003. BOT became a
public company on September 16, 2004.
BOT merged with the Central Trust of China effective on July 1, 2007. The Central Trust of China was the dissolved
company, and BOT was the surviving company. BOT is engaged in the following business:
1. all commercial banking operations allowed under the Banking Law;
2. international banking operations;
3. all kinds of savings and trust business;
4. overseas branch operations authorized by the respective foreign governments; and
5. other operations authorized by the central government authorities.
BankTaiwan Life Insurance Co., Ltd. (BTLI) was the life insurance department of BOT and separated from BOT on
January 2, 2008, with net assets $5 billion yielded by BOT as its owner's equity. Its main businesses are life insurance
and related businesses.
BankTaiwan Securities, Co., Ltd. (BTS) was the securities department of BOT and separated from BOT on January 2,
2008, with net assets $3 billion yielded by BOT as its owner's equity. Its main businesses include securities business
and auxiliary futures trading services.

(2)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the Consolidated Companies) have been prepared in the local
currency and in Chinese. The financial statements are the English translation of the Chinese version prepared and used in
the Republic of China. If there is any conﬂict between, or any difference in the interpretation of, the English and Chinese
language financial statements, the Chinese version shall prevail.
The Company prepared the accompanying financial statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the
Preparation of Financial Reports by Financial Holding Companies and accounting principles generally accepted in the
Republic of China. Significant accounting policies are as follows:
1) Principles of consolidation
The consolidation of financial statements is made in accordance with the requirements of the "Regulations Governing
the Preparation of Financial Reports by Financial Holding Companies" and ROC Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (ROC SFAS) No. 7 "Consolidated Financial Statements". All material inter-company transactions have been
eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.
The following entities have been included in the consolidated financial statements:
Name of the investor

Name of the subsidiary

Business

Shareholding percentage
December 31, 2008

The Company

BOT

Banking

100.00%

The Company

BTLI

Life Insurance

100.00%

The Company

BTS

Securities

100.00%
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2) General accounting policies
The Consolidated Companies are government-owned enterprises, and their accounting practices mainly follow the
Budget Law, Account Settlement Law, Uniform Regulations on Accounting Systems for Banks Governed by the MoF,
and uniform regulations on accounting systems for banks issued by the MoF. The annual financial statements are
audited by the Ministry of Audit (the MoA) to ensure that the Consolidated Companies comply with the budget approved
by the Legislative Yuan. The financial statements become final only after such an audit by the MoA.
3) Use of estimates
The preparation of the accompanying financial statements requires management of the Consolidated Companies to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting periods. Actual results could differ from these estimates.
4) Foreign currency transactions
The foreign currency transactions of the Consolidated Companies are recorded in New Taiwan Dollars at the rates of
exchange in effect when the transactions occurred. Gains or losses resulting from adjustments or settlements of foreign
currency assets and liabilities are reﬂected in the accompanying statements of income. Foreign currency assets and
liabilities at the balance sheet date are translated at exchange rates on that date announced by the Central Bank (CBC
closing rates). Any exchange differences resulting from long-term equity investments are recorded as cumulative foreign

5)

6)

7)

8)
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currency translation adjustment, a separate component of stockholders' equity, and exchange differences resulting from
other foreign currency assets and liabilities are reﬂected in the statement of income.
The financial statements of overseas operating entities reported in functional currencies are translated into New Taiwan
Dollars at the exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date, with the exception of stockholders' equity, which is
translated at historical rates. Translation differences resulting from the translation of these financial statements into New
Taiwan Dollars are recorded as cumulative translation adjustment, a separate component of stockholders' equity.
Asset impairment
The Consolidated Companies adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 35 (SFAS No. 35) "Impairment
of Assets". In accordance with SFAS No. 35, the Consolidated Companies assess at each balance sheet date whether
there is any indication that an asset (individual asset or cash-generating unit) other than goodwill may have been
impaired. If any such indication exists, the Consolidated Companies estimate the recoverable amount of the asset. The
Consolidated Companies recognize impairment loss for an asset whose carrying value is higher than the recoverable
amount.
The Consolidated Companies reverse an impairment loss recognized in prior periods for assets other than goodwill if
there is any indication that the impairment loss recognized no longer exists or has decreased. The carrying value after
the reversal should not exceed the recoverable amount or the depreciated or amortized balance of the assets assuming
no impairment loss was recognized in prior periods.
The Consolidated Companies assess the cash-generating unit to which goodwill, intangible assets whose useful lives
cannot be estimated, and unused intangible assets are allocated on an annual basis and recognize an impairment loss
on the carrying value in excess of the recoverable amount.
Significant commitments and contingencies
If loss from commitments and contingencies is considered highly likely and the amount can be reasonably estimated,
then the loss is recognized currently. Otherwise, commitments and contingencies are only disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.
Share swap
The Company complies with Interpretation (96) No. 344 issued by the Accounting Research and Development
Foundation for share swaps.
If a company changes into a holding company through share swap and the nature of the change can be categorized as
reorganization, the equity of the holding company should equal the original company's book value of net assets. The
holding company recognizes paid-in capital including par value as capital stock, the amounts of the stockholders' equity
accounts relating to assets and liabilities (such as cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments and unrealized
increments on revaluation) in the original accounts, and the others as additional paid-in capital.
Financial instruments
The Consolidated Companies account for financial assets in accordance with ROC SFAS No. 34 "Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement", under which financial assets are classified into one of following categories: measured at

fair value though profit or loss, available-for-sale, held-to-maturity, carried at cost, and debt investments without quoted
price in active markets.
Financial instruments held by the Consolidated Companies are recorded on the trading date (except for bonds and
funds, which are recorded on the settlement date) and initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs, except for
financial instruments held for trading purposes, which are initially recognized at fair value only.
Subsequent to their initial recognition, the financial instruments held by the Consolidated Companies are classified
according to the purpose of holding as follows:
1. An instrument is classified as at fair value through profit or loss if it is held for trading or is designated as such upon
initial recognition. Derivatives that do not meet the criteria for hedge accounting are classified as financial assets or
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value, and changes therein are recognized in profit or loss.
(a) Bought and held principally for the purpose of selling them in the near term. Derivatives held by the Consolidated
Companies, other than hedging securities, are classified in this category.
(b) Financial assets or liabilities may be designated as financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or
loss to eliminate measurement mismatches for items that naturally offset each other.
2. Available-for-sale financial assets are recorded at fair value, and any change in market value is adjusted against
shareholders' equity. Impairment loss is recognized when there is objective evidence of impairment. If there is
objective evidence that the impairment loss recognized has decreased in a subsequent period, the decline in
impairment loss is adjusted against shareholders' equity.
3. Held-to-maturity financial assets are recorded at amortized cost. Impairment loss is recognized when there is
objective evidence of impairment. If the impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is
reversed through profit and loss. The carrying value after the reversal should not exceed the realizable amount or the
depreciated or amortized balance of the assets assuming no impairment loss was recognized.
4. Financial assets are carried at cost if their fair values are not available. Impairment loss is recognized if there is
objective evidence of impairment, and this recognized amount is non-reversible.
5. Debt investments without quoted price in active markets are recorded at amortized cost. Impairment loss is
recognized when there is objective evidence of impairment. The carrying value after the reversal should not exceed the
realizable amount or the depreciated or amortized balance of the assets assuming no impairment loss was recognized.
9) Hedge accounting
Financial instruments held by the Consolidated Companies which meet all the criteria for applying hedge accounting are
treated with fair value hedge accounting. Gains or losses on a hedging instrument resulting from fair-value revaluation
or exchange rate variation are recognized through profit or loss in the current year immediately. Gains or losses on
a hedged item arising from the exposures to targeted risks is reflected in the face value of that hedged item and
recognized through profit or loss in the current year immediately.
10) Financial derivatives
Derivative financial instruments refer to transactions such as forward contracts, interest swaps, cross currency swaps,
asset swaps and options that are engaged in by the Consolidated Companies in foreign exchange, interest rate and
capital markets. In addition to their application in hedge accounting, derivative financial instruments are for trading
purposes. Derivative financial instruments for trading purposes are involved in creating markets, serving customers and
other related arbitrage activities.
Derivative financial instruments for trading purposes are assessed by the fair value method. Any relevant net present
value created shall be recognized as current gain or loss. Fair value refers to the formal transaction price fully recognized
and agreed by both parties. The fair value generally is the trading price in an active market. If there is no trading price
available, the fair value should be estimated by a valuation method or model.
The right of set-off of derivative financial instruments measured by the fair value method is enforceable by law. In net
settlement, financial assets are offset with liabilities and disclosed in net amount.
11) Repo and reverse repo transactions involving bill and bond investment or debt
Repo and reverse repo bond transactions are the sale or purchase of a bond coupled with an agreement to repurchase
or resell the same or substantially identical bond at a stated price. Such transactions are treated as collateral for
financing transactions and not as the sale or purchase of trading securities. The related interest revenue or expenses are
recorded on an accrual basis.
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12) Pecuniary and securities financing and refinancing
Pecuniary finance represents loans to investors for the purchase of securities and is recorded as receivables from
pecuniary finance. Such loans are secured by the securities purchased by the investors. These securities are not
reﬂected in the financial statements of the subsidiary BTS. The investors may redeem the collateral securities upon
repayment of the loans.
Securities finance represents securities lent to investors and is affected by lending to securities investors securities
in custody that are received from pecuniary finance or borrowed from securities finance companies when necessary.
Such securities finance is not reﬂected in the financial statements of the subsidiary BTS. The investors' deposits for
borrowing securities are held by the subsidiary BTS as collateral and recorded under securities finance margin deposits
received. In addition, investors are required to deposit the proceeds from sales of borrowed securities. Such deposits
are accounted for as payables for securities financing.
Pecuniary refinancing represents loans from securities finance companies when the subsidiary BTS lacks sufficient funds
to perform pecuniary financing. These loans are recorded as refinance borrowings.
Securities refinancing represents securities borrowed from securities finance companies when the subsidiary BTS
does not have sufficient securities to perform securities financing. For securities refinancing, the subsidiary BTS pays
margin deposits to securities finance companies. These margin deposits are recorded as refinance margin deposits.
The subsidiary BTS also provides securities investors' proceeds from selling borrowed securities to securities finance
companies as collateral and records them under receivables from securities refinance.
13) Loans
Loans are recorded by the amount of outstanding principal, with unearned income excluded. Interest income is
recognized on an accrual basis using the interest method.
Recording of interest receivable of loans would be suspended if either of the following conditions is met:
1. Collection of payment of principal or interest accrued is considered highly unlikely; or,
2. Payment of principal or interest accrued is over 6 months past due.
Interest revenue is recognized upon receipt of interest for the period when recording of accrued interest is suspended.
14) Allowance for doubtful accounts
For the subsidiary BOT, all loans are recorded as the actual amount lent out and reported at their outstanding principal
balances net of any provisions for doubtful accounts. Adequate allowance for doubtful accounts is provided by
assessing the balance at the end of the accounting period of loans, accounts receivable, non-accrual accounts, and
guarantee reserve.
Based on past experience, BOT records allowance for doubtful accounts by assessing country risk and potential risk of
the overall claim portfolio. In addition, in accordance with the "Regulations of the Procedures for Banking Institutions to
Evaluate Assets and Deal with Non-Performing and Past-Due Loans", the management evaluates the expected default
probabilities of specific claims and records an allowance for doubtful accounts.
The subsidiary BOT classifies all loans at five levels. The sum of the product of the remaining balance at each level and
the corresponding percentage is the minimum amount for recording allowance for doubtful accounts.
For the subsidiary BOT, non-accrual loans and accounts receivable—non-accrual account deemed uncollectible are
written off upon approval of the board of directors. The recovery of written-off loans is accounted for under the reversal
of the allowance for doubtful accounts.
The subsidiary BTLI assesses the allowance for doubtful accounts according to the expected recovery probabilities of all
kinds of loans and receivables and the "Regulations on the Procedures for Insurance Institutions to Evaluate Assets and
Deal with Non-Performing and Past-Due Loans" issued by the Ministry of Finance.
15) Investment under equity method
Long-term investments in which the Company and its subsidiaries have more than 20% of the investee's voting shares
or are able to exercise significant inﬂuence over the investee's operating and financial policies are accounted for by the
equity method.
The difference between investment cost and underlying equity in net assets shall be accounted for under Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 5 "Long-term Investments under Equity Method". If the differences come from
assets that can be depreciated, depleted or amortized, then an investor company shall amortize such differences over
the estimated remaining economic lives. If the differences come from discrepancies between the carrying amounts of
assets and their fair market values, then an investor company shall offset all unamortized differences when conditions
causing such over- or under-valuation are no longer present. When the investment cost exceeds the fair value of
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identifiable net assets acquired, the excess should be recorded as goodwill. Goodwill shall not be amortized and shall
be evaluated on each balance sheet date when there is any indication that goodwill may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, the Company estimates the impairment loss on goodwill. When the fair value of identifiable net assets
acquired exceeds the cost, the difference should be assigned to non-current assets acquired (except for financial assets
not under equity method, assets to be disposed of, deferred tax assets, or prepaid pension or other retirement benefit
cost) proportionate to their respective fair values. If these assets are all reduced to zero value, any remaining excess
should be recognized as extraordinary gain.
Gain or loss on disposal of long-term equity investment is calculated based on the difference between selling price and
book value. The capital surplus arising from long-term equity investment is adjusted to profit and loss based on the
percentage sold.
The shares of the Company held by a subsidiary should be calculated in compliance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 30 "Accounting for Treasury Stock". Unrealized gains or losses from transactions between
the Company subsidiaries should be deferred. Deferred gains or losses derived from transactions involving depreciable
or amortizable assets are amortized over their useful lives; others should be recognized upon realization.
16) Fixed assets
Land is stated at acquisition cost, which can be revaluated in accordance with related laws. Reserve for land
appreciation tax is allocated and recorded as other liabilities. During a land transfer, both land revaluation increments
and the reserves for land revaluation increment tax should be transferred with the acquisition cost of such land.
Fixed assets other than land are assessed based on acquisition cost, including capitalization of any interest accrued in
obtaining such assets before reaching usable condition. Major additions, improvements and renewals are capitalized,
whereas maintenance and repairs are expensed when occurred. Fixed assets without use value or left unused should
be reclassified as idle assets, where the cost, cumulative depreciation and cumulative impairment of such assets are all
transferred to depreciation and impairment of idle assets.
Depreciation of fixed assets is by the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets. The
useful lives of leasehold improvements are the shorter of the lease period or service life. Upon reaching its useful life, if it
is still in use, a depreciable asset can have its remaining useful life re-estimated and depreciation expense can continue
to be allocated over its residual value.
In compliance with Accounting Research and Development Foundation Interpretation (97) Ji-Mi-Zih 340, the
Consolidated Companies have recorded the estimated dismantlement or restoration obligation for a fixed asset while it
is not used for producing inventory as the cost of such asset since November 20, 2008. Every single part of the fixed
asset that is significant should be depreciated individually.
The Consolidated Companies re-evaluate the remaining useful life, depreciation method and residual value of each fixed
asset at the end of each accounting period. Changes in those elements are accounted for as changes in accounting
estimate.
The estimated useful lives of fixed assets are as follows:
Land improvement

5 to 15 years

Buildings

8 to 55 years

Machinery and equipment

2 to 20 years

Transportation equipment

2 to 12 years

Other equipment

3 to 10 years

Leasehold improvements

5 years

Gains or losses on the disposal of fixed assets are recorded as non-operating income or loss.
17) Intangible assets
The Consolidated Companies adopted SFAS No. 37 "Intangible Assets". In accordance with SFAS No. 37, intangible
assets are recorded at cost except for donation from the government, which is measured at fair value. Subsequent to
their initial recognition, their book values are their cost plus their incremental value that resulted from revaluation minus
accumulated amortization and impairment loss.
Amortization is computed using the straight-line method. The Consolidated Companies should revaluate the residual
value, estimated useful lives, and amortization method at least once every year. Changes in the above factors will be
regarded as changes in accounting estimate. The estimated useful lives of major intangible assets are as follows:
Computer software

3 to 5 years
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At the end of each accounting period, the Consolidated Companies evaluate the residual value, the useful life and the
method of amortization. Changes in those elements are considered changes in accounting estimate.
Other assets-statutory deposits
In accordance with the ROC Insurance Law, the insurance subsidiary should deposit in the Central Bank of China an
amount equal to 15% of its issued capital as guarantee for its insurance business. The insurance subsidiary made
these deposits in the form of government bonds and financial bills, and such deposits were approved by the Ministry of
Finance.
Other assets-non-operating assets
The cost of non-operating assets are stated at the lower of net realizable value or book value. The cumulative
depreciation and impairment of those non-operating assets are also transferred to non-operating assets. Depreciation
expense would continue to be incurred over the remaining estimated useful lives of the non-operating assets.
Other assets-collateral assumed
Collateral and assets received are stated at the net realizable value: the amount the Consolidated Companies receive
when debtors cannot meet their obligations and the collateral and residuals are auctioned off. Any discrepancy from
the initial claim will be reﬂected as credit loss. Gains or losses on disposition are included in current earnings. The
Consolidated Companies recognize impairment loss on collateral on the balance sheet date if the book value of collateral
exceeds net fair value.
Due to other banks, deposits and remittances
Deposits are recorded at the contracted principal amount or the expected maturity value.

and pension profit or loss, amortized over the average remaining length of service of employees by the straight-line
method.
25) Income tax
The income tax of the Consolidated Companies is calculated in accordance with SFAS No. 22 "Income Taxes". Deferred
income tax is determined based on differences between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities,
using enacted tax rates in effect during the years in which the differences are expected to be reversed. The income tax
effects due to taxable temporary differences are recognized as deferred income tax liabilities. The income tax effects
due to deductible temporary differences, utilization of loss carryforwards, and income tax assets is evaluated, and a
valuation allowance is recognized accordingly.
The adjustments of income tax for the prior year are recorded as income tax expenses in the current year.
Since the Consolidated Companies are a government-owned enterprise, income tax should be determined by the
Ministry of Audit.
In accordance with the Financial Holding Company Act, Article 49, the Company has adopted the Company as the
taxpayer to file a consolidated corporate income tax return starting from 2008. Other tax matters should be handled
by each entity of the Consolidated Companies. When preparing its financial statements, the Company accounts for its
income tax in conformity with SFAS No. 22 "Income Taxes". However, the Company also adjusts the related income tax
balance in a reasonable and systematic way to reﬂect the differences computed for purposes of filing a consolidated
corporate income tax return with the Company as the taxpayer. The adjustments resulting from using the Company as
the taxpayer to file a consolidated corporate income tax return are recorded under receivable from (payable to) affiliated

22) Reserve for operations
In accordance with the regulations of the respective authorities, reserve for operations includes provisions for
guarantees, losses on breach of contract, etc., and such provisions should be recognized by the banking, insurance and
securities subsidiaries.
23) Separate accounts-insurance instruments
The insurance subsidiary is engaged in selling investment-type insurance commodities. The payment of premiums
(net of administrative expenses) is recorded in a separate account which should only be used in a way agreed to by
the insured. The assets of separate accounts are valued at market price on the balance sheet date, and the Company
follows the related rules and financial accounting standards in the ROC to determine the net asset value. In accordance
with accounting practices in the insurance industry, the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses are recorded as
"separate account-insurance instrument assets", "separate account-insurance instrument liabilities", "separate accountinsurance instrument revenue" and "separate account-insurance instrument expenses", respectively.
24) Pension
Retirement, relief and severance of employees of the subsidiaries BOT, LBOT, BTS and BTLI were calculated based on
service years until December 31, 1981. From January 1, 1982, to April 30, 1997, they were dealt with according to "The
Regulations on Employee's Retirement, Relief and Severance for State-run Financial and Insurance Enterprises Owned
by the Ministry of Finance". The Consolidated Companies contributed 4% to 8.5% of salaries as prior service cost; in
addition, employees contributed 3% of total monthly salaries to a pension fund each month. After May 1, 1997, when
the Labor Standards Law was implemented, the length of service with the Consolidated Companies is calculated in
accordance with the formula for benefit payments set forth in the Labor Standards Law. For cleaning and maintenance
workers, service costs equivalent to 8% of total monthly salaries are accrued over the workers' careers based on plan
benefit formulas. The workers' pension fund is deposited in an account with the Consolidated Companies for the
purpose of paying pension benefits to the workers when retiring.
The Labor Pension Act of the R.O.C. ("the Act"), which adopts a defined contribution scheme, is effective from July
1, 2005. In accordance with the Act, employees of the Consolidated Companies may elect to be subject to either
the Act, and maintain their service years before the enforcement of the Act, or the pension mechanism of the Labor
Standards Law. For employees subject to the Act, the Consolidated Companies shall make monthly contributions to
the employees' individual pension accounts of 6% of the employees' monthly wages. The related net pension cost is
recorded in current income based on the actual contribution made to the pension funds.
Since 1997, the defined benefit pension plan has used the balance sheet date as the measurement date to complete
an actuarial valuation of accumulated payment obligation is excess of pension fund assets at fair value. At the balance
sheet date, the Consolidated Companies recognize minimum pension liabilities and, based on the pension plan's
actuarial liabilities, record net pension cost, including current service cost and transitional net assets, prior service cost,

parties.
26) Revenue recognition
1. Interest income from the Company's banking loans is accrued on the unpaid principal balance in accordance with the
terms of the loans. No interest revenue is recognized on loans and other credits that are classified as nonperforming
loans until the interest is collected. Interest income from bailout and loan extension in recorded as deferred income in
accordance with the government authorities' provision. No interest revenue from the foregoing sources is recognized
until the interest is collected. Service income is recognized on an accrual basis.
A cash dividend is recognized as revenue on the ex-dividend date, while a stock dividend can only be booked as an
increase in shares rather than as revenue in accordance with ROC generally accepted accounting principles.
2. For BTLI, revenue is recognized in accordance with the requirements of ROC Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (ROC SFAS) No. 32 "Accounting for Revenue Recognition" except for "insurance income". The direct written
premiums are recognized when the policy becomes effective, and policy-related expenses, such as commission
expenses and agency expenses, are recognized on a cash basis. At the end of each balance sheet date, adjustments
are made on an accrual basis. The direct written premium for unearned premium reserves for life insurance liabilities,
special reserves, and loss provisions are recognized in order to meet the matching principle.
3. For the subsidiary BTS, brokerage commissions, profit or loss from trading securities, and relevant brokerage
securities transaction charges are recognized on the dealing date. Interest income or expenses of margin loans,
securities financing and refinancing, bonds purchased under agreement to resell and sold under agreement to
repurchase, and brokerage commission for introducing futures contracts are recognized during the transaction periods
on an accrual basis. Underwriting commissions are recognized when collected, and underwriting transaction fees are
recognized when the contract becomes effective.
27) Earnings per share
Earnings per share are calculated by dividing net income after tax by the weighted-average number of shares
outstanding in each period.

18)

19)

20)

21)
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(3)

Reasons for and Effects of Accounting Changes
The "Principles of Preparing Financial Statements of Life and Non-life Insurance Enterprises" were amended by letter No.
09602505891 of the Insurance Bureau, and the "Regulations Governing the Procedures for Life and Non-life Insurance
Enterprises to Evaluate Provision for Premium Reserves" were amended by letter No. 09602505761 of the Insurance Bureau.
As of December 31, 2008, the effects of those changes on insurance subsidiaries' financial statements were as follows:
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2) As of December 31, 2008, 60% of the deposits collected on behalf of government institutions from government
organizations amounting to $9,984,742 were placed with the Central Bank and not used, according to the
regulations.
3) BOT, in accordance with the Central Bank's System for Accounting and Allocation of Bank Funds, adopted the RTGS
(Real-Time Gross Settlement) clearing system. The purchased CDs (certificates of deposit) serve as the security for
overdrafts. As of December 31, 2008, $20,000,000 in negotiable time certificates were provided as the security for
overdrafts. The secured credit limit can be modified at any time; those credits not used at the closing day may still
serve as liquid reserves.

December 31, 2008
After adoption

Before adoption

Unearned premium reserves

369,147

Special reserves

478,885

Reserve for insufficient premiums

862,830

Reinsurance premiums expenses

77,780

77,780

48,339,542

48,339,542

Provisions for insurance policy reserves

369,147
1,341,715
-

The effect on the accounts and amounts of the consolidated financial statements of the Consolidated Companies from the
above "Principles of Preparing Financial Statements of Life and Non-life Insurance Enterprises" was as follows:

(6)

December 31, 2008

December 31, 2008
After adoption

Trading financial assets

Before adoption

Commercial paper

Liabilities:
Reserves for operation and liabilities

1,710,862

1,710,862

Provisions for insurance policy reserves

77,780

77,780

48,339,542

48,339,542

December 31, 2008
$

Foreign currency on hand

4,966,174

Bank deposits

25,684,230

Notes and checks for clearing

8,921,826

Placement with banks

30,548,484
$

(5)

9,984,247

80,104,961

Due from Central Bank and Call Loans to Banks
December 31, 2008
Call loans to banks

$

New-Taiwan-Dollar-denominated deposit reserve-checking account, reserves for deposits-foreigncurrency-denominated deposits, etc.

8,901,154

Convertible bonds

4,033,869
5,702

Foreign government bonds

6,574,952

Trading securities

1,863,267

Beneficiary securities

1,313,221
61,260,941

Derivative financial instruments

6,857,320

Financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss:
Foreign government and financial bonds
Total

10,537,348
$

78,655,609

For details of the valuation of financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss, please see note 31, "Information
on Financial Instruments".

(7)

Bills and Bonds Purchased / Sold under Repurchase Agreements and Resell Agreements
As of December 31, 2008, the details of bonds and bills purchased / sold under agreements to resell (repurchase) were as
follows:
December 31, 2008
Bills and bonds purchased under resell agreements:
Government bonds

$

300,000

Negotiable certificates of deposit

700,410

Treasury bills

591,527

Commercial paper

101,498,807

10,729,629
$

12,321,566

$

19,128,355

31,407,581
Bills and bonds sold under repurchase agreements:

New-Taiwan-Dollar-denominated required deposit reserve

51,025,150

Deposits in Central Bank
$

Government bonds

812,309,742

Treasury bills

996,241,280

Commercial paper

1) The required deposit reserves are determined monthly at prescribed rates based on the average balances of
customers' New-Taiwan-Dollar-denominated deposits. The required deposit reserve is subject to withdrawal
restrictions, but reserve-checking account and foreign-currency-denominated deposit reserves may be withdrawn
anytime and are non-interest-earning.
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34,027,889

Treasury bonds
Corporate and financial bonds

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on hand and petty cash

2,574,117
1,966,770

Listed stocks, beneficiary certificates and monetary instruments

For prior years, the subsidiary BTLI recognized premium and interest income regarding overdue premiums only when
applicants repaid the premium loans. In order to follow the practice among insurance companies, BTLI recognizes its
premium and interest income when the premium loans occur starting from January 1, 2008. For the year ended December
31, 2008, the adoption of this change increased its premium and interest income by $1,167,444, including premium and
interest income of $1,023,303 belonging to the prior years ended December 31, 2007.
The subsidiary BTLI used to be the insurance department of BOT and now is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
Therefore, BTLI is also a government-owned enterprise. Its accounting practice mainly follows the Budget Law, the Account
Settlement Law, the Audit Act, and the regulations of related laws. The retained earnings become final only after an audit
by the Ministry of Audit. BTLI recognized this accounting change as other miscellaneous income of $1,023,303 in the
accompanying statement of income.

(4)

$

Government bonds

Gains or losses:
Net insurance business income

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss, Net

754,219
368,646
$

20,251,220
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(8)

Receivables, Net

Details of allowance for doubtful accounts were as follows:
December 31, 2008

December 31, 2008
Accounts receivable

$

Long-term receivable

1,031,595
43,647,047

Accrued revenue

379,472

Interest receivable

18,841,215

Insurance receivable

273,909

Discounts and loans

11,800,604

Other financial assets
Total

293,114
131,556

$

12,225,274

Details of bad debt expense were as follows:
December 31, 2008

4,921

Refundable income tax

1,390,045

Provision for bad debt

Notes receivable and acceptance notes receivable

2,788,871

Factoring receivable-without recourse

1,298,819

As of December 31, 2008, the amount of loans with non-accumulating interest revenue of the Consolidated Companies
was $18,125,749, which was booked as other assets-nonperforming loans. As of December 31, 2008, the estimation of
non-accumulating interest revenue was $1,898,177.
For the year ended December 31, 2008, the Consolidated Companies did not write off any loan without legal proceedings
being initiated.
Please see note 31, "Information on Financial Instruments", for the valuation of loans granted by the Consolidated
Companies.

612,571

Other receivables

35,675,811

Subtotal

105,944,276

Less: allowance for doubtful accounts

293,114

Total

$

105,651,162

For the year ended December 31, 2008, BOT paid a premium savings account interest rate in excess of the regular rate of
1.7815%, and the resulting interest expense (recorded as other non-interest income) was $7,730,890, due to executing the
government premium savings policy.
As of December 31, 2008, BOT, instead of the government, had paid premium savings interest expenses amounting to
$43,647,047 (booked in long-term receivable).

Loans-Net
December 31, 2008
Discounts and import-export negotiations

$

Short-term loans and overdrafts

3,145,217
428,121,859

Short-term secured loans and secured overdrafts

84,195,546

Insurance loans

5,774,269

Medium-term loans

560,281,674

Medium-term secured loans

232,219,586

Long-term loans

194,621,930

Long-term secured loans

482,982,969

Nonperforming loans

17,994,258

Subtotal

2,009,337,308
$

1,997,536,704

Movements of allowance for doubtful accounts for the year ended December 31, 2008, were as follows:
2008
Risk of specific
uncollectible debts
Beginning balance

$

12,467,455

Provision for doubtful accounts

Country risk
897,899

Potential risk of total
debts
1,065,320

14,430,674

907,557

1,482,943
(1,088,268)

-

(5,756,195)

Collected from write-off of debts

1,887,042

23,210

-

1,910,252

Foreign exchange translation
adjustment

-

42,289

-

42,289

Ending balance

$

10,594,127

1,358,073

(792,246)

Total

(4,667,927)

Write-off

$

273,074

1,598,254

1,598,254

(10) Available-for-sale Financial Assets, Net
December 31, 2008
Domestic:
Negotiable certificates of deposit

$

Government bonds

29,426,373
50,647,713

Corporate bonds

8,564,243

Financial bonds

2,157,287

Real estate securitization

1,683,334

Financial asset securitization

996,744

Listed stocks and beneficiary certificates

39,060,313

Preferred stocks

1,023,285
133,559,292

Foreign:
Foreign bonds

44,016,736

Beneficiary certificates

441,235

Real estate securitization

360,605

Less: accumulated impairment

(2,850,571)
41,968,005

11,800,604

Less: allowance for doubtful accounts
Total

64

$

Due from other insurers

Margin loans receivable

(9)

Receivables

Total

$

175,527,297

1) Please see note 31, "Information on Financial Instruments", for valuation of available-for-sale financial assets.
2) CSBC Corporation, Taiwan (CSBC) completed its privatization by means of an IPO (Initial Public Offer) on December
18, 2008, and the initial price was $13.4 (dollars) per share. The Consolidated Companies hold 1,612,980 shares of
CSBC, the book value of which was $14,750. After revaluating at fair value, the Consolidated Companies transferred
the shares from “financial assets stated at cost-non-current" to "available-for-sale financial assets-non-current"
with book value of $21,614.
3) BOT held the following financial instruments: the foreign financial bonds of Kaupthing Bank, Glitnir Bank and
Washington Mutual Bank, the foreign corporate bonds of Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc., and the financial asset
securitization of E. Sun Bank 2007-1 Collateralized Bond obligations Special Purpose Trust Class B1 Beneficiary
Certificates, whose book value amounted to $2,949,052. As these financial instruments had been impaired, BOT
then recognized impairment losses amounting to $2,850,571.

12,225,274
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(11) Held-to-maturity Investment Assets, Net
December 31, 2008
Domestic:
Financial bonds

$

16,016,154

Corporate bonds

25,868,376

Commercial paper

8,704,625

Government bonds

17,862,325

Real estate securitization

38,385

Financial asset securitization

25,167

Preferred stocks

1. The financial statements of some of the Consolidated Companies' investee companies under the equity method were
audited by other auditors, and related gains recognized on such investments were $2,652,306 for the year ended
December 31, 2008.
2. The investment loss recognized on Kaohsiung Ammonium Sulfate Co., Ltd. amounting to $14,163 was based on its
unaudited financial statements.
3. Since Kaohsiung Ammonium Sulfate Co., Ltd. was in the process of liquidation and the liquidators and supervisors
were appointed by the Ministry of Economic Affairs, the Consolidated Companies have no control power over such
investee.
3) Details of the Consolidated Companies' recognition of unrealized increments on revaluation and cumulative
translation adjustments under stockholders' equity in 2008 were as follows:
Unrealized
increments on
revaluation
2008

291,090

Structured savings

2,500,000

Less: accumulated impairment

(504,016)
70,802,106

Foreign:
Foreign bonds

46,394,262
$

117,196,368

1) Please see note 31, "Information on Financial Instruments", for valuation of held-to-maturity investment.
2) The Consolidated Companies held Collateralized Debt Obligations (CDOs) and recognized impairment losses
amounting to $504,016.

Name of investee
Hua Nan Financial Holdings Co., Ltd.

$

Cumulative
translation
adjustments
2008

220,699

Taiwan Life Insurance Co., Ltd.

50,332

Tang Eng Iron Works Co., Ltd.

1,238
$

(8,332)
10,041
-

272,269

1,709

4) Details of the Consolidated Companies' recognition of capital surplus and unrealized losses or gains on financial
instruments under stockholders' equity in 2008 were as follows:
Unrealized losses
and gains of
financial
instruments 2008

(12) Investments under Equity Method, Net
Capital surplus
2008

December 31, 2008
Name of investee

Percentage of
Ownership (%)
Hua Nan Financial Holdings Co., Ltd.

29.36

Taiwan Life Insurance Co., Ltd.

Amount
$

28.46

Hua Nan Financial Holdings Co., Ltd.

-

1,035,485

-

(7,639)

-

(2,435,925)

Tang Eng Iron Works Co., Ltd.

21.38

1,090,467

Tai Yi Real-Estate Management Co.,

30.00

9,577

5) Details of the Consolidated Companies' cash dividends received from long-term equity investments under the equity
method in 2008 were as follows:
Name of investee

Total

Hua Nan Financial Holdings Co., Ltd.

31,125,625

2008
$

Taiwan Life Insurance Co., Ltd.

1) The initial costs of long-term equity investment under the equity method were as follows:
$

8,105,279
812,325

Kaohsiung Ammonium Sulfate Co., Ltd.

1,377,872

Tang Eng Iron Works Co., Ltd.

1,451,462

Tai Yi Real Estate Management Co., Ltd.

3,793
$

11,750,731

2) The gains or losses on long-term investments under the equity method were as follows:

$

2008
$

Taiwan Life Insurance Co., Ltd.
Kaohsiung Ammonium Sulfate Co., Ltd.

December 31, 2008
Temporary advances

$

11,092,326

Debt investments without quoted price in active markets

18,131,561

Less: accumulated impairment-debt investment without quoted price in active markets

(1,318,312)

2,655,397

Hedging derivative financial assets

(1,229,172)

Separate account-insurance assets

(506,966)

Tai Yi Real-Estate Management Co., Ltd.

(3,091)
$

45,183,149

Financial assets carried at cost

131,490

Less: allowance for doubtful accounts-nonperforming loans

(14,163)

Tang-Eng Iron Works Co., Ltd.

1,972,267

(13) Other Financial Assets, Net

Nonperforming loans

Name of Investee

1,753,060
219,207

December 31, 2008

Taiwan Life Insurance Co., Ltd.

66

$

Ltd.

Hua Nan Financial Holdings Co., Ltd.

(658,230)

Taiwan Life Insurance Co., Ltd.

2,640,474

Hua Nan Financial Holdings Co., Ltd.

(1,770,056)

Tang Eng Iron Works Co., Ltd.

91.86

Name of Investee

-

26,349,622

Kaohsiung Ammonium Sulfate Co., Ltd.

$

$

(131,490)
57,273
4,810,896

Bills purchased

22,104

Less: allowance for doubtful accounts-bills purchased
Total

(66)
$

77,978,931

902,005
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1) Please see note 31, "Information on Financial Instruments", for valuation of hedging derivative financial assets and
debt investments without quoted price in active markets.
2) On December 23, 2008, Mega International Investment Trust Co., Ltd. underwent a capital reduction, and therefore
decreased book value of "financial assets stated at cost" by $544.
3) The Consolidated Companies held foreign Collateralized Debt Obligations (CDOs), which were recorded as debt
investments without quoted price in active markets, and recognized impairment losses amounting to $1,318,312.

(14) Real Estate Investments, Net

Period

Amount

2009

$

136,435

2011

68,866

2012

21,130

2013

4,330
$

December 31, 2008
Real estate investment

$

2,210,995

$

2,003,965

Less: accumulated depreciation
Total

Cost:
Land (including revaluation increments)

$

Land improvements

68,412,775
19,345

Buildings (including revaluation increments)

14,141,305

Machinery and equipment

5,464,267

Transportation equipment

1,125,195

Miscellaneous equipment

1,159,066

Leasehold improvements

565,605

Construction in progress and prepayments for equipment

813,127

Subtotal

91,700,685

Accumulated depreciation:
Land improvement

15,981

Buildings

4,662,184

Machinery and equipment

3,648,307

Transportation equipment

810,181

Miscellaneous equipment

861,388

Leasehold improvements

494,590

Subtotal

10,492,631

Accumulated impairment
Net

167,430
$

81,040,624

The subsidiary BOT had impairment of $44,705 on June 30, 2008, in accordance with the government-published land value,
$7,687 of which was reﬂected as a decrease in unrealized increments on revaluation, and the other $37,018 was reﬂected in
the accompanying statement of income.
The subsidiary BOT has revaluated its buildings and land several times over the years. As of December 31, 2008, land had
increased by $63,556,509, and the estimated tax payable on land increment was $15,599,296 (recorded in other liabilities).
The subsidiary BTLI revaluated its buildings and land on February 4, 2009, and recognized revaluation increments of $212,411
at January 2, 2008, after approval by the National Tax Administration on March 12, 2009. The fixed assets, real estate
investments, and unrealized revaluation increments increased by $77,482, $134,929 and $212,411, respectively, from such
revaluation.
To comply with government policy, the Consolidated Companies sold land, buildings and equipment and recognized gains
on disposal of property, plant and equipment of $2,738,530 in 2008.
As of December 31, 2008, the Consolidated Companies' fixed assets were not pledged.
As of December 31, 2008, the part of the buildings and land of the Consolidated Companies were leased out. The book
value (including revaluation increments) of the rental land was $32,619,506. Most of the rental buildings have been fully
depreciated over their useful lives. The estimated future lease revenue was as follows:
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December 31, 2008
Advance payment

$

Refundable deposits
December 31, 2008

442,260

(16) Other Assets-Net

207,030

(15) Fixed Assets, Net

211,499

2010

5,541,986
1,012,608

Operating deposits and settlement and clearing funds

329,954

Customer advance and accounts awaiting clearance

320,095

Deferred tax assets, net

1,762,994

Non-operating assets (including revaluation increments)

8,214,018

Brokering transaction debit balance, net

2,561

Collateral assumed, net

1,076,959

Others

52,753

Total

$

18,313,928

1) Advance payment
December 31, 2008
Prepaid expense

$

Prepaid tax

716,943
215,696

Prepaid dividends (for government)

3,590,127

Other prepayment

1,019,220
$

5,541,986

2) Non-operating assets, net
December 31, 2008
Land

$

Buildings

8,281,839
53,185

Miscellaneous equipment

92

Less: accumulated depreciation-buildings

19,461

accumulated impairment

101,637
$

8,214,018

The subsidiary BOT recognized reversal gains of impairment losses of $36,000 on June 30, 2008, in accordance with the
government-published land value.
3) Collateral assumed, net
December 31, 2008
Collateral assumed

$

1,097,616

$

1,076,959

Less: allowance for impairment

20,657
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(17) Due to Central Bank and Other Banks
Call loans from bank

Reserves for default losses
December 31, 2008

Reserves for trading losses

$

Reserves for guarantees

106,418,360

Postal deposits transferred

38,973,586

Reserves for labor insurance liability

Deposits from Central Bank

12,453,417

Reserves for insurance premium

Deposits from other banks

23,533,652

Total

Bank overdrafts

110,723
$

181,489,738

98,851
1,457
299,465
126,108,139
862,830
$

279,848,256

(22) Other Financial Liabilities
December 31, 2008

(18) Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Appropriated loan funds
December 31, 2008

Held-for-trading financial liabilities
Foreign exchange options

$

1,428,143

Separate account-insurance liabilities

4,810,896

Hedging derivative financial liabilities
$

Cross currency swaps

4,098,268

Interest rate swaps

1,003,272

Foreign exchange swaps

698,469
$

189,981

4,410

5,804,419

For valuation of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, please refer to note 31.

$

6,429,020

For details of hedging derivative financial liabilities on December 31, 2008, please refer to note 31.

(23) Other Liabilities
December 31, 2008
Advance collections

$

916,538

Guarantee deposits received

(19) Payables

3,687,374

Estimated tax payable on land increments

15,599,296

December 31, 2008

Temporary receipt awaiting transfer

1,234,024

$

9,358,808

Accrued pension liability

2,639,678

Advance receipts

1,469,701

Others

Accrued expense

3,100,694

Accounts payable

Interest payable

19,807,329

Banker's acceptances payable

2,633,560

Due from representative organization

33,863,716

Other payables

27,145,741
$

1,339,154
$

25,416,064

(24) Pension
The reconciliation of the plan's funded status and accrued pension liabilities was as follows:
December 31, 2008
Regular Employees

97,379,549

Regular Labor

Benefit obligation:

(20) Deposits

Vested benefit obligation
December 31, 2008

Checking account deposits

$

27,300,859

$

(325,619)

(2,923,928)

(430,072)

Accumulated benefit obligation

(7,363,694)

(755,691)

Government deposits

247,717,840

Additional benefits based on future

(2,070,022)

(259,665)

Demand deposits

176,509,848

salaries
(9,433,716)

(1,015,356)

4,964,905

854,094

(4,468,811)

(161,262)

641,123

329,478

Time deposits

602,953,837

Savings account deposits

1,877,499,880

Remittances

580,641
$

2,932,562,905

December 31, 2008
Reserves for unearned premium

$

369,147

Reserves for life insurance liability

151,422,202

Special reserves for life insurance

478,885

Reserves for claim outstanding
Reserves for operating loss

Projected benefit obligation (PBO)
Fair value of plan assets
Funding status
Unrecognized net transition obligation (assets)
Unrecognized prior year service cost

(21) Reserves for Operation and Liabilities
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(4,439,766)

Non-vested benefit obligation

75,568

Unrecognized loss (gain)
Additional minimum pension

215,032

(23,715)

1,292,519

(248,243)

(97,481)

(118,318)

liability recognized
Accrued pension liabilities

$

(2,417,618)

(222,060)

Vested benefit

$

(5,622,914)

(404,901)

131,712
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The components of net pension cost for the year 2008 were as follows:

The temporary differences, loss carryforward, and tax effects relating to deferred income tax assets were as follows:
2008
Regular Employees

Service cost

$

Interest cost
Projected return on plan assets
Net pension cost
Amortization and deferred cost

$

December 31, 2008
Regular Labor
61,828

222,574

28,896

(126,813)

(21,871)

132,645

30,413

1,025,070

99,266

Losses on valuation of financial assets-overseas

-

340,118

Foreign deferred income tax assets-loss carryforward and exchange effect

-

984,262

Deferred income tax assets:
Pension costs disallowed per tax regulation

Discount rate

2.50%

Rate of increase in future compensation

2.00%

Rate of projected return on plan assets

2.50%

2,423,880

605,970

Loss carryforward

5,014,336

1,253,584

Impairment losses on financial assets-overseas

3,403,672

850,918

164,780

4,076,047

Subtotal
Allowance for deferred income tax assets
$

$

Deferred tax benefit

653,817
(780,976)

$

(127,159)

The Consolidated Companies are subject to ROC income tax at a maximum rate of 25%. For the year ended December 31,
2008, the differences between the "expected" income tax at the statutory income tax rate and the income tax expense in the
accompanying financial statements were as follows:
$

Tax effect of interest income from short-term notes separately taxed

Deferred income tax assets-net

Gain on disposal of land
Impairment loss on financial assets

1,749,197

(447,797)

Income tax expenses of overseas branches

(502,894)
277,702

Others

1,997
(127,159)

For the year ended December 31, 2008, the major components of deferred income tax benefit were as follows:
2008
23,230

Unrealized gains on foreign exchange

395,398

535,663

Year loss incurred

Income tax payables
to National Tax
Administration
(recorded as
miscellaneous account
payables)

December 31, 2008

Estimated losses incurred in 2006

Last effective year
of tax credit

4,709,565

2016

304,771

2018

$

5,014,336

For the year ended December 31, 2008, the reconciliation of the balances of current income tax expense, deferred income
tax expense, deferred income tax assets, and income tax receivables under the provisions of SFAS No. 22 "Income Taxes"
to the related balances computed for filing combined corporate income tax returns with the Company as the taxpayer was
as follows:
2008
Current income
tax expense

(455,582)

Amount computed under SFAS No. 22

Income tax expenses of overseas branches

(555,005)

Difference adjustments

(109,697)

Amount computed for filing combined
corporate income tax return

(780,976)

-

$

Estimated losses incurred in 2008

Impairment loss on financial assets

$

535,654

-

(79,320)

Decrease in reserve for default losses

Others

Income tax receivables
from National Tax
Administration
(recorded as
miscellaneous account
receivables)

(680,566)

Allowance for deferred tax assets

$

Tax payables to
affiliated parties
(recorded as
miscellaneous account
payables)

According to "Income Basic Tax Act", losses can be used as a tax credit for taxable income in the future ten years. Details
of the existing tax credit of the Consolidated Companies as of December 31, 2008, were as follows:

(519,046)

$

1,762,994

2008

Tax-free dividends

$

$

(225,501)
249,916

Adjustments of outright purchase and sale of bills
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Tax receivables
from affiliated
parties (recorded
as miscellaneous
account receivables)

266,234

Investment gains recognized under equity method

394,906

2008

(208,644)

Tax-free earnings from OBU

959
$

BOT's income tax returns for all years through 2006 have been examined by the tax authorities.
Beginning 2008, the Company and its subsidiary BOT adopted a cobined income tax declaration to report their tax. As of
December 31, 2008, the details of receivables and payables resulting from income tax were as follows:

(87,757)

Gain on securities trading

393,947

3,836

2008

Deferred income tax benefit

2,157,900

1,575,788

Others

2008

Pension costs disallowed per tax regulation

(1,918,147)

Unrealized gains on foreign exchange

The income tax expenses for the year ended December 31, 2008, are summarized below:

Income tax benefit

41,195

Deferred income tax liabilities:

(25) Income Tax

Expected income tax expenses

$

Others

2008

Income tax expense

Income tax effect

796,664

Actuarial assumptions:

Current income tax

Amount

$

653,817
-

$

653,817

Deferred income
tax gain

Deferred income
tax assets, net

Current income tax
receivables

(780,976)

1,762,994

1,390,045

-

-

-

(780,976)

1,762,994

1,390,045
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(29) Asset Impairment Loss (Gain on Reversal of Impairment)

As of December 31, 2008, unappropriated retained earnings were as follows:
December 31, 2008
1998 and after

$

7,123,945

1) Common stock
On January 1, 2008, the Company was incorporated through a share swap and issued 9,000,000 shares of common
stock with a par value of $10. As of December 31, 2008, capital stock amounted to $90,000,000.
2) Additional paid-in capital
The Company reorganized the group members in accordance with the amendment of the Act of Taiwan Financial Holding
Co. Ltd. approved by the Legislative Yuan on November 7, 2008. On December 20, 2008, the Company underwent a
share capital reduction and increased share capital from capitalization of additional paid-in capital of $109,467,296 at
the same time. The share capital of the Company remained $90,000,000 after the capital reduction and increase. The
change in additional paid-in capital in 2008 was as follows:
Established on January 1, 2008

$

Adjustment for the change in the subsidiaries' special reserve

37,018

Other assets

(36,000)
$

$

(30) Provisions (Release) for Insurance Policy Reserves
2008
Provision for policyholders' reserve

$

(19,490)

215,854,060

Provision for insufficient premium reserve

111,495,264

2008
$

Denominator (shares in thousands)
$

After tax

6,996,786

7,123,945

9,000,000

9,000,000

0.78

0.79

(28) Net Insurance Business Income
2008
$

Reinsurance claims recovery

63,414,889
56,419

Investment-type insurance policy revenue

4,756,856

Insurance business income

68,228,164

Re-insurance expense

77,780

Direst business expense

342,373

Benefits and claims

30,023,342

Stability fund

46,954

Investment-type insurance policy expense

4,756,856

Insurance business expense

35,247,305
$

33,694,368
(89,769)

(27) Earnings per Share
Pretax

4,718,429

Provision for claim reserve

3) Legal reserve
The articles of incorporation of the Company stipulate that net income should be distributed as follows:
1. to pay income tax;
2. to offset prior years' deficit;
3. to appropriate 10% as legal reserve;
4. to appropriate 40~60% as special reserve;
5. to appropriate dividends.
The remaining balance is retained or appropriated upon approval of the board of directors.
According to the Company's articles of incorporation, cash dividend distributions cannot exceed 15% of total capital
before the legal reserve balance reaches the total amount of capital.
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1,318,312

Fixed assets

Special claim reserve release

5,429,052

Ending balance on December 31, 2008

Net revenue

Other financial assets

Total

(109,467,296)

Adjustment for non-cash share capital reduction

Gross written premiums

2,895,083
504,016

125,832

(320,552)

Used to increase share capital

Basic earnings per share (NT Dollars)

$

Held-to-maturity financial assets

(26) Stockholders' Equity

Net income (for common stockholders)

2008
Available-for-sale financial assets

$

33,710,941

(31) Information on Financial Instruments
1) Information on fair value of financial instruments
December 31, 2008
Book Value

Fair Value

Financial Assets:
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

78,655,609

78,655,609

1,997,536,704

1,997,536,704

Available-for-sale financial assets

175,527,297

175,527,297

Held-to-maturity financial assets

117,196,368

117,196,368

77,978,931

77,978,931

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

5,804,419

5,804,419

Other financial liabilities

6,429,020

6,429,020

Loans

Other financial assets

$

Financial Liabilities:

2) Methods and assumptions used by the Consolidated Companies for fair value evaluation of financial instruments
were as follows:
1. Since these instruments have short-term maturities, the book value is a reasonable basis to estimate the fair value.
This method is applied to cash and cash equivalents, due from Central Bank and call loans to banks, bills and bonds
purchased under resell agreements, receivables, other financial assets, due to Central Bank and other banks, bills and
bonds sold under repurchase agreements, payables, deposits and other liabilities.
2. When the financial assets have a public quotation from an active market, the market price is considered the fair value.
If a quoted market price is unavailable, then the fair value is determined based on a valuation model. The estimates
and assumptions of the valuation model adopted by the Consolidated Companies are identical to those adopted by
other market participants.
3. The interest on loans is calculated by a ﬂoating rate; therefore, the book value is the fair value.
4. Most deposits mature within one year. If it matures in more than one year, the interest is calculated by a ﬂoating rate.
Thus the book value is the fair value.
5. The fair value of each forward contract is determined by the discounted cash ﬂow using Reuters forward rate upon
maturity. The fair value of interest rate swaps and cross currency swaps is calculated either by the quotation from the
counterparty or by the price from Bloomberg, while the Black Scholes model is applied to evaluate the fair value of
options.
3) The fair values of the financial instruments of the Consolidated Companies which were based on the quoted market
price or a valuation model were as follows:

32,980,859
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December 31, 2008
Quoted market price

Valuation model

Financial assets:
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

$

Loans

71,798,289
-

Available-for-sale financial assets

172,574,675

1,997,536,704
2,952,622

-

117,196,368

Other financial assets

-

77,978,931

Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

-

5,804,419

Other financial liabilities

-

6,429,020

For the year ended December 31, 2008, the Consolidated Companies recognized a loss of $243,796 based on a
valuation model.
4) Financial risk information
1. Market risk-BOT
Market risk (also called "price risk") means changes such as in interest rates, exchange rates, and the prices of equity
securities and instruments which may result in a loss for BOT, either on or off the balance sheet.
In order to establish and effectively operate the Market Risk Control Mechanism, all subsidiaries, in accordance
with their cash capital and operating condition, implement appropriate market risk control in daily operations and
management procedures, such as
(a) Identifying, evaluating and analyzing (qualification/non-qualification) risks and adopting appropriate methods
(including risk hedging, risk sharing, risk reduction, and risk bearing).
(b) Each unit following the Market Risk Management Guidelines for position management, actively monitoring various
limits, and reporting to the responsible unit or the risk management department.
(c) Verifying the position data and profit or loss status with the accounting department to ensure the consistency and
completeness of data, and setting up a separate risk management unit to help control BOT’s overall market risk.
BOT utilizes the standard method for calculating market risk capital to meet the requirement of the competent
authority. In the future, the Bank will adopt a market risk management system and use VAR to enhance risk gain or
loss analysis and overall reporting ability. Furthermore, BOT will amend relevant policies and standards in accordance
with the request of management agencies and BASEL II.
2. Credit risk-BOT
(a) The possibility of a loss occurring due to the failure of a counterparty or third party to meet contractual debt
obligations
Commodities owned and issued by BOT may cause a loss when the contractual debt obligations are not met.
Therefore, BOT always conducts credit evaluations in accordance with the Credit Policy and Regulation in handling
credit business such as loans, commitments and guarantees. The details were as follows:
(In millions)
December 31, 2008

Loan (note 1)
Acceptances
Guarantees on loans

Secured amount
$

Total amount

Percentage of total
amount

Item

Book value (note 1)

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

$

Available-for-sale financial assets
Held-to-maturity financial assets
Loans and advances (note 1)
Hedging derivatives

Greatest credit
exposure(notes 2 and 3)

72,202

70,235

155,492

79,773

31,818

22,677

2,026,969

1,847,245

7,558

28

Debt investments without quoted price in active markets

10,972

10,972

Financial assets carried at cost

11,092

11,092

Note 1: The aforementioned "loans and advances" refer to the outstanding amounts of discounts; overdrafts;
treasury overdrafts; guarantee overdrafts; short-term, medium-term and long-term secured/unsecured
loans; loan receivables; import bill advances/export bill purchases; overdue receivables; acceptance
receivables; guarantee payment receivables; and short-term loans.
Note 2: In the amounts of greatest credit exposure, held-for-trading financial assets exclude government bonds
amounting to $1,967 million; available-for-sale financial assets exclude government bonds amounting
to $46,293 million and negotiable certificates of deposit amounting to $29,426 million; held-to-maturity
financial assets exclude government bonds amounting to $9,141 million; loans and advances exclude
Central Government loans amounting to $176,559 million and Central Government short-term advance
amounting to $3,165 million.
Note 3: The amount of greatest credit exposure is the fair value at the balance sheet date; the book value of a
hedging derivative is the principal of the hedging instrument (IRS); and the amount of greatest credit
exposure is the adjusted amount of hedging derivatives at fair value.
(c) Disclosure of obvious concentration of credit risk
When transactions involving a commodity are concentrated in a single industry or location, the ability to fulfill the
contract may be affected by economic or other factors; thus, concentration of credit risk occurs. The concentration
of credit risk of the Consolidated Companies is disclosed below:
a) The details of loans to various industries and the greatest credit exposure for the year ended December 31,
2008, were as follows:
(In millions)
December 31, 2008
Book value
(note 1)

Industry type
Individuals

$

Percentage of total
loans (%)

Greatest credit
exposure(note 2)

601,047

30.33

601,047

Government agencies

412,429

20.81

235,870

Manufacturing

451,921

17.76

351,921

97,649

4.93

97,649

Shipping, warehousing and communications

876,621

1,999,743

43.84

Utilities

100,246

5.06

100,246

133

2,623

5.07

Others

418,494

21.11

418,494

7,976

60,186

13.25

2,081,786

100.00

1,805,227

Note 1: Amounts of loans exclude advances and off-balance-sheet items.
Collateral which BOT requires may include a deposit receipt, inventories, machinery and equipment, marketable
securities, other property, and guarantees. If the customers default, BOT will, as required by circumstances,
foreclose the collateral or execute other rights arising out of the guarantees given. Since most of the commitments
are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent
future cash demands. The maximum potential amount of future payments represents the notional amounts that
could be lost under the guarantees if there were a total default by the guaranteed parties, without consideration of
possible recoveries under recourse provisions or from collateral held or pledged.
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December 31, 2008

6,857,320

Held-to-maturity investments

Item

(b) Credit risk-disclosure of the greatest credit exposure
The book value and greatest credit exposure of various commodities owned by the Company are disclosed below:
(In millions)

Total

$

Note 1: The book value means the outstanding amounts of discounts; overdrafts; treasury overdrafts; guarantee
overdrafts; short-term, medium-term and long-term secured/unsecured loans; loan receivables; and
import bill advances/export bill purchases.
Note 2: The greatest credit exposure is the remaining amount when loans amounting to $176,559 million to the
Central Government are deducted from book value.
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b) The details of loans to various areas and the greatest credit exposure for the year ended December 31, 2008,
were as follows:
(In millions)
December 31, 2008
Book value
(note 1)

Areas type
Domestic

$
$

Greatest credit
exposure (note 2)

1,859,606

93.83

1,683,047

122,180

6.17

122,180

1,981,786

100.00

1,805,227

Foreign
Total

Percentage of total
loans (%)

Note 1: The book value means the outstanding amounts of discounts; overdrafts; treasury overdrafts; guarantee
overdrafts; short-term, medium-term and long-term secured/unsecured loans; loan receivables; and
import bill advances/export bill purchases.
Note 2: The greatest credit exposure is the remaining amount when loans amounting to $176,559 million to the
Central Government are deducted from book value.
(d) Off-balance sheet credit risk (including loan commitments, net settlement, and offset rights)
BOT does not have any loan commitments, net settlement, and offset rights which were subject to SFAS No. 34.
3. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk includes market liquidity risk and capital liquidity risk (financial risk). Market liquidity risk is the risk of
facing market price movement in processing or offsetting assets caused by a low-volume market. Capital liquidity risk,
on the other hand, is the risk of default at the maturity due to inability to sell assets or obtain sufficient capital. The
Consolidated Companies have different policies in accordance with capital demands for different kinds of business
aiming to effectively monitor market liquidity risk. The finance department is in charge of the overview of capital and
conducts a daily review to respond to system risk and capital demand in abnormal conditions.
In addition to all of the above, the attention and support from senior management are important to the success of
the risk management system. Under the authorization of the senior management, the Consolidated Companies are
gradually implementing the risk management system.
The Consolidated Companies control the trading risk of commodities by means of the aforementioned position limits,
setting stop-loss points and operation guidelines at the management level. In addition, the Consolidated Companies
utilize financial tools of the money market and foreign exchange market, together with appropriate liquid assets to plan
for future cash demand.
The Consolidated Company's capital and working capital are sufficient to perform all contract obligations, so there is
no liquidity risk.
The analysis of maturity of the subsidiary BOT as of December 31, 2008, is as follows:
December 31, 2008
1~30 days

31~90 days

91 days~one year

Over one year

Liabilities
Due to Central Bank and other banks

$

Payables

70,434,033

56,734,488

15,347,631

16,887,991

606,795

245,849

-

-

695,196
14,617,440

4,595,808

4,592

8,292

5,677

40,389

135,622
1,428,143

1,428,143

374,398,348

337,140,065

1,099,384,598

1,175,960,263

2,986,883,274

Hedging derivative liabilities
Other financial liabilities

$

Due from Central Bank and call loans to banks

384,662,149

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, net

4,233,728

Bonds and bills purchased under resell agreements

298,262

Available-for-sale financial assets, net

20,949,001

344,064,815
2,880,038
27,568,168

Held-to-maturity financial assets, net

18,999

-

Hedging derivative assets

57,273

-

-

-

236,423,404
10,187,697
-

49,398,761
15,876,796
-

28,876,837
28,467
-

78,412,592
1,388,695
-

Total liabilities

$

477,041,300

399,082,833

1,115,023,059

1,227,348,278

3,218,495,470

Gaps

$

138,848,326

199,007,649

(453,407,347)

219,353,969

103,802,597

Note: The table contains the amounts for the bank departments of BOT only.
4. Cash ﬂow risk and fair value risk of interest rate change
Floating assets and ﬂoating liabilities of the Consolidated Companies may change due to movement in future cash
ﬂow caused by movement of market rate, and hence create risk.
(a) Information on expected final maturity and expected reprising date
As of December 31, 2008, the expected reprising date and expected final maturity would not be affected by the
contract effective date. The following table shows the interest risk of the Consolidated Companies. Non-derivative
assets and liabilities are listed at book value without deducting any allowance or adjustment. Derivative assets
and liabilities are listed at book value. The book value is further categorized by the earlier of the maturity date or
reprising date. The book values of commodities owned or issued by the Consolidated Companies, categorized by
different maturity or reprising dates (the earlier date of the two dates), were as follows:
(In millions of NTD)
BOT
December 31, 2008
1~30 days
Current financial assets:
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or
loss-current

$

4,234

Bonds and bills purchased under resell agreements

298

Available-for-sale financial assets-current

20,949

Held-to-maturity financial assets-current

19

-

57

-

27,568

28,877
29

-

33,178
298

13,644

91,038

-

48

-

57
1,014,549

Loans and discounts

163,240

222,570

385,495

1,207,335

1,978,640

Investment under equity method

-

-

-

26,960

26,960

155,806,598

Available-for-sale financial assets-noncurrent

-

-

-

64,769

64,769

1,436,161

Held-to-maturity financial assets-noncurrent

-

-

-

1,389

1,389

Financial assets carried at cost

-

-

-

11,092

11,092

Debt investment without quoted price in active marketnoncurrent

-

-

-

10,971

10,971

1,014,549,129
33,178,259
298,262

57,273

10,971,588

10,971,588

Investments under equity method, net

-

-

-

31,125,625

31,125,625

18,560,139

1,007,553

604,434

23,011,865

43,183,991

163,240,333

222,569,908

385,494,873

1,207,335,288

1,978,640,402

18,088,711

18,088,711

1,446,702,247

3,322,298,067

661,615,712

-

15,877

49,399

-

598,090,482

-

10,187

236,423

-

615,889,626

2,880

344,065

-

$

Total

384,662

Debt investments without quoted price in active markets

Total assets

Over one year

Due from and call loans to banks

23,869,742

11,092,326

-

91 days~one year

124,619

11,092,326

-

31~90 days

Assets

29,521

-

-

189,980

39,093

-

Non-performing loans

5,986,685
19,217,840

30,448

-

Loans and discounts, net

-

-

25,557

Financial assets carried at cost

Receivables, net

78

23,869,742

-

-

Deposits and remittances

5,291,489

62,273,396

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Asset
Cash and cash equivalents

142,516,152

Bonds and bills sold under repurchase agreements

Hedging derivative assets-current

Total

44,532,761

Long-term investments

Other assets
Total assets

$

115,181

115,181

81,901

28,600

12,513

136,719

259,733

655,360

625,683

673,524

1,538,155

3,492,722
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December 31, 2008
1~30 days

31~90 days

91 days~one year

Liabilities:
Over one year

Total

Short-term loans

Liabilities
Current financial liabilities

IRS

Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or
loss-current

$

695

Bonds and bills sold under repurchase agreements

-

14,617

Hedging derivative liabilities-current
-

Deposits

4,596

8

Other financial liabilities-current-appropriation for loans

5,291
5

6

-

40

-

5,986
19,218

136

190

37

37

-

15,320

4,602

45

5,464

25,431

373,818

337,140

1,099,385

1,175,960

2,986,303

Remittances

38,037

66,005

2,487

-

106,529

Long-term liabilities

-

-

-

19,172

19,172

Noncurrent liabilities

-

-

-

1,391

1,391

Other liabilities
Total liabilities

$

Stockholders' equity

$

68,286

30,209

35,361

495,461

437,956

1,137,278

159,899

187,727

-

0.1000%∼5.2600%

1,201,987

(463,754)

336,168

NTD

Government bonds

1.7067%∼6.9611%

9.1250%∼10.3750%

Financial bonds

2.1100%∼2.3000%

1.2750%∼6.5000%

Corporate bonds

1.9600%∼3.0500%

1.0000%∼8.8750%

Negotiable certificates of deposit of Central Bank

1.0200%∼2.3100%

-

Taipei City Government bonds

4.6190%

-

Beneficiary certificates-financial assets securitization

2.4600%

-

Beneficiary certificates-real estate investment trust

2.6800%

5.5000%∼5.7500%

-

2.7313%

Held-to-maturity financial assets:
Government bonds

1.5716%∼6.0701%

-

Corporate bonds

1.8911%∼1.9493%

-

Beneficiary certificates-financial assets securitization

2.0699%

-

Beneficiary certificates-real estate investment trust

2.4000%

-

Designated hedging
instruments

Foreign bonds

Swap

Foreign bonds

Swap

Original amount
$

Fair value

4,381,049

57,273

3,176,486

(189,981)

c) Nature of hedged risk:
The hedged items of the hedge accounting adopted by the Consolidated Companies are fixed-rate bond
investments. Thus, IRSs are used to hedge interest risk (adopting interest fair value hedging-swapping a fixed
rate for a ﬂoating rate).

(32) Disclosure of Risk Management Policy

Available-for-sale financial assets:

Foreign organization bonds

Hedged item

220,040

USD

2.0150%∼14.3938%

December 31, 2008

3,272,682

December 31, 2008
Item

-

5. Fair-value hedge and cash ﬂow hedge
(a) Fair value hedge, cash ﬂow hedge, and hedge of a net investment in a foreign entity should disclose the following:
a) Description of hedging:
Currently the New York, LA, and Singapore branches of BOT adopt fair value hedge accounting and hold IRSs
as designated hedging instruments to hedge the exposure to interest risk on investment in fixed-rate bonds; the
hedging strategies were as follows:
a. When the interest rate trends up, the Consolidated Companies adopt fair value hedging to avoid effects on
income by swapping a fixed rate for a ﬂoating rate on fixed-rate bonds.
b. When the interest rate trends down, the Consolidated Companies adopt cash ﬂow hedging to avoid effects on
income by swapping a ﬂoating rate for a fixed rate on ﬂoating-rate notes.
b) Description and balance sheet fair value of financial commodities designated as hedging instruments:

133,856

Note: The table contains the amounts for the bank departments of BOT only.
(b) Effective interest rate (excluding financial assets for trading purposes)
The effective interest rates, classified by currencies, of the commodities owned or issued by the Consolidated
Companies as of December 31, 2008, were as follows:
Subsidiary-BOT

Debt investment without quoted price in active markets:
Financial bonds

-%

5.4700%∼6.2600%

Beneficiary certificates-real state investment trust

-%

0.8113%∼2.2450%

Loans and discounts:

80

-%

Hedging derivative liabilities:

Short-term loans

1.2500%∼18.0000%

3.1131%∼8.5620%

Medium-term loans

1.0050%∼18.0000%

0.6000%∼7.5000%

Long-term loans

1.0220%∼10.4960%

1.0000%∼7.7500%

1) The Company
The risk management organization of the Company includes the board of directors, risk management committee, and
risk administrative office.
The responsibility of each risk management level is as follows:
1. The board of directors is the highest decision-making unit, and it has the final responsibility for the Company's overall
risk. According to the overall operating strategies and management environments, the board of directors approves the
risk management policies, supervises the operating effectiveness of the risk management system, fully controls the
risk situation, and ensures having sufficient capital for dealing with all risks.
2. The Company set up the risk management committee under the board of directors to execute the risk management
policies approved by the board of directors and coordinate the related risk management matters within the group.
3. The risk administrative office is the independent risk management unit and is responsible for the implementation
of overall risk management. For all risk management decisions and assignments of the board of directors and risk
management committee, the risk administrative office must supervise and follow up the execution by the related
units, and present the risk management report to the board of directors and risk management committee. If it finds
significant exposure that endangers the financial situation, operations, or legal compliance, the risk administrative
office should report to the board of directors immediately.
2) BOT
The major financial assets of BOT are loans, receivables, and securities investments. The related risk and management
policy are as follows:
1. Credit risk management: including stratified authorization, management of large exposure, concentration management,
and a re-assessment system
(a) Carrying out stratified authorization
A system of graded delegation of authority is used in loan cases and the disposition of NPLs. Each authority level
has its own credit assessment committee and loan collection assessment committee. The review of loan cases is
carried out strictly in accordance with the limits of authorization so as to assure the quality of loans.
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(b) Management of large exposure and excessive concentration
a) In accordance with the Banking Law, loans to BOT's responsible person, BOT's employees, and persons having
a material interest in BOT are controlled in accordance with stipulated quotas. The Bank has established rules
for credit risk management of loans to enterprise groups and ratios for loan risk exposure to different industries,
and it controls credit quotas for trading partners, issuers, and guarantors in accordance with their external
credit ratings.
b) BOT's Treasury Department, OBU, and foreign branches set up policies based on external credit evaluation for
loan quota management in money market, foreign exchange, and negotiable security trading.
c) Each year, to spread the risk from different countries, a national risk quota, in accordance with the ranking
in Euromoney Magazine, is allocated to the Finance Department, OBU, and foreign branches. The business
recorded by BOT includes loan assets, transaction assets, and off-balance-sheet positions.
(c) Re-assessment evaluates the quality of loan assets. BOT has a re-assessment policy for credit review. After loans
are extended, they are reviewed during the loan period in accordance with their review ratings. For important
loans, follow-up evaluation is carried out, and reserves against bad loans are allocated for loan assets at the end of
every month in order to reinforce BOT's operating system.
2. Market risk management
(a) Daily evaluation
To control risk, each trading unit carries out a daily assessment of foreign trading against trading objectives in
accordance with market prices. The major source for evaluation is the public appraisal of negotiable securities in
external information systems such as Bloomberg and Reuters.
(b) Limit management
a) For the trades involving all securities, foreign-exchange positions, and derivatives, BOT regulates the authorized
trading amount, kinds of sales/purchases, invested objects, and gain or loss limits to control risk effectively.
b) In the management of New Taiwan Dollar funds, interest rate risk is controlled by predictions of long-term
interest rate trends, by setting short dealing interest rates prior to the beginning of business each day, and
by establishing add-or-subtract authorization for personnel at different levels. In the management of foreign
currency funds, trading position quotas are set for different currencies and for bank-wide foreign exchange
positions, and stop loss limits are set for positions held for trading purposes and for non-hedging unleveled net
positions for derivative products.
3. Interest rate and liquidity risk management
(a) BOT has set up an Assets and Liabilities Management Committee to strengthen the structure of assets and
liabilities. Under the leadership of the president, the Committee is divided into Management, Finance, and Capital
subcommittees; and this Committee is responsible for setting guidelines for assets and liabilities management,
liquidity position management, management of interest rate risk, and the review of the deposit and loan structure.
(b) Setting up management policy for liquidity and interest rate risk; setting up guidelines for liquidity risk management.
a) Management of interest-rate sensitivity gap: The ratio of New Taiwan Dollar interest-rate-sensitive assets to
liabilities shall fall between 80% and 140%. The ratio of New Taiwan Dollar capital gap to owner's equity shall
be maintained between positive/negative 100%. The different positions in the foreign currencies resulting from
changes in the interest rate shall not exceed total assets in each currency by 35%.
b) Management of liquidity risk
a. Maintaining liquidity ratio: According to the Central Bank's "Liquidity Guidelines for Financial Institutions,"
Bank of Taiwan shall maintain a liquidity ratio for all deposits of over 10%.
b. Short-term gap analysis: 1~10-day and 11~30-day gaps are calculated; the period gap is greater than zero.
c. Foreign currency gap management: The ratio of accumulated capital liquidity gap for one month and for one
year to total assets of the four major foreign currencies of Bank of Taiwan (U.S. Dollar, HK Dollar, JP Yen and
Euro) should not exceed 50% and 40%, respectively.
d. Capital management: Full use is made of the Assets and Liabilities Management Information System on
a regular basis to analyze maturity gaps of assets and liabilities and changes in maturity structure. The
appropriate allocation and utilization of funds, and the adjustment of the capital structure are carried out
in accordance with the capital situation. In the management of New Taiwan Dollar funds, in addition to
maintaining an appropriate level of cash on hand and of securities that can be converted quickly into cash,
the Bank has set policies for the reporting of New Taiwan Dollar funds to provide for the timely reporting of
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receipts or disbursements of large amounts of funds. The Bank also carries out gap analysis of the maturity
amount of purchased bills, bonds, and call loans so as to lower liquidity risk. In the management of foreign
currencies, the Bank uses the maturity method to carry out funds gap analysis of the actual funds to be
received or paid out within the next year.
4. The policy of reduction of credit risk in terms of pledges and guarantees
In its consideration of credit control and business promotion, BOT attempts to decrease the burden of credit risk
by increasing collateral or strengthening the guarantee, based on BOT's credit and pledge policy. Collateral and
guarantees include mortgages on real estate or property (i.e., land, building, machinery, car, ship, aircraft, etc.),
pledges of securities or other rights (i.e., certificates of deposit; various bonds, stocks, or other securities), guarantees
provided by government agencies, banks, or credit guarantee institutions authorized by the government, and any
other guarantee or collateral approved by BOT.
3) BTLI
BTLI manages all risk arising from the related operation including market risk, insurance risk and process risk. The main
principle of risk management should use the RBC to supervise each risk based on BTLI's business scale, market risk,
insurance risk and process risk. BTLI should also set up a systems approach for risk assessment and monitoring in
order to assess, supervise and manage each risk.
BTLI effectively identifies, assesses, monitors and manages the risk of each business based upon the nature of the
business and matters arising from risk. In order to achieve risk management and reasonable earnings, BTLI controls
the risk within its tolerance. The board of directors, being the highest decision-making unit, is responsible for managing
overall risk. And the Risk Management Committee is responsible for executing all risk management policies approved by
the board of directors and coordinating cross-department risk management matters.
4) BTS
For the requirements of business, BTS has set up an overall risk management system to effectively control all kinds of
risk. The system can assure the achievement of BTS's long-term and steady management, profit growth, and strategy.
At the same time, it formed a department with sole responsibility for risk control under the secretary unit of the risk
management committee to handle these affairs and to exercise authority independently except over the operating unit
and trade activities. The formation of the risk management organization by BTS includes the board of directors, the
risk management committee, the administrative office, and all business units to execute the risk management decisions
made by the board of directors and coordinate the related risk management matters across departments.
All risks of the business on or off the balance sheet should be subsumed under risk management, including market risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk, operating risk, and other risk (for example legal risk, strategy risk, and reputation risk).
The related management systems of all kinds of risk are as follows:
1. BTS should effectively identify, measure, supervise, and control all risks when engaging in business. BTS should
control the risk to a tolerable degree to reach the target of risk management and compensation rationalization.
2. Establish a risk indicator and warning system to implement the appropriate risk monitoring.
3. Establish a communication system. The complete risk information should be periodically given to senior management,
conveyed to subordinates, and communicated across departments, and be available to the public according to the
regulations.
4. Before developing new business or merchandise, changing the operating procedure, or developing the information
system or operation, BTS should estimate the risk in advance and prepare the appropriate operating procedure and
control method for the related risk.
5. Educate the professional risk management staff and provide education and training in risk management to the
personnel of the operating unit to strengthen BTS's risk management culture.
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(33) Related-Party Transactions

6. Interest revenue
2008

1) Name of related party and relationship
Name of related-party
Land Bank of Taiwan Co., Ltd.

Amount

Affiliate (which was no longer a related party as of
December 20, 2008)

Hua Nan Financial Holdings Co., Ltd.

Investee company of BOT under the equity method

Taiwan Life Insurance Co., Ltd.

Investee company of BOT under the equity method

Tang-Eng Iron Works Co., Ltd.

Investee company of BOT under the equity method

Kaohsiung Ammonium Sulfate Co., Ltd.

Investee company of BOT under the equity method

Tai Yi Real-Estate Management Co., Ltd.

Investee company of BOT under the equity method

Directors, supervisors, managers, and vice-managers

The Company's main management

Other related parties

The relatives of main management

Land Bank of Taiwan Co., Ltd.

December 31, 2008

Hua Nan Financial Holdings Co., Ltd.

$

Percentage of
account balance
6,666

0.02

2. Deposits of banks
December 31, 2008
Percentage of
account balance

Amount
Hua Nan Financial Holdings Co., Ltd.

$

127,896

Interest rates of related-party transactions are the same as those with other banks.
3. Call loans to banks (included in due from banks)

9,378,606

Ending balance
3,769,010

Interest income

0.10~5.50

87,323

Interest rates of related-party transactions are the same as those with other banks.
4. Deposits
December 31, 2008
Percentage of
account balance

Amount
Hua Nan Financial Holdings Co., Ltd.

$

Kaohsiung Ammonium Sulfate Co., Ltd.
Total

$

51,992

-

1,405,318

0.05

1,457,310

0.05

Apart from a favorable interest rate for the limited amount of staff savings deposits, interest rates of related-party
transactions are the same as general accounts.
5. Mortgage loans for real estate (in discounts and loans)
Mortgage loans for real estate for the Consolidated Companies' directors, supervisors, and staff and their spouses
and close relatives for the year ended December 31, 2008:
December 31, 2008
Mortgage loans for real estate

$

25,237

Interest receivable

$

247

The interest range was 2.10% to 6.55% for the year ended December 31, 2008.
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Consumer loans

53

38,322

27,473

27,473

House mortgages

89

368,421

308,317

308,276

500,000

500,000

500,000

-

None

None

41 Land and building

None

-

Land and building

None

Other loans

Tang-Eng Iron Works Co., Ltd.

〃

Tang-Eng Iron Works Co., Ltd.

500,000

500,000

500,000

-

〃

None

〃

Tang-Eng Iron Works Co., Ltd.

1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

-

〃

None

〃

Tang-Eng Iron Works Co., Ltd.

122,105

122,105

122,105

-

〃

None

〃

BankTaiwan Securities Co., Ltd.

3,890,236

-

-

-

〃

None

〃

BankTaiwan Securities Co., Ltd.

5,878,982

-

-

-

〃

None

10,000

-

None

None

Call loans to banks Hua Nan Financial Holdings Co.,
Ltd.

14,215,452

10,000

8. Derivative instruments:
December 31, 2008
Name of
related party

2008
Highest balance

15.94

Status of performance
Differences in transaction
Highest balance
Performing Non-performing
terms between related
Amount or name of related party in current period Ending balance
loans
loans
Type of collateral and non-related parties

0.54

Annual interest
rate (%)

146,085

December 31, 2008

Category

Amount

$

7. Loans
Subsidiary-BOT

2) Significant related-party transactions
1. Placement with banks

Hua Nan Financial Holdings Co.,
Ltd.
$

Percentage of
account balance

Relationship with the Company

Title of derivative
instruments

Contract
period

Nominal
amount

Current valuation
adjustment

Balance sheet item
Item

Amount

Taiwan Life
AEBH410927 forward 2004.11.30~
Insurance Co., Ltd.
2009.02.05

153,719

(516) Valuation adjustment of financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss-currentheld for trading－ forward

(516)

Taiwan Life
AEBH411027 forward 2004.12.31~
2009.02.05
Insurance Co., Ltd.

152,074

(511)

〃

(511)

AEBH510877 forward 2005.11.25~
Taiwan Life
Insurance Co., Ltd.
2009.02.06

159,485

(2,471)

〃

(2,471)

Taiwan Life Insurance Co., Ltd.

BHSW510056 swap

2005.12.08~
2009.02.10

328,190

Taiwan Life Insurance Co., Ltd.

BHSW610016 swap

2006.01.25~
2009.02.10

656,380

(1,299)

〃

(1,299)

Taiwan Life Insurance Co., Ltd.

BHSW610017 swap

2006.01.26~
2009.02.10

328,190

(649)

〃

(649)

Taiwan Life Insurance Co., Ltd.

BHSW610021 swap

2006.03.07~
2009.01.08

361,980

Taiwan Life
BHSW710031 swap
Insurance Co., Ltd.

2007.04.25~
2009.01.23

1,119,125

Taiwan Life Insurance Co., Ltd.

2007.10.04~
2009.02.05

328,700

BHSW710114 swap

(649) Valuation adjustment of financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or losscurrent-held for trading- swap

(649)

31,296 Valuation adjustment of financial assets at
fair value through profit or losscurrent-held for trading- swap

31,296

27,681

27,681

〃

(1,104) Valuation adjustment of financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or losscurrent-held for trading- swap

(1,104)
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December 31, 2008
Name of
related party

Title of derivative
instruments

Contract
period

Nominal
amount

Current valuation
adjustment

Balance sheet item
Item

Amount

Taiwan Life
BHSW810010 swap
Insurance Co., Ltd.

2008.01.21~
2009.01.23

955,890

27,085 Valuation adjustment of financial assets at
fair value through profit or losscurrent-held for trading- swap

27,085

Taiwan Life
BHSW810164 swap
Insurance Co., Ltd.

2008.08.18~
2009.02.06

985,110

(2,338) Valuation adjustment of financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or losscurrent-held for trading- swap

(2,338)

Taiwan Life
BHSW810190 swap
Insurance Co., Ltd.
Taiwan Life
BHSW810193 swap
Insurance Co., Ltd.
Taiwan Life
BHSW810194 swap
Insurance Co., Ltd.
Taiwan Life
BHSW810239 swap
Insurance Co., Ltd.
Taiwan Life
BHSW810259 swap
Insurance Co., Ltd.

2008.09.18~
2009.02.23
2008.09.19~
2009.02.06
2008.09.19~
2009.09.23
2008.11.06~
2009.02.09
2008.12.04~
2009.01.08

631,360

656,740

1,553,250

164,095

67,050

23,362

(1,559) Valuation adjustment of financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or losscurrent-held for trading- swap

(1,559)

65,533 Valuation adjustment of financial assets at
fair value through profit or losscurrent-held for trading- swap

65,533

(318) Valuation adjustment of financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or losscurrent-held for trading- swap

(318)

(1,503)

2008.09.19~
2009.09.23

1,560,750

Chen Vi Hong

0812220020
foreign exchange
option

2008.12.23~
2009.01.06

59

0812310020 foreign
exchange option

2008.12.31~
2009.01.15

(58,095)

Professional fee

Subsidiary held completely by the Company

BankTaiwan Securities Co., Ltd. (BTS)

Subsidiary held completely by the Company

Hua Nan Financial Holdings Co., Ltd

Investee company of Bank of Taiwan under the equity method

Taiwan Life Insurance Co., Ltd.

Investee company of Bank of Taiwan under the equity method

Tang-Eng Iron Works Co., Ltd.

Investee company of Bank of Taiwan under the equity method

Kaohsiung Ammonium Sulfate Co., Ltd.

Investee company of Bank of Taiwan under the equity method

Tai Yi Real-Estate Management Co., Ltd.

Investee company of Bank of Taiwan under the equity method

Others

Directors, supervisors, managers, and their relatives

(b) Significant related-party transactions
a) Placement with banks
Hua Nan Financial Holdings Co., Ltd.

6,666

b) Accounts receivable
BTLI

$

102,804

$

155,977

53,173

c) Deposits of banks

3,277

-

Valuation adjustment of financial assets at
fair value through profit or losscurrent-held for trading-foreign exchange
option
9 Valuation adjustment of financial assets at
fair value through profit or losscurrent-held for trading- foreign exchange
option
Valuation adjustment of financial assets at
fair value through profit or losscurrent-held for trading- foreign exchange
option

-

December 31, 2008
Hua Nan Financial Holdings Co., Ltd.

6

$

$

2008
Highest balance

9

127,896

Interest rates of related-party transactions are the same as those with other banks.
d) Call loans from banks (included in due to banks)

Hua Nan Financial Holdings
Co., Ltd.

$

9,378,606

Ending balance
3,769,010

Interest rate (%)

Interest expense

0.10~5.50

87,323

Interest rates of related-party transactions are the same as those with other banks.
e) Deposits
December 31, 2008

2,757
750

Hua Nan financial Holdings Co., Ltd.

$

51,992

$

1,457,310

Kaohsiung Ammonium Sulfate Co., Ltd.
Total

1,405,318

Apart from a favorable interest rate for the limited amounts of staff savings deposits, interest rates of
related-party transactions are the same as general accounts.
f) Interest revenue
December 31, 2008
LBOT

$

146,085

g) Fee revenue
December 31, 2008

3,932
BTLI

86

$

(58,095)

〃

2008
Bonus and special allowances

BankTaiwan Life Insurance Co., Ltd. (BTLI)

December 31, 2008

Note 1: The disclosure of the derivative instruments is by related party.
Note 2: Derivative financial instruments are assessed by the fair value method. Any relevant net present value created
shall be recognized as current valuation adjustment.
Note 3: The ending balances of financial assets / liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and hedging derivative
assets / liabilities are shown in the balance sheet item amount column.
3) Main management's remuneration
The related information about the salaries and rewards for the Company's main management in 2008 is as follows:
Salaries

Relationship with Bank of Taiwan
An affiliate (which was no longer a related party as of December
20, 2008)

December 31, 2008

(1,503)

〃

Name of related party
Land Bank of Taiwan Co., Ltd. (LBOT)

BTS

Taiwan Life
BHSW820003 swap
Insurance Co., Ltd.

Huang Rong Song

23,362 Valuation adjustment of financial assets at
fair value through profit or losscurrent-held for trading- swap

4) Information on related party transactions amounting to more than $100,000 thousand
1. BOT
(a) Name of related-party and relationship

$

929,393
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h) Loans
Subsidiary-BOT

December 31, 2008
December 31, 2008
Status of performance

Category

Amount or name of
related party

Highest balance
in current period

Ending
balance

Performing Non-performing Type of
loans
loans
collateral

Consumer loans

53

38,322

27,473

27,473

House mortgages

89

368,421

308,317

308,276

Tang-Eng Iron Works
Co., Ltd.

500,000

500,000

500,000

〃

Tang-Eng Iron Works
Co., Ltd.

500,000

500,000

〃

Tang-Eng Iron Works
Co., Ltd.

1,000,000 1,000,000

〃

Tang-Eng Iron Works
Co., Ltd.

122,105

〃

BankTaiwan Securities
Co., Ltd.

3,890,236

〃

BankTaiwan Securities
Co., Ltd.

5,878,982

Call loans to
banks

Hua Nan Financial
Holdings Co., Ltd.

Other loans

14,215,452

-

Differences in
transaction terms
between related
and nonrelated
parties

None

None

41 Land and
building

None

-

Land and
building

None

500,000

-

〃

None

1,000,000

-

〃

None

122,105

-

〃

None

-

-

-

〃

None

-

-

-

〃

None

10,000

-

None

None

122,105

10,000

i) Derivative instruments
December 31, 2008
Name of related Title of derivative
party
instruments
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Contract
period

Nominal
amount

Current
valuation
adjustment

Balance sheet item
Item

Amount

Taiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

AEBH410927
forward

2004.11.30~
2009.02.05

153,719

(516) Valuation adjustment of financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss-current-held
for trading- forward

(516)

Taiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

AEBH411027
forward

2004.12.31~
2009.02.05

152,074

(511)

〃

(511)

Taiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

AEBH510877
forward

2005.11.25~
2009.02.06

159,485

(2,471)

〃

(2,471)

Taiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

BHSW510056
swap

2005.12.08~
2009.02.10

328,190

Taiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

BHSW610016
swap

2006.01.25~
2009.02.10

656,380

(1,299)

〃

(1,299)

Taiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

BHSW610017
swap

2006.01.26~
2009.02.10

328,190

(649)

〃

(649)

(649) Valuation adjustment of financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss-current-held
for trading- swap

(649)

Name of related Title of derivative
party
instruments

Contract
period

Nominal
amount

Current
valuation
adjustment

Balance sheet item
Item

Amount

Taiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

BHSW610021
swap

2006.03.07~
2009.01.08

361,980

Taiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

BHSW710031
swap

2007.04.25~
2009.01.23

1,119,125

Taiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

BHSW710114
swap

2007.10.04~
2009.02.05

328,700

(1,104) Valuation adjustment of financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss-current-held
for trading- swap

(1,104)

Taiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

BHSW810010
swap

2008.01.21~
2009.01.23

955,890

27,085 Valuation adjustment of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss-current-held
for trading-swap

27,085

Taiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

BHSW810164
swap

2008.08.18~
2009.02.06

985,110

(2,338) Valuation adjustment of financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss-current-held
for trading- swap

(2,338)

Taiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

BHSW810190
swap

2008.09.18~
2009.02.23

631,360

23,362 Valuation adjustment of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss-current-held
for trading-swap

23,362

Taiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

BHSW810193
swap

2008.09.19~
2009.02.06

656,740

(1,559) Valuation adjustment of financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss-current-held
for trading- swap

(1,559)

Taiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

BHSW810194
swap

2008.09.19~
2009.09.23

1,553,250

65,533 Valuation adjustment of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss-current-held
for trading-swap

65,533

Taiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

BHSW810239
swap

2008.11.06~
2009.02.09

164,095

(318) Valuation adjustment of financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss-current-held
for trading- swap

(318)

Taiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

BHSW810259
swap

2008.12.04~
2009.01.08

67,050

(1,503)

〃

(1,503)

Taiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

BHSW820003
swap

2008.09.19~
2009.09.23

1,560,750

(58,095)

〃

(58,095)

Chen Yi Hong

0812220020
2008.12.23~
foreign exchange 2009.01.06
option

59

Huang Rong Song 0812310020
2008.12.31~
foreign exchange 2009.01.15
option

3,277

BankTaiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

AECL810370
forward

2008.05.06~
2009.11.10

408,067

-

31,296 Valuation adjustment of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss-current-held
for trading-swap

31,296

27,681

27,681

〃

Valuation adjustment of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss-current-held
for trading-foreign exchange option

-

9 Valuation adjustment of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss-current-held
for trading-foreign exchange option
Valuation adjustment of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss-current-held
for trading-foreign exchange option

6

42,371 Valuation adjustment of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss-current-held
for trading-forward

42,371

9

Taiwan Financial Holdings Annual Report 2008

89

Financial status

December 31, 2008
Name of related Title of derivative
party
instruments

90

Contract
period

Nominal
amount

Current
valuation
adjustment

December 31, 2008
Balance sheet item
Item

Amount

Name of related Title of derivative
party
instruments

Contract
period

Nominal
amount

Current
valuation
adjustment

Balance sheet item
Item

Amount

BankTaiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

AECL810569
forward

2008.08.01~
2009.02.05

468,417

(43,208) Valuation adjustment of financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss-current-held
for trading- forward

(43,208)

BankTaiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

CLSW810130
swap

2008.06.30~
2009.02.17

1,663,400

(26,106)

〃

(26,106)

BankTaiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

CLSW710062
swap

2007.08.02~
2009.02.04

508,800

15,348 Valuation adjustment of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss-current-held
for trading-swap

15,348

BankTaiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

CLSW810207
swap

2008.09.26~
2009.02.12

2,001,000

(35,871)

〃

(35,871)

BankTaiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

CLSW710066
swap

2007.08.08~
2009.02.12

95,058

3,193

〃

3,193

BankTaiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

CLSW810208
swap

2008.09.26~
2009.02.12

667,000

(11,957)

〃

(11,957)

BankTaiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

CLSW710070
swap

2007.08.14~
2009.01.15

381,912

11,330

〃

11,330

BankTaiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

CLSW810211
swap

2008.09.30~
2009.02.12

566,950

(10,164)

〃

(10,164)

BankTaiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

CLSW710075
swap

2007.08.29~
2009.01.23

383,040

10,150

〃

10,150

BankTaiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

CLSW810212
swap

2008.09.30~
2009.02.12

1,000,500

(17,936) Valuation adjustment of financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss-current-held
for trading- swap

(17,936)

BankTaiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

CLSW810005
swap

2008.01.17~
2009.01.22

317,900

9,764 Valuation adjustment of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss-current-held
for trading-swap

9,764

BankTaiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

CLSW810225
swap

2008.10.16~
2009.02.17

2,994,120

(46,990)

〃

(46,990)

BankTaiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

CLSW810009
swap

2008.01.18~
2009.01.22

318,340

9,324

〃

9,324

BankTaiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

CLSW810230
swap

2008.10.24~
2009.01.08

1,205,604

(25,763)

〃

(25,763)

BankTaiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

CLSW810011
swap

2008.01.22~
2009.01.23

319,290

8,369

〃

8,369

BankTaiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

CLSW810241
swap

2008.11.13~
2009.02.17

665,360

(10,442)

〃

(10,442)

BankTaiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

CLSW810012
swap

2008.01.22~
2009.01.23

640,410

14,908

〃

14,908

BankTaiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

CLSW810242
swap

2008.11.13~
2009.02.17

1,663,400

(26,106)

〃

(26,106)

BankTaiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

CLSW810013
swap

2008.01.23~
2009.01.23

320,905

6,755

〃

6,755

BankTaiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

CLSW810247
swap

2008.11.20~
2009.01.22

1,297,200

13,466 Valuation adjustment of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss-current-held
for trading-swap

13,466

BankTaiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

CLSW810015
swap

2008.01.24~
2009.01.23

319,980

7,679

〃

7,679

BankTaiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

CLSW810248
swap

2008.11.21~
2009.01.22

1,621,500

16,833

〃

16,833

BankTaiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

CLSW810016
swap

2008.01.28~
2009.01.23

319,755

7,904

〃

7,904

BankTaiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

CLSW810249
swap

2008.11.24~
2009.02.24

325,000

2,362

〃

2,362

BankTaiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

CLSW810104
swap

2008.04.30~
2009.02.17

665,360

(10,442)

BankTaiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

CLSW810253
swap

2008.11.28~
2009.02.27

329,230

(1,900) Valuation adjustment of financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss-current-held
for trading- swap

(1,900)

BankTaiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

CLSW810108
swap

2008.05.07~
2009.01.12

167,075

(3,215)

〃

(3,215)

BankTaiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

CLSW810265
swap

2008.12.15~
2009.02.17

332,680

(5,221)

〃

(5,221)

BankTaiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

CLSW810109
swap

2008.05.07~
2009.01.12

1,236,355

(23,791)

〃

(23,791)

BankTaiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

CLSW810266
swap

2008.12.17~
2009.01.20

99,474

(1,170)

〃

(1,170)

(10,442) Valuation adjustment of financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss-current-held
for trading- swap
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December 31, 2008
Name of related Title of derivative
party
instruments

Contract
period

Nominal
amount

BankTaiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

CLSW810267
swap

2008.12.18~
2009.01.20

330,710

BankTaiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

CLSW810273
swap

2008.12.22~
2009.01.22

324,300

BankTaiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

CLSW810276
swap

BankTaiwan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

CLSW810279
swap

2008.12.29~
2009.02.27
2008.12.31~
2009.02.27

328,710

691,383

Current
valuation
adjustment
(3,030)

Other receivables
Balance sheet item

2,611,471

Prepaid expense and other prepayment

42,110

Bonds and bills purchased under resell agreements
Item

Amount
(3,030)

〃

3,367

3,367 Valuation adjustment of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss-current-held
for trading-swap
(1,380) Valuation adjustment of financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss-current-held
for trading- swap

(1,380)

(3,989)

(3,989)

13,387,011

Loans

7,460,787

Available-for-sale financial assets-non-current

1,360,232

Held-to-maturity financial assets-non-current

58,812,846

Bond investments with non-active market-non-current

7,276,634

Investments under equity method, net

4,517,603

Real estate investments, net

1,796,793

Fixed assets, net

776,945

Goodwill and intangible assets

4,886

Other assets

〃

3,309,149

Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss-current

(40,248)

Commission payable

(63,902)

Due from representative organization

Note 1: The disclosure of the derivative instruments is by related party.
Note 2: Derivative financial instruments are assessed by the fair value method. Any relevant net present value
created shall be recognized as current valuation adjustment.
Note 3: The ending balance of financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and hedging
derivative assets/liabilities are shown in the balance sheet item amount column.
(c) Main management's remuneration
The related information about the salaries and rewards for BOT's main management in 2008 is as follows:
2008
Salaries

$

23,162

Bonus and special allowances
Professional fee

100%-owned subsidiary of the Company under the
equity method

Directors, supervisors, managers, and vice managers

The main management of Bank of Taiwan

Other related parties

The relatives of main management

(b) Significant related-party transactions
a) Split-off information
In accordance with Accounting Research and Development Foundation Interpretation (91) No. 128, Bank of
Taiwan split off its Department of Life Insurance and transferred capital of $5 billion to set up BankTaiwan Life
Insurance on January 2, 2008. As of the split-off date, the assets and liabilities yielded were follows:

(3,032,124)

The amounts of fixed assets, available-for-sale financial assets, and investments under
equity method under stockholders' equity:
Additional paid-in capital

(360,065)

Unrealized increments on revaluation

(170,455)

1,187

BankTaiwan Securities Co. Ltd

(114,653,736)

Other liabilities

Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments

Relationship with BTLI

(25,886)

Reserve for operations and other liabilities

Unrealized gain on financial instruments

100%-owned subsidiary of the Company under the
equity method

(796,354)

Advance collections

Issue of new shares

Name of related-party
Bank of Taiwan Co., Ltd.

Other payables

9,070

2. BTLI
(a) Name of related party and relationship

(33,575,145)

3,348
507,596
$

Part of the information systems and equipment are shared with Bank of Taiwan. But BTLI need not pay any
expense to BOT.
b) Placement with banks
December 31, 2008
$

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss-current

92

$

30,381,161
610,198

Available-for-sale financial assets-current

18,999,886

Held-to-maturity financial assets-current

4,935,069

Bond investments with non-active market-current

655,003

Notes receivable, net

269,187

$17,137,408

c) Mortgage loans for real estate (in discounts and loans)
Mortgage loans for real estate for the Consolidated Companies' directors, supervisors, and staff and their
spouses and close relatives for 2008:
December 31, 2008
Mortgage loans for real estate

$

25,237

Interest receivable

$

247

The interest range was 2.10% to 6.55% for 2008.
d) Interest revenues

Amount
Cash and cash equivalents

5,000,000

2008
BOT

$

399,723

e) Foreign exchange gain
2008
BOT

$

1,947,822
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(c) Main management's remuneration
The related information about the salaries and rewards for BTLI's main management in 2008 is as follows:

c) Bonds and bills purchased under resell agreements
2008

2008
Salaries

Dealing amount

$

7,385

Bonus and special allowances

120

Professional fee

760

BOT

4,331,506

900,023

(c) Main management's remuneration
The related information about the salaries and rewards for BTS’s main management in 2008 is as follows:

3. BTS
(a) Name of related party and relationship
Name of related party

$

Ending balance

2008
Salaries
Relationship with TBS
100%-owned subsidiary of the Company under the
equity method

BankTaiwan Life Insurance Co., Ltd.

100%-owned subsidiary of the Company under the
equity method

Directors, supervisors, managers, and vice managers

The main management of BTS

400

5) Main managerment's remuneration
The related information about the salaries and rewards for the Consolidated Companies' main management in 2008 is as
follows:
2008
Salaries

(b) Significant related-party transactions
a) Split-off information
In accordance with Accounting Research and Development Foundation Interpretation (91) No. 128, Bank of
Taiwan split off its Department of Securuties and transferred capital of $3 billion to set up BankTaiwan Securities
on January 2, 2008. As of the split-off date, the assets and liabilities were as follows:
$

$

9,940

Professional fee

6,279

(34) Pledged Assets
Pledged assets

37

Purpose of pledge

Available-for-sale financial assets-bonds

Guarantee deposit for provisional attachments or
taxation appeals

27,844

Available-for-sale financial assets-bonds

Operating deposit for securities trading

Advance payment

1,000

Available-for-sale financial assets-bonds

Other receivables

2,027,388

Guarantee deposit for trust business compensation
reserve

Due to Central Bank-deposits in

Negotiable certificates of deposit (accounted for as
cash)

1,762,328

Accounts receivable

Available-for-sale financial assets

235,904

Fixed assets, net

406,846

39,069

Bonus and special allowances

Amount
Margin loans receivable

5,765

Professional fee

Bank of Taiwan Co., Ltd.

Cash and cash equivalents

$

Book value
December 31, 2008
$

704,900
110,000
50,000
20,000,000

Goodwill and intangible assets

5,993

Held-to-maturity financial assets-bond

Operating deposit for trust business

25,000

Operating guarantee deposits

56,481

Held-to-maturity financial assets-bonds

Guarantee deposit for provisional attachments or
taxation appeals

11,800

Fixed assets-land and building

Bank loans

351,487

Bank loans

33,243

Guarantee deposits

713

Net brokering accounts-debit

5,896

Deposits received from securities borrowers

(2,152)

Leased assets-land and building

Guaranteed price payable by other securities lenders

(2,344)

Total

Collections for customers

(3,536)

Other payables

$

21,286,430

(1,256,966)

Reserves for default losses

(87,326)

Other liabilities

(92,726)

The amounts of fixed assets, available-for-sale financial assets, and investments under
equity method under stockholders' equity:
Unrealized increments on revaluation

(96,713)

Unrealized gain on financial instruments
Issue of new shares

11,333
$

3,000,000

b) Placement with banks
December 31, 2008
BOT

94

$

569,376
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(35) Commitments and Contingencies

5) Balance sheet and details of asset management:
Trust assets

1) As of December 31, 2008, the significant commitments of the Consolidated Companies were as follows:
December 31, 2008
Trust liabilities

$

326,853,165

Securities held in custody payable

721,394

Guarantee payable

3,311,690

Guarantee received

5,006

Guarantee note payable

612,200

Traveler's checks held on consignment

1,002,150

Collections for customers

76,508,546

Investment in funds

161,692,509

L/C receivables
Contract deposit on behalf of counter-parties
Marketable securities held as custodian
Total

$

Contract amount
$

40,915,854

Buildings

1,712,240,362
4,216,649,744

Total

Amount not paid

288,600

285,724

Payables from trading securities

Construction of Dong Gang Branch

110,300

110,300

Other payables

805,989

405,678

Payables from management fee

2009.1.1~2009.12.31

Amount
$

1,271,795
15,105,449
$

326,853,165

December 31, 2008
$

Long-term loans

Construction of Yi Lan Branch

3) Operating leases
All subsidiaries have entered into operating leases for their branches. As of December 31, 2008, the minimum payments
on lease contract commitments for the next five years were as follows:

35,679
1,089,734

Payables
225,661
15
1,605

Payables from supervision fee

229

Tax payable

597

Pledge securities

15,105,449

Trust capital

417,816

Money trust

2010.1.1~2010.12.31

286,012

Marketable securities trust

2,553,204

2011.1.1~2011.12.31

204,192

Real estate investment trust

1,204,226

2012.1.1~2012.12.31

152,536

2013.1.1~2013.12.31

44,927

260,695,393

Other reserve and accumulated income
Accumulated loss

28,099,557

1,105,483

Foreign currency translation

13,307,961

4) Subsidiary BTS had several proxy delivery agreements with certain securities companies. In accordance with these
agreements, the companies have agreed to be BTS's first and second proxy. If BTS is unable to fulfill its obligations
to the TSE, the proxies must then act pursuant to said obligations and responsibilities.

Deferred unrealized income

(5,156,413)

$

96

Long-term secured loans

4,469

Period

16,888

Trust liabilities

150,405

$

933,396

Short-term loans
5,185

Total

503

Construction in progress
Marketable securities held as custodian

256,684

Construction of An Nan Branch

256,145

Real estate
Land

December 31, 2008
Name of contract

969

Receivables from trading securities

2) Construction in progress and significant purchase agreements:
Subsidiary BOT-the details of construction in progress and significant purchase agreements are as follows:

Construction of Nan Zih Branch

3,148,851

Prepaid expense

60,185,649
9,793,378

6,205

Receivables

Depository for short-term marketable securities under management

1,056,400,700

21,522,395

Deposits in other banks

328,458,300

Guarantee receivables

13,516,434

Deposits in the Bank of Taiwan

Book entry for government bonds under management

Insurance for issuance of New Taiwan Dollars

166,124,289

Common stock investment

Cash dividend receivable

2,134,836

104,949,846

Deposits

Interest receivable

Consigned sales of goods

$

Investment in bonds

435,814,005

Loans under custody on consignment

December 31, 2008

Short-term investment

Current income
Total

9,690,268
$

326,853,165
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Property list

December 31, 2008

Short-term investment
Investment in funds

$

Investment in bonds

104,949,846

1) A summary of personnel costs and depreciation, depletion, and amortization expenses, categorized by function, for
the year ended December 31, 2008, is as follows:
Function

166,124,289

Common stock investment

13,516,434

Nature

Deposits in the Bank of Taiwan

21,522,395

Deposits in other banks

6,205

Real estate
Land

933,396

Buildings

16,888

Construction in progress

1,271,795

Pledge securities

15,105,449

Trust capital

$
Trust income statement

323,446,697
2008

Trust revenue:
$

Cash dividend revenue

9,427,798
1,666,480

Income from beneficiary certificates

1,356

Salaries

Total

10,049,171

10,261,087

211,916
13,561

492,795

506,356

Pension

13,520

1,114,398

1,127,918

Other employment

22,923

1,111,050

1,133,973

22,467

956,566

979,033

Depreciation
Depletion

-

Amortization

-

Capital management fee
Tax expense
Other expense

Item

Interest expense

225,959,751

230,123,809

172,902,518

118,957,766

BankTaiwan Life Insurance

100.00

3,840,391

5,201,664

BankTaiwan Securities

100.00

1,194,491

Unrealized capital loss

Less: deductible item
Subtotal

179,406,811

128,559,770

4) Eligible capital
Unit: Thousand NTD
December 31, 2008
Item

1,294
$

269,138
(225,992,607)
139.55

337

Real estate tax

2,696,758
(225,992,607)

Consolidated capital adequacy ratio

3,751

Income tax expense

Legal capital

100.00

36

-

Eligible capital

Bank of Taiwan

9,575

Realized capital loss

December 31, 2008
Ownership interest

The Company

34,023

Commission fee

408,949

6,659
216

Storage fee

408,949

-

39,175
115,809

Supervisor fee

-

2) Cross-selling with subsidiaries
1. Cross-selling:
Please see Note 34.
2. Cross-utilization of information and mutual locations or business equipment
BOT shared part of the information system and office equipment with the Company, but the Company did not pay any
related expense to BOT.
3) Capital adequacy ratios
Unit: Thousand NTD, %
Entity

Trust expense:

(36) Subsequent Events: None.

Operating expenses

Labor and health insurance

11,095,634

Net income

2008
Cost of goods sold

Personnel costs

Deposits

Interest revenue

(37) Others

Amount

1,405,366

Common stock

9,690,268

Additional paid-in capital

111,495,264

90,000,000

Legal reserve

-

Special reserve

-

Accumulated profit

7,123,945

Equity adjustments

17,348,756

Less: goodwill

-

Less: deferred assets

8,214

Less: treasury stock

-

Consolidated eligible capital

225,959,751

5) Disclosures of total amounts or ratios with respect to credit extensions, endorsements, or other transactions
undertaken by a financial holding company and its subsidiaries for the same individual, the same related individual,
or the same affiliated enterprises in accordance with Article 46 of the "Financial Holding Company Act":
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Unit: Million NTD, %

December 31, 2008

December 31, 2008

Name
The same individual
Ministry of Finance, R.O.C.
Taiwan Power Company
Bureau of Labor Insurance
Central Bank of the Republic of China (Taiwan)
Related to high speed railway construction funds
Taipei County Government
Taichung County Government
Bureau of National Health Insurance
Chi Mei Optoelectronics Corporation
CPC Corporation, Taiwan
Central Deposit Insurance Corp.
Taiwan Railway Administration
Tainan County Government
Yilan County Government
Taiwan Water Corp.
AU Optronics Corp.
Daragon Steel Corporation
Nan Ya Plastics Corporation
Yunlin County Government
Central Taiwan Science Park Administration
Taoyuan County Government
Tainan City Government
EVA Airways Corporation
Hsinchu County Government
Hsinchu City Government
Chiayi County Government
Science Park Administration
China Airlines Ltd.
Promos Technologies Inc.
Formosa Petrochemical Corporation
Wintek Corporation
Chi Mei Optoelectronics Corporation
Formosa Chemicals & Fibre Corp.
Southern Taiwan Science Park Administration
R.S.E.A. Engineering Corporation
Miaoli County Government
Nantou County Government
China Steel Corporation
Kaohsiung County Government
Construction and Planning Agency, Ministry of the Interior
Prince Housing and Development Corp.
Taipei City Government Department of Transportation
Yang Ming Marine Transport Corp.
Pingtung County Government
Kaohsiung Rapid Transit Corp.
Powerchip Semiconductor Corp.
S.A.C. Pei Taiwan Holdings
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Total amount of
credit extensions,
endorsements, or other
transactions
189,627
100,901
40,848
29,400
29,197
28,641
26,641
24,500
22,316
21,653
21,450
19,293
16,335
16,250
15,075
14,052
13,496
13,365
12,215
12,040
11,337
10,922
10,710
10,686
10,496
10,413
10,347
9,858
9,564
9,235
9,169
9,149
8,859
8,840
8,116
8,103
7,477
7,032
6,800
6,400
6,288
6,074
6,009
5,389
5,370
5,190
4,725

Name
% of net asset value
83.92
44.65
18.08
13.01
12.92
12.67
11.79
10.84
9.88
9.58
9.49
8.54
7.23
7.19
6.67
6.22
5.97
5.91
5.41
5.33
5.02
4.83
4.74
4.73
4.64
4.61
4.58
4.36
4.23
4.09
4.06
4.05
3.92
3.91
3.59
3.59
3.31
3.11
3.01
2.83
2.78
2.69
2.66
2.38
2.38
2.30
2.09

China Shipbuilding Corporation
Taiwan Asset Management Corporation
Fubon Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
Chunghwa Picture Tubes, Ltd.
Far Eastern Textile Ltd.
Qisda Corporation
Rich Development Construction Co., Ltd.
Chailease Finance Co., Ltd.
Formosa Plastics Corporation
Hualien County Government
Ho Ping Power Company
Taitung County Government
Chung Hung Steel Corporation
Evergreen Marine Corporation
Young Ching Corp.
Huang Hsiang Construction Corporation
The same related individual
Mr./Ms. Wu and related individual
Mr./Ms. Liao and related individual
Mr./Ms. Wang and related individual
Mr./Ms. Lee and related individual
Mr./Ms. Shiao and related individual
Mr./Ms. Lin and related individual
Mr./Ms. Zeng and related individual
Mr./Ms. Shyue and related individual
The same affiliated enterprises
Taiwan Power Co., Ltd. and its affiliates
Ya Suo Development Corp. and its affiliates
Chi Lin Technology Co., Ltd. and its affiliates
GIO Optoelectronics Corp. and its affiliates
CPC Corporation, Taiwan and its affiliates
Chi Mei Optoelectronics Corporation and its affiliates
CPC Corporation, Taiwan and its affiliates
Chi Mei Energy Corp. and its affiliates
Chi Mei Lighting Technology Corporation and its affiliates
Chi Hsin Electronics Corp. and its affiliates
Contrel Technology Co., Ltd. and its affiliates
Chi Mei Electronics Corporation and its affiliates
Himax Technologies Limited and its affiliates
Infochamp Systems Corp. and its affiliates
Dragon Steel Corporation and its affiliates
EVA Airways Corporation and its affiliates
Evergreen Marine Corporation and its affiliates
Taiwan Railways Administration and its affiliates
Qisda Corporation and its affiliates
Darfon Electronics Corp. and its affiliates
AU Optronics Corp. and its affiliates
Formosa Tafeeta Co., Ltd. and its affiliates
Nan Ya Plastics Corporation and its affiliates

Total amount of
credit extensions,
endorsements, or other
transactions

% of net asset value

4,679
4,625
4,240
4,083
3,953
3,892
3,894
3,620
3,591
3,600
3,450
3,424
3,352
3,084
3,000
3,003

2.07
2.05
1.88
1.81
1.75
1.72
1.72
1.60
1.59
1.59
1.53
1.52
1.48
1.36
1.33
1.33

7,090
6,340
4,836
4,489
3,773
3,202
3,202
3,067

3.14
2.81
2.14
1.99
1.67
1.42
1.42
1.36

100,901
36,155
33,212
31,505
31,299
24,537
23,955
22,645
22,597
22,516
22,416
22,316
22,316
20,529
20,529
19,473
19,362
19,293
18,239
18,239
18,239
17,278
16,767

44.65
16.00
14.70
13.94
13.85
10.86
10.60
10.02
10.00
9.96
9.92
9.88
9.88
9.08
9.08
8.62
8.57
8.54
8.07
8.07
8.07
7.65
7.42
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December 31, 2008

Name
Taipei Port Container Terminal and its affiliates
Taiwan Water Corp. and its affiliates
Lextar Electronics Corporation and its affiliates
Nan Ya Plastics (Hong Kong) Corporation and its affiliates
Formosa Petrochemical Corporation and its affiliates
Evergreen Aviation Technologies Corporation and its affiliates
Kaohsiung Rapid Transit Corp. and its affiliates
Promos Technologies Inc. and its affiliates
Evergreen Sky Catering Corp. and its affiliates
Hsin Tao Power Corporation and its affiliates
Golden Win Steel Industrial Corp. and its affiliates
Uni President Development Co., Ltd. and its affiliates
Ye Long Enterprises Corp. and its affiliates
Chi Mei Materials Technology Corporation and its affiliates
Chi Mei Corporation and its affiliates
China Airlines Ltd. and its affiliates
China Pacific Laundry Services Ltd. and its affiliates
Chi Mei- Asahi Corp. and its affiliates
Wintek Corporation and its affiliates
Mactech Corporation and its affiliates
United Win (H.K.) Technology Limited and its affiliates
Masstop Asia Pacific Limited and its affiliates
Formosa Chemicals & Fibre Corp. and its affiliates
R.S.E.A. Engineering Corporation and its affiliates
China Steel Machinery Corporation and its affiliates
Tatung Co. and its affiliates
My-Funding Corp. and its affiliates
Ta Chen Construction & Engineering Corp. and its affiliates
Forward Electronics Co., Ltd. and its affiliates
Thintech Materials Technology Co., Ltd. and its affiliates
Grand Pacific Credit Company Ltd. and its affiliates
Uni-President Enterprises Corp. and its affiliates
Far Eastern Dept. Store, Ltd. and its affiliates
China Steel Chemical Corporation and its affiliates
China Ecotek Corporation and its affiliates
China Steel Express Corporation and its affiliates
CSE Transport Corp. and its affiliates
Taiwan Cement Co., Ltd. and its affiliates
Hoping Industrial Port Corporation and its affiliates
Prince Housing and Development Corp. and its affiliates
Far Eastern General Construction Inc. and its affiliates
Yang Ming Marine Transport Corp. and its affiliates
Taiwan Prosperity Chemical Corporation and its affiliates
Yuen Foong Yu Paper Mfg. Co., Ltd. and its affiliates
KGI Securities Finance Co., Ltd. and its affiliates
Fubon Securites Co., Ltd. and its affiliates
Powerchip Semiconductor Corp. and its affiliates
Yuanta Securities Finance Corp. and its affiliates
Daxon Technology Inc. and its affiliates

102

December 31, 2008

Total amount of
credit extensions,
endorsements, or other
transactions
16,591
15,075
14,052
13,365
12,625
12,615
12,403
12,189
11,360
11,013
10,750
10,583
10,384
9,973
9,973
9,922
9,922
9,349
9,169
9,169
9,169
9,169
8,866
8,116
7,532
7,503
7,474
7,462
7,403
7,396
7,349
7,245
7,234
7,032
7,032
7,032
7,032
6,985
6,407
6,288
6,156
6,009
5,945
5,839
5,706
5,343
5,290
4,854
4,778

% of net asset value
7.34
6.67
6.22
5.91
5.59
5.58
5.49
5.39
5.03
4.87
4.76
4.68
4.60
4.41
4.41
4.39
4.39
4.14
4.06
4.06
4.06
4.06
3.92
3.59
3.33
3.32
3.31
3.30
3.28
3.27
3.25
3.21
3.20
3.11
3.11
3.11
3.11
3.09
2.84
2.78
2.72
2.66
2.63
2.58
2.53
2.36
2.34
2.15
2.11

Name
BES Engineering Corporation and its affiliates
China Shipbuilding Corporation and its affiliates
Far Eastern Textile Ltd. and its affiliates
Taiwan Asset Management Corporation and its affiliates
Li Sing Asset Management Corp. and its affiliates
Fubon Financial Holding Co., Ltd. and its affiliates
Fubon Asset Management Co., Ltd and its affiliates
Green Forest Development Enterprise Co., Ltd. and its affiliates
Rich Development Construction Co., Ltd. and its affiliates
Chailease Finance Co., Ltd. and its affiliates
Kai Yuan International Investment Co., Ltd. and its affiliates
An Ho Garment Co., Ltd. and its affiliates
Yuan Tong Investment Corp. and its affiliates
Shin Sheng Corp. and its affiliates
Chailease Consumer Finance Co., Ltd. and its affiliates
China Man-made Fiber Corp. and its affiliates
Taiwan Cogeneration Corporation and its affiliates
Young Ching Corp. and its affiliates
Formosa Plastics Corporation and its affiliates
President Fair Development Corp. and its affiliates
China Petrochemical Development Corporation and its affiliates
TCEC Corporation and its affiliates
Tang Eng Iron Works Co., Ltd. and its affiliates
President Tokyo Corporation and its affiliates
Hong Li Steel Corporation and its affiliates
Yun Hong Investment Corp. and its affiliates
Chunghwa Picture Tubes, Ltd. and its affiliates
President Securities Corp. and its affiliates
Yieh United Steel Corporation and its affiliates
President Packaging Industrial Corp. and its affiliates
Evergreen International Storage and Transport Corporation and
its affiliates
Uni-President Glass Industrial Co., Ltd. and its affiliates
Hsin Kuang Development Co., Ltd. and its affiliates
Hsin Kuang textile Co., Ltd. and its affiliates
Pan Asian Plastics Corp. and its affiliates
Taishin Securities Co., Ltd. and its affiliates
Hannstar Display Corporation and its affiliates
Huang Hsiang Construction Corporation and its affiliates
Total

Total amount of
credit extensions,
endorsements, or other
transactions

% of net asset value

4,744
4,679
4,652
4,625
4,625
4,240
4,240
4,187
4,187
4,050
3,953
3,953
3,953
3,750
3,720
3,714
3,649
3,614
3,596
3,583
3,566
3,550
3,433
3,369
3,352
3,352
3,250
3,239
3,183
3,148

2.10
2.07
2.06
2.05
2.05
1.88
1.88
1.85
1.85
1.79
1.75
1.75
1.75
1.66
1.65
1.64
1.61
1.60
1.59
1.59
1.58
1.57
1.52
1.49
1.48
1.48
1.44
1.43
1.41
1.39

3,084

1.36

3,075
3,058
3,055
3,055
3,055
3,038
3,003
2,159,367

1.36
1.35
1.35
1.35
1.35
1.34
1.33

Note 1: Taiwan High Speed Rail Corporation is included.
2. This form discloses total amounts which reach the lower of 5% of net worth or $3 billion with respect to credit
extensions, endorsements, or other transactions undertaken by a financial holding company and its subsidiaries
for the same individual, the same related individual, or the same affiliated enterprises.
3. Credit extensions mean loans, discounts, overdrafts, acceptances, guarantees, and other business items
designated by the central competent authority-in-charge.
4. Endorsements mean endorsements and guarantees of bills corporations.
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5. Other transactions mean the following transactions with the same individual, the same related individual, or the
same affiliated enterprises:
(1) Invest or purchase securities whose issuers are these related parties.
(2) Purchase these related parties' real estate or other assets.
(3) Sell securities, real estate, or other assets to these related parties.
(4) Sign contracts to give money or supply labor.
(5) Act as an agent or broker of the financial holding company or its subsidiaries, or supply services on a
commission or expenses basis.
(6) Conducting the above transactions with third parties that are stakeholders in these related parties, or
transactions in which these related parties participate with third parties.
(7) The amounts of negotiable certificates issued by a bank subsidiary are not included in the calculation.
(8) The amounts of financial institutions' repurchase agreements are not included in the calculation.
6) The disclosures according to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 28:
1. Loan quality, concentration of credit risk, and policies on allowance for bad debts arising from loans and advances to
customers
(a) Loan quality
December 31, 2008
Type / Item
Enterprise Secured
Non-secured
Consumer House mortgage
finance
Cash card
Micro credit
Others

Amount of
overdue loans

Total amount of
loans

Ratio

Allowance for
bad debt

Coverage ratio

5,993,948

391,147,404

1.53%

2,620,426

43.72%

4,912,250

1,042,827,253

0.47%

4,488,539

91.37%

6,386,009

361,339,108

1.77%

2,378,736

37.25%

-

-

436,734

-

-

17,820,177

2.45%

-

396,861

90.87%
40.35%

Secured

1,052,522

58,142,221

1.81%

424,656

Non-secured

2,476,296

128,466,677

1.93%

1,363,376

55.06%

21,257,759

1,999,742,840

1.06%

11,672,594

54.91%

Total

Overdue
receivables
Credit card business
Factoring receivables-non-recourse

8,693
-

Account
receivable

Ratio

1,158,361
1,298,819

0.75%
-

Allowance bad
debt
14,606
3,896

Unit: Million, %
December 31, 2008
Rank

Credit extensions
balance

Group Name

168.02%
-

% of net asset value

1

Formosa Plastics

45,311

20.03%

2

Chimei

36,995

16.36%

3

China Steel

31,672

14.00%

4

Evergreen

21,687

9.59%

5

BenQ

19,683

8.70%

6

Uni-President

15,518

6.86%

7

Promos Technologies

12,189

5.39%

8

Tainan Spinning

11,058

4.89%

9

Yuanta Financial Holdings

11,069

4.73%

10

China Airlines

9,922

4.39%

Note 1: Top ten borrowers (excluding government or state-owned utilities) according to total credit extensions.
Note 2: Groups are regulated in the Supplementary Provisions to the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation Criteria
for Review of Securities Listings, Article 6.
Note 3: Total credit extensions comprise loans (including import bills negotiated, export bills negotiated, overdrafts,
short-term loans, short-term secured loans, receivables from pecuniary finance, medium-term loans,
medium-term secured loans, long-term loans, long-term secured loans, and overdue receivables),
exchange bills negotiated, factoring receivable without recourse, acceptances receivable, and guarantees
issued.
2. Information on concentration of credit risk of assets, liabilities, and off-balance-sheet items: Please see note 32.
3. The average amount of assets and liabilities, as well as the current rate, is disclosed as follows:
Subsidiary-BOT
December 31, 2008

Cover ratio

Note 1: For loan business: Overdue loans represent the amounts of reported overdue loans pursuant to the "Regulations Governing
the Procedures for Banking Institutions to Evaluate Assets and Deal with Non-performing/Non-accrual Loans" issued by
the MOF. For credit card business: Overdue receivables are regulated by the Banking Bureau letter dated July 6, 2005 (Ref.
No. 0944000378).
Note 2: For loan business: NPL Ratio = NPL/Total Loans. For credit card business: Delinquency Ratio = Overdue receivables/
Accounts receivable.
Note 3: For loan business: Coverage Ratio = LLR/NPL. For credit card business: Coverage Ratio = Allowance for credit losses/
Overdue receivables.
Note 4: Household mortgage means the purpose of financing is to purchase, build, or fix up a dwelling, and the dwelling owned by
the borrower, spouse, or children fully secures the loan.
Note 5: Micro credit is regulated by the Banking Bureau letter dated December 19, 2005 (Ref. No. 09440010950)
Note 6: Others in consumer finance refer to secured or non-secured loans excluding mortgage, cash card, micro credit, and credit
card.
Note 7: Account receivables-factoring with no recourse: As required by the Banking Bureau letter dated July 19, 2005 (Ref. No.
094000494), provision for bad debt is recognized once no compensation is received from the factoring or insurance
company.
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(b) Concentration of credit extensions

Average

Average interest rate
(%)

Interest-earnings assets:
Call loans and placement with banks
Placement with Central Bank
Financial assets
Negotiation, discounts and total loans

$

158,137,960

2.28

640,658,855

2.02

187,821,011

3.25

1,974,798,106

3.12

Interest-bearing liabilities:
Deposit of Central Bank

12,984,027

-

Deposits and call loans from banks

217,817,458

2.07

Demand deposit

179,240,450

0.54

Demand savings

378,091,857

1.36

1,338,061,939

3.13

Time deposits

Time savings

536,787,854

2.98

Government deposits

230,896,009

0.81

Note: Average is calculated by daily average of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities from January to
current month.
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4. Ratios of interest-rate-sensitive assets to liabilities and of interest-rate-sensitive spread to net equity
Balance sheet interest rate sensitivity-for NTD
December 31, 2008
Subsidiary-BOT
Unit: Thousand NTD, %
1~90 days

91~180 days

181 days to
one year

Over one year

Total

Interest-rate-sensitive assets $ 1,355,929,976

1,210,165,619

96,956,678

-

2,663,052,273

Interest-rate-sensitive
liabilities

343,727,421

2,023,111,444

350,447,148

-

2,717,286,013

1,012,202,555

(812,945,825)

(253,490,470)

-

(54,233,740)

Interest rate sensitivity gap
Net worth

230,669,037

Ratio of interest-rate-sensitive assets to liabilities

98.00

Ratio of interest rate sensitivity gap to net worth

(23.51)

Note 1: The above amounts include only New Taiwan Dollar amounts held by the Bank subsidiary's onshore branches
(i.e., excluding foreign currency).
Note 2: Interest-rate-sensitive assets and liabilities refer to the revenues or costs of interest-earning assets and
interest-bearing liabilities which are affected by interest rate changes.
Note 3: Interest rate sensitivity gap = Interest-rate-sensitive assets - Interest-rate-sensitive liabilities.
Note 4: Ratio of interest-rate-sensitive assets to liabilities = Interest-rate-sensitive assets/Interest-rate-sensitive
liabilities (only interest-rate-sensitive assets and liabilities within one year, in New Taiwan Dollars).
Note 5: Ratio of interest rate sensitivity gap to net value = Interest rate sensitivity gap / net value.
Balance sheet interest rate sensitivity-for USD
December 31, 2008
Subsidiary-BOT
Unit: Thousand USD, %
1~90 days

91~180 days

181 days to
one year

Over one year

Total

Interest-rate-sensitive assets $

11,447,791

1,914,005

1,277,147

895,286

15,534,229

Interest-rate-sensitive
liabilities

11,136,518

2,873,090

1,547,171

130,058

15,686,837

311,273

(959,085)

(270,024)

765,228

(152,608)

Interest rate sensitivity gap
Net worth

(154,569)

Ratio of interest-rate-sensitive assets to liabilities

99.03

Ratio of interest rate sensitivity gap to net worth

98.73

Note 1: The above amounts include only U.S. Dollar amounts held by the onshore branches, OBU, and offshore
branches of the Bank and exclude contingent assets and contingent liabilities.
Note 2: Interest-rate-sensitive assets and liabilities refer to the revenues or costs of interest-earning assets and
interest-bearing liabilities which are affected by interest rate changes.
Note 3: Interest rate sensitivity gap = Interest-rate-sensitive assets - Interest-rate-sensitive liabilities.
Note 4: Ratio of interest-rate-sensitive assets to liabilities = Interest-rate sensitive assets/Interest-rate-sensitive
liabilities (only interest-rate-sensitive assets and liabilities within 180 days, in U.S. Dollars).
Note 5: Ratio of interest rate sensitivity gap to net value = interest rate sensitivity gap / net value.
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5. Profitability
Unit: %
Item
Return on total assets
Return on net worth

December 31, 2008
Before income tax

0.19

After income tax

0.19

Before income tax

3.10

After income tax

3.15

Profit margin

11.70

Note 1: Return on total assets = Income before (after) income tax/Average total assets.
Note 2: Return on net worth = Income before (after) income tax/Average net worth.
Note 3: Profit margin = Income after income tax/Total operating revenues.
Note 4: Income before (after) income tax is the income in the six months ended June 30, 2008.
6. Major foreign currency position, net
Subsidiary-BOT
December 31, 2008
Currency

Amount in functional currency

Amount in New Taiwan Dollars

JPY

3,041,756

1,102,637

USD

27,363

896,795

GBP

18,676

883,732

CNY

112,184

538,023

SGD

14,718

335,141

Note 1: The major foreign currencies are the top five amounts after all functional currencies are converted to New
Taiwan Dollars.
Note 2: The major foreign currency net position is the absolute value of each foreign currency net position.
7. Duration analysis of assets and liabilities
Term Structure Analysis of NTD-denominated Assets and Liabilities
December 31, 2008
Subsidiary-BOT
Unit: Thousand NTD
Amount for each remaining period to maturity
Total

Day 1 to day 30 Day 31 to day 90 Day 91 to day 180

Day 181 to 1 year

Over 1 year

Main capital
inﬂow on
maturity

$3,283,298,908

559,060,939

519,085,732

413,278,448

348,120,707

1,443,753,082

Main capital
outﬂow on
maturity

3,611,239,759

410,912,286

411,965,424

424,200,921

937,159,046

1,427,002,082

Interval gap

(327,940,851)

148,148,653

107,120,308

(10,922,473)

(589,038,339)

16,751,000

Note: The table includes only assets and liabilities denominated in NTD held in head office and domestic and overseas
branches; assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are excluded.
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Term Structure Analysis of USD-denominated Assets and Liabilities
December 31, 2008
Subsidiary-BOT

Unit: Thousand USD

8) Supplementary information for pro forma comparative financial statements
1. If the Company had been established in the year ended December 31, 2007, the pro forma information on the
consolidated operating results would be as follows:

Amount for each remaining period to maturity
Total
Main capital
inﬂow on
maturity

Day 1 to day 30

Day 31 to day 90

Day 91 to day
180

December 31, 2007
Net interest income

Day 181 to 1 year

Over 1 year

Net income

27,673,836
12,576,700

EPS (NTD) calculated by the term-end weighted-average number of shares
$

12,374,295

4,817,199

3,640,140

1,491,537

1,327,151

1,098,268

12,342,139

Interval gap

32,156

5,845,428
(1,028,229)

3,288,559
351,581

1,369,376
122,161

1,540,068
(212,917)

298,708
799,560

Businesses
Items

Banking
business

Insurance
business

Securities
business

Other
business

2.37

Information about earnings of each individual company:
2007

Main capital
outﬂow on
maturity

Note 1: The above amounts are book values of the assets and liabilities of the onshore branches and offshore banking
unit of the subsidiary BOT in U.S. dollars, without off-balance-sheet amounts (for example, the issuance of
negotiable certificates of deposits, bonds or stocks).
Note 2: If the overseas assets are at least 10% of the total assets, there should be additional disclosures.
8. The trade information about stakeholders who are borrowers, guarantors or collateral providers
(a) Name and relationship of the related party: Please see note 34. The credit part shows the stakeholders in
accordance with “The Banking Act of the Republic of China”, Article 33-1.
(b) Significant transactions with related party:
a) Loans: Please see note 34(2)(9)
b) Guarantee payment: none.
c) Transactions involving derivative financial instruments: none.
d) Transactions involving selling non-performing loans: none.
7) Financial information classified by business type
The year ended December 31, 2008
Unit: thousand NTD

BOT

BTLI

BTS

Net interest income

27,673,836

-

-

Net income

12,576,700

-

-

2. Condensed pro forma consolidated balance sheets and income statements
(a) Condensed pro forma consolidated balance sheets
December 31, 2007
(audited by MOA)
Cash and cash equivalents

$

Due from Central Bank and call loans to banks

625,965,012

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

64,566,565

Bonds and bills purchased under resell agreements

14,162,067

Receivable, net

107,082,342

Loans, net

1,920,097,700

Available-for-sale financial assets, net

201,069,905

Held-to-maturity financial assets, net

105,802,005

Investments under equity method, net

34,357,836

Other financial assets, net

79,502,931

Fixed assets, net

83,460,268

Goodwill and intangible assets, net
Total

91,388,105

1,082,609

Other assets, net

19,237,023

Net interest income

24,065,869

3,806,916

85,530

15

27,958,330

Total assets

$

3,347,774,368

Net non-interest income

(1,607,923)

34,364,344

192,843

3,522

32,952,786

Due to Central Bank and other banks

$

245,414,754

Net revenues

22,457,946

38,171,260

278,373

3,537

60,911,116

Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss

1,545,337

56,207

(3,290)

Provision for insurance reserves

(4,978,928)

38,689,8 69

Operating expense

17,898,785

338,184

Bad debt expense

Net income before cumulative
effect of changes in accounting
principle and income tax

-

-

1,598,254

-

348,128

20,038

1,478,166

Bonds and bills sold under repurchase agreements

17,570,315

33,710,941

Payables

95,269,833

18,605,135

Deposits

2,466,179,246

Accrued pension payable
7,992,752

Income tax expense

350,308

Cumulative effect of changes in
accounting principle

-

Net income

108

$

7,642,444

(913,000)

(66,465)

(466,053)
(446,947)

(16,501)

(3,200)
(63,265)

(8,214)
-

6,996,786
(127,159)
-

(8,287)

7,123,945

2,106,598

Other financial liabilities

1,715,307

Other liabilities

268,900,646

Total liabilities

3,098,634,865

Total stockholders' equity
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

249,139,503
$

3,347,774,368
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(b) Condensed pro forma consolidated income statement

9) Financial statements of Taiwan Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
2007
(audited by MOA)

Net interest income

$

Net revenue

TAIWAN FINANCIAL HOLDING CO., LTD.
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2008
(expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

27,673,836
85,015,211

Bad debt expense

868,389

Assets

Provisions for insurance reserves

51,767,094

Cash and cash equivalents

Operating expense

18,949,456

Receivables, net

Income before tax

13,430,272

Investments under equity method, net

Income tax

$

348,555
535,787
225,992,607

853,573

Fixed assets, net

12,576,699

Intangible assets

14

EPS-before tax (in NT dollars)

2.53

Other assets, net

3,598,341

EPS-after tax (in NT dollars)

2.37

Total Assets

Income after tax

(c) Condensed pro forma consolidated income statements:

$

Less: interest expense

82,920,559
(55,246,723)

Net interest income

27,673,836

Non-interest income, net

230,480,578

Payables

$

538,561

Other liabilities

3,973,930

Accrued pension payable

122

Total liabilities

4,512,613

Stockholders' equity
Common stock

Net income on service charges and commissions

3,655,799

Net insurance business income

11,331,059

Gain (loss) on financial assets or liabilities measured at fair value though profit or loss

9,660,663

Realized gain (loss) on available-for-sale financial assets

3,702,417

Realized gain (loss) on held-to-maturity financial assets

(23,185)

Income (loss) from equity investments under equity method

2,479,225

Foreign exchange gain (loss)

879,111

Gain on reversal of or loss on asset impairment

(99,430)

Other non-interest income

15,615,005

Net revenues

74,874,500

Credit provisions

41,626,383

Operating expense

18,949,456

Income (loss) from continuing operations before tax

13,430,272

Income tax

853,573
$

12,576,699

90,000,000

Additional paid-in capital

111,495,264

Retained earnings:
Unappropriated earnings

7,123,945

Equity adjustments:
Unrealized increments on revaluation

16,930,538

Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustment

(155,274)

Unrealized gain on financial instruments

573,492
17,348,756

Total stockholders' equity

225,967,965

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

868,389

Provisions for insurance reserves

Net income

$

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
2007
(audited by MOA)

Interest income

5,274

$

230,480,578

$

90

TAIWAN FINANCIAL HOLDING CO., LTD.
Statement of Income
For the year ended December 31, 2008
(expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)
Revenues:
Interest income
Income from equity investments under equity method

7,148,588

Other gains

3,522
7,152,200

Expenses:
Operating expenses

36,394

Other expenses and losses

75
36,469

Income before income tax

7,115,731

Income tax benefits
Net income

110

(8,214)
$

7,123,945
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TAIWAN FINANCIAL HOLDING CO., LTD.
Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity
For the year ended December 31, 2008
(expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Common stock Capital surplus
Balance as of January
1, 2008 (the date of
establishment by share
swap)

Non-cash share capital
reduction (note 26)

Net cash used in investing activities

(6,287)

Prepaid dividends (for government)

Cumulative foreign
Unrealized increments currency translation
on revaluation
adjustments

Unappropriated
retained earnings

(18)
383,706

Guarantee deposits received

Unrealized gain (loss)
on financial
instruments

98

Net cash provided by financing activities
Total

383,804

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

348,555

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

-

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
90,000,000

Adjustments for change
in subsidiaries' special
reserve
Capital surplus transferred
to capital stock (note 26)

Increase in intangible assets

215,854,060

-

23,603,085

494,451

29,690,022

359,641,618

$

348,555

10) Subsidiaries' condensed consolidated balance sheets and statements of income
1. Condensed balance sheets
BOT

109,467,296

(320,552)

-

-

-

-

(109,467,296)

-

-

-

-

(320,552)

December 31, 2008
Cash and cash equivalents

-

$

Due from Central Blank and call loans to banks
(109,467,296)

Change in unrealized
increments on revaluation
Change in cumulative
foreign currency
translation adjustments
Change in unrealized
gain (loss) on financial
instruments
Net income for the year
ended December 31,
2008

5,429,052

-

(6,723,557)

(698,138)

(4,387,274) (115,847,213)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Bonds and bills purchased under resell agreements

-

-

-

51,010

-

-

51,010

Receivables, net
Discounts and loans, net

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

48,413

-

-

48,413

(24,729,256)

(24,729,256)

-

Balance as of December
31, 2008
$ 90,000,000

111,495,264

7,123,945
7,123,945

16,930,538

-

(155,274)

7,123,945
573,492

225,967,965

TAIWAN FINANCIAL HOLDING CO., LTD.
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2008
(expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Cash dividends received in excess of gains on equity investments recognized using the equity
method
Increase in receivables
Increase in other assets
Increase in payables
Increase in accrued pension liabilities
Net cash uesd in operating activities

64,566,565

298,262

14,162,067

103,431,970

107,082,342
1,920,097,700
201,069,905

Held-to-maturity financial assets, net

31,818,435

105,802,005

Investments under equity method, net

26,959,682

34,357,836

Other financial assets, net

67,326,090

79,502,931

Fixed assets

79,953,507

83,460,268

1,226,158

1,082,609

Other assets, net

16,735,326

19,237,023

Total assets

$

3,594,174,576

3,347,774,368

Due to Central Bank and other banks

$

181,489,738

245,414,754

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

6,002,275

1,478,166

Bonds and bills sold under repurchase agreements

19,217,840

17,570,315

63,901,807

95,269,833

2,947,909,688

2,466,179,246

Accrued pension liability

2,396,018

2,106,598

Other financial liabilities

1,618,124

1,715,307

Other liabilities

148,010,097

268,900,646

999

Total liabilities

3,370,545,587

3,098,634,865

(7,148,588)

Common stock

45,000,000

53,000,000

7,123,945

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash flows provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization

72,201,513

155,491,586

Deposits and remittances

$

91,388,105
625,965,012

1,988,070,246

Payables

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income

54,420,521
996,241,280

Available-for-sale financial assets, net

Intangible assets
-

December 31, 2007
(audited by MOA)

Additional paid-in capital
(535,787)
(8,214)
538,561
122

110,063,016

110,423,081

Retained earnings

46,224,385

43,737,833

Others

22,341,588

41,978,589

Total stockholders' equity
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

$

223,628,989

249,139,503

3,594,174,576

3,347,774,368

(28,962)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Increase in fixed assets

112

(6,269)
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2. Condensed income statements

BTLI

BOT

December 31, 2008
Current assets

$

Loans

79,973,514
9,438,540

Funds and investments

95,810,913

Fixed assets

850,696

Intangible assets

219,513

Other assets, net

6,281,271

Total assets

$

192,574,447

Current liabilities

$

33,774,345

Long-term liabilities

242,384

Reserve for operations and other liabilities

153,340,344

Other liabilities

5,880,134

Total liabilities

193,237,207

Common stock

5,000,000

Capital surplus

360,065

Accumulated deficit

(940,348)

Other stockholders' equity

(5,082,477)

Total stockholders' equity
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

(662,760)
$

192,574,447

December 31, 2008
$

Fixed assets
Intangible assets

5,431

Other assets, net

499,618

Total assets

$

5,265,344

Current liabilities

$

2,052,878

Other liabilities

186,087

Total liabilities

2,238,965

Common stock

3,000,000
(63,265)

Unrealized incremental value from revaluation

89,070

Unrealized gain on financial instrument

574

Total stockholders' equity
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

Non-interest income, net
Net revenue
Credit provisions
Operating expenses

$

23,666,146

27,673,836

4,316,754

5,574,281

27,982,900

33,248,117

1,545,337

868,389

17,935,054

18,949,456

Income before tax

8,502,509

13,430,272

Income after tax

8,152,201

12,576,699

EPS-before tax (dollars)

1.89

2.53

EPS-after tax (dollars)

1.81

2.37
BTLI
2008

Operating revenues

$

Operating costs

3,026,379
$

5,265,344

67,368,032
67,626,265

Operating expenses

394,391

Operating losses

(652,624)

Non-operating revenue

1,073,568
1,827,345

Loss before tax

(1,406,401)

Loss after tax

(940,348)

EPS-before tax (dollars)

(2.81)

EPS-after tax (dollars)

(1.88)
BTS

2,561

Non-appropriated surplus

114

4,526,587
231,147

Net brokering accounts-debit

Net interest income

Non-operating expenses

BTS
Current assets

2007
(audited by MOA)

2008

2008
Operating revenue

$

377,107

Operating expenses

443,572

Income before tax

(66,465)

Income after tax

(63,265)

EPS-before tax (dollars)

(0.22)

EPS-after tax (dollars)

(0.21)

(38) Notes to Disclosure Items
1) Information on significant transactions:
1. Information regarding long-term equity investment for which the purchase or sale amount for the period exceeded $300
million or 10% of the Consolidated Companies' paid-in capital: none.
2. Information on the acquisition of real estate for which the purchase amount exceeded $300 million or 10% of the
Consolidated Companies' paid-in capital: none.
3. Information on the disposal of real estate for which the sale amount exceeded $300 million or 10% of the Consolidated
Companies' paid-in capital: none.
4. Information regarding discounted processing fees on transactions with related parties for which the amount exceeded
$5 million: none.
5. Information regarding receivables from related parties for which the amount exceeded $300 million or 10% of the
Consolidated Companies' paid-in capital: none.
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6. Information regarding selling non-performing loans: none.
7. Approved securitization instrument types and related information according to "asset-backed securitization" or
"mortgage-backed securitization": none.
8. Other material transaction items which were significant to people who use the information in the financial statements:
none.
2) Information on long term investments:
1. Information on investees' names, locations, etc.:

7. Information on the disposal of real estate for which the sale amount exceeded NT$300 million or 10% of the
Consolidated Companies' paid-in capital:
Disposing
Company

Name

Location

Percentage

Invested

Gain (loss) on

operations

of shares

amount

investment

shares

shares

of shares

-

45,000,000,000

party

642,651 1,988,889

Bidder prepays

Acquired

Relationship

Purpose of
Disposal

Reference for Price

To reach

Referring to

10% of the ﬂoor

Development

budget

appraiser's appraisal

54, 54-1, 55, 59,

price as deposit at

Co., Ltd.

goal

and examined by the

60-3 Sec. 5 Nanhai

the time of bidding;

Bank's real estate

Rd., Zhong Zheng

after bid-opening,

committee; after

District, Taipei City,

the bidder makes

notifying the audit

Taiwan Land

the payment in full

division of the board
of directors, the ﬂoor

2008.10.14 1951.06.04

1,346,238 Ruentex

None

6th ﬂoor, No.69, Section 2, Dunhua Life insurance

price is verified by the

of Payment.

general manager and

South Road, Taipei City

BankTaiwan Securities

No.58, Section 1, Chongching

Co. Ltd.

South Road, Taipei City

Hua Nan Financial

No. 38, Sec.1, Chongching S. Rd.

Investment according

Holding Co. Ltd.

Taipei City

to Financial Holding

Securities

100.00%

3,026,379

(63,265)

3,000,000,000

-

5,000,000,000
3,000,000,000

100.00%
100.00%

-

Taiwan Life Insurance

No.17, Syuchang St., Taipei City
4F., No.53, Tonghua 4th Rd.,

Sulfate Co., Ltd.

Kaohsiung

Tang Eng Iron Works

No. 4, Yanhai 2nd Rd., Siaogang

Co., Ltd.

Distr., Kaohsiung City

Tai Yi Real-Estate

3F., No.56, Dunhua N. Rd., Taipei

Management Co., Ltd.

City

None

(The ﬂoor price for
29.36%

26,349,622

2,655,397

1,788,121,032

-

1,788,421,032

29.36%

Life insurance

bidding is 1,793,000

-

thousand dollars.)
Bank of Taiwan No. 88, 90 Sec.
28.46%

1,035,486

(1,229,172)

153,445,472

-

153,445,472

28.46%

-

Co. Ltd.
Kaohsiung Ammonium

Other

published for bidding.

-

Company Act

Liquidating
Iron industry
Real-estate appraisal

91.86%
21.38%
30.00%

2,640,474
1,090,467
9,577

(14,163)
(506,966)
(3,091)

303,131,576
74,822,414
1,500,000

-

303,131,576
74,822,414
1,500,000

91.86%
21.38%
30.00%

-

2008.10.29 2007.07.01

118,800

409,880 Bidder prepays

291,080 Wu Jian Sen

None

To reach

Referring to

1 Zhongzheng

10% of the ﬂoor

budget

appraiser's appraisal

Rd, Zhong Zheng

price as deposit at

goal

and examined by the

District, Taipei City,

the time of bidding;

Bank's real estate

Taiwan Land

after bid-opening,

committee; after

the bidder makes

notifying the audit

the payment in full

division of the board

within 40 days after

of directors, the ﬂoor

-

Note 1: The investees' shares or pro-forma shares held by the Company's board of directors, supervisor, CEO, vice CEO and
affiliates conforming to the Company Act should be included.
Note 2:(1) Pro-forma shares are the "securities having equity property" or "derivative instrument contracts (have not been
converted into stock)" that can be converted into shares of the investee company under Article 74 of the "Company Act"
for investment purposes.
(2) The above "securities having equity property" means the securities that conform to the regulation in Article 11,
Paragraph 1 of the Securities and Exchange Act Enforcement Rules, for example, convertible bonds and stock warrants.
(3) The abovementioned "derivative instrument contracts" conformed to the definition of derivative instrument in SFAS No.
34 "Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement", for example, stock options.
Note 3: The statement can be omitted in the 1st and 3rd quarters.
2. Lending to other parties: none.
3. Guarantees and endorsements for other parties: none.
4. Information regarding securities held as of December 31, 2008: none.
5. Information regarding securities for which the purchase or sale amount for the period exceeded $300 million or 10%
of the Consolidated Companies' paid-in capital: none.
6. Information on the acquisition of real estate for which the purchase amount exceeded NT$300 million or 10% of the
Consolidated Companies' paid-in capital: none.
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Transaction

Gain/Loss

receiving the Notice

5,000,000,000

-

Disposal

Payment

within 40 days after
(940,348)

100.00%

Remarks

Conditions of

Amount

South Road, Taipei City
(662,760)

8,152,201 45,000,000,000

Percentage

Transaction

Book value

Ltd.

100.00%

223,628,989

Number of

Date

No.120, Section 1, Chongching

Insurance Co. Ltd.

100.00%

shares

forma

Date

Original

Bank of Taiwan Co.,
BankTaiwan Life

Operation of banks

Number of

Total

Pro-

Transaction

51-1, 51-3, 53-4,

Bank of Taiwan No. 47-2, 47-3,

Consolidated Information
Main

Property Title

receiving the Notice

price is verified by the

of Payment.

general manager and

None

published for bidding.
(The ﬂoor price for
bidding is 356,000
thousand dollars.)
Bank of

No. 78, 78-1,

Taiwan, Land

Sec.3, Changjhong

Bank of Taiwan Rd, Zhong Zheng

2008.12.30 1959.07.17

287,950

806,000 Bidder prepays

518,050 Hung Ching

(Holding

(Holding 10% of the ﬂoor

(Holding Construction

by the six

by the six price as deposit at

banks)

banks) the time of bidding;

by the six Co., Ltd.

None

To reach

Referring to

budget

appraiser's appraisal

goal

and examined by the

Co. Ltd., Hua

District, Taipei City,

Nan Financial

Taiwan Land and

after bid-opening,

committee; after

Holding Co.

building at No. 180

the bidder makes

notifying the audit

Ltd., The

Chongching S. Rd.

the payment in full

division of the board

Chang Hwa

within 40 days after

of directors, the ﬂoor

Bank, The First

receiving the Notice

price is verified by the

Commercial

of Payment.

general manager and

banks)

None

Bank's real estate

Bank, The

published for bidding.

Taiwan

(The ﬂoor price for

Cooperative

bidding is 769,000

Bank

thousand dollars.)
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Disposing

Property Title

Company

Transaction
Date

Original
Date
Acquired

2008.12.30 1961.10.12

Bank of Taiwan No. 638, 639

Book value
185,944

Transaction

Conditions of

Disposal

Transaction

Amount

Payment

Gain/Loss

party

416,600 Bidder prepays

230,656 Wong Guo

Relationship
None

Jhen

Purpose of
Disposal

Reference for Price

Other

1. Financial status
See page 46 of TFH's Condensed Balance Sheet.

To reach

Referring to

budget

appraiser's appraisal

goal

and examined by the

None

Guotianzih Rd,

10% of the ﬂoor

Ling Ya District,

price as deposit at

Kaohsiung City,

the time of bidding;

Bank's real estate

Taiwan Land

after bid-opening,

committee; after

the bidder makes

notifying the audit

the payment in full

division of the board

within 40 days after

of directors, the ﬂoor

receiving the Notice

price is verified by the

of Payment.

general manager and
published for bidding.

2. Business results
See page 46 of TFH's Condensed Income Statement.

3. Cash flows
(1) Analysis of cash flow changes over the most recent fiscal year.

(The ﬂoor price for
bidding is 411,000
thousand dollars.)

8. Information regarding discounted processing fees on transactions with related parties for which the amount exceeded
$5 million: none.
9. Information on regarding receivables from related parties for which the amount exceeded NT$300 million or 10% of
the Consolidated Companies' paid-in capital: none.
10.Information regarding trading in derivative financial instruments: please see note 33.
11.Information regarding selling non-performing loans for which the amount exceeded $5 billion:
(a) The details of selling non-performing loans
Subsidiary-BOT
Transaction date
2007.07.19
(Note)

Transaction
party

Details of non-performing
loan

A

(1) Working capital loan
(2) Capital expenditure loan

Book value Selling price
14,335

282,263

Disposal
gain/loss
267,928

2008

Cash ﬂow ratio

-5.38 ％

Cash ﬂow adequacy ratio

-461.99 ％

Cash ﬂow reinvestment ratio

460.66 ％

Note: The cash ﬂow ratio and cash ﬂow adequacy ratio were both negative because the company was established on 1st January 2008 and its
subsidiaries have not yet paid out cash dividends, which caused net cash ﬂow from operating activities to be negative.

(2) Cash liquidity in the coming year
Unit: NT$1,000

Other

Relationship

Beginning
cash

none

none

348,555

Note: This transaction was completed on January 8, 2008.
(b) Detailed information on selling non-performing loans for which the amount exceeded $1 billion under one
transaction (excluding sales to related party): none.
12.The type of and related information on securitized instruments which were authorized to be engaged in according to
the "Financial Asset Securitization Act" or the "Real Estate Securitization Act": none.
13.Other material transaction items which were significant to people who use the information in the financial statements:
none.
3) Information on subsidiaries' investment in China: none.

(39) Segment Information: Please see note 36.

Item

Net cash flow from operating
activities for entire year

Net cash outflows
for entire year

Cash surplus
(or deficit)

3,081,648

3,253,665

176,538

Measures to make up for cash deficit
Investment plan

Financing plan

－

－

Note: Analysis of cash ﬂow changes in current year
1. Operating activities: Mainly net cash inﬂows generated by investment income.
2. Investment activities: TFH will increase BTLI’s capital by NT$2 billion in 2009.
3. Financing activities: TFH will issue debt to increase capital at its subsidiaries.

4. Impact of material capital expenditures in the most recent fiscal year on the
company's financial status.
(1) Description of material capital expenditures, and source of capital
TFH has obtained financing and used it to increase its investment in subsidiary BTLI by NT$2 billion.

(2) Expected benefits

5. Cash flow difficulties at TFH and its affiliates: None.
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This will improve the financial structure of BTLI and improve its operating results.
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5. Policy on investment subsidiaries during the most recent fiscal year,
main reasons for subsidiary profits or losses, corrective action plans, and
investment plans for the coming year
(1) Equity investment policy in the most recent fiscal year
(i)

6. Risk management
(1) Risk management organizational structure and policy
(i)

Risk management organizational structure
TFH's risk management organizational structure includes the Board of Directors, the Risk

In coordination with government policy, we actively formulated plans for business expansion and

Management Committee, the Department of Risk Management, and the subsidiaries. The

sought to add securities investment trust and advisory services, asset management services,

responsibilities of each are as follows:

venture capital services, and other related lines of business to our corporate group, whether

(a) The Board of Directors is TFH's highest risk management unit, and bears ultimate

through M&A or by establishing new companies from scratch. Our aim is to create greater
economies of scope.
(ii) We aggressively sought out appropriate M&A targets in the banking, insurance, and securities
industries in order to create greater economies of scale within the group.

responsibility for the overall level of risk borne by the group.
(b) The Risk Management Committee reports to the Board of Directors, implements the risk
management decisions adopted by the Board, and acts as a liaison between group members
on risk management matters.

(iii) We adopted a three-pronged approach to making the company more international. The first

(c) The Department of Risk Management is an independent risk management unit. It is in overall

approach calls for cooperation with the world's leading financial holding companies; the second

charge of all risk management matters, monitors the implementation of risk management

approach involves bringing in independent directors of foreign nationality; and the third approach

decisions and directives adopted by the Board of Directors and the Risk Management

is to establish strategic partnerships with foreign entities. Within this framework, we will introduce

Committee, and reports to them on the findings of its monitoring operations.

modern managerial techniques and work to firm up our business.

(2) Main reasons for subsidiary profits or losses, and corrective action plans
Most of TFH's profits in 2008 were contributed by the Bank of Taiwan because the group's life
insurance and securities subsidiaries were still in the startup phase and our insurance subsidiary, in
particular, posted a loss after taking huge asset writedowns triggered by the US subprime mortgage
crisis. In the future, TFH will work with its subsidiaries on steps to improve profitability. We intend to
integrate group resources and step up our cross-selling, taking advantage of the strength afforded
by our banking subsidiary's considerable assets, huge customer base, and highly developed
channels to tap more fully into group synergies and achieve stable profitability over the long haul.
(iii) Investment plans for the coming year
In 2009 the group will continue following the set development strategy. We intend to carefully
evaluate and select suitable targets for M&A deals or strategic alliances to strengthen the group
more quickly and become more competitive.

(d) Each group subsidiary identifies, assesses, and controls the risks associated with its
business operations and any new lines of business or new types of products, and adopts risk
management bylaws, which it implements and reviews in order to meet the requirements of
the Department of Risk Management .
(e) The Department of Risk Management at TFH and each of its subsidiaries reports regularly to
the Board of Directors on the status of risk management in the areas it is responsible for, so
that we can be aware of whether our risks are within acceptable bounds.
(ii) Risk management policy
To strictly implement legal compliance and spur sound business practices throughout the group,
TFH and its subsidiaries are paying close attention to the full range of risks, both on and off the
balance sheet, including credit risk, market risk, operational risk, interest rate risk in the banking
book, liquidity risk, country risk, and legal risk. In addition to complying with the requirements of
the competent authority, each company in the group has also adopted risk management bylaws
and procedures appropriate for the nature and size of its business.

120

Taiwan Financial Holdings Annual Report 2008

121

Discussion of financial status and business results, and risk management

(2) New corporate image for TFH and its subsidiaries
by the Executive Yuan and the Ministry of Finance. As Taiwan's first wholly state owned financial

(5) What is the effect upon and risk to company associated with any change in
governance personnel or top management? What response measures are being
or will be taken?

holding company, the company is in an excellent position to facilitate economic development and

None (TFH is a state-run enterprise wholly owned by the government, with its shares owned by the

stabilize the financial industry. The holding company's establishment creates a platform for cross-

Ministry of Finance. There has been no change in top management.)

TFH was established by the Bank of Taiwan in a share swap as the result of a policy decision made

selling among its subsidiaries, development of a diverse range of services, integration of resources,
reduction of costs, and achievement of enhanced competitiveness.

(6) Have there been any litigious or non-litigious matters?
None.

In order to build up the "Taiwan Financial Holdings" brand image, TFH has developed a customercentered business model and is working with its subsidiaries to help strengthen business
performance. Though 2008 was only its first year in business, the group nevertheless won numerous
awards in recognition of its excellence. Our banking subsidiary won an award from the Financial
Supervisory Commission as the No.1 provider among domestic banks of loans to small and medium
enterprises from July 2007 through June 2008. And for our efforts to launch new products and
simplify operations, we were granted an award for excellence by the Taiwan Academy of Banking
and Finance, while the Bankers Association recognized us the No.1 processor of online bill and tax
payment transactions and the No.4 source of transaction payments made via the National Payments

7. Crisis management mechanism
The philosophy of our crisis management system is to prevent crises before they occur, or to handle
them as quickly as possible once they do. In order to implement this system, TFH has adopted
response plans to deal with a variety of different types of crises and emergencies, and has established
an Emergency Response Team with a spokesman. When an incident occurs, a groupwide notification
and response system kicks in, and designated people take the lead in organizing and implementing a
response.

Net in 2008. In the meantime, we earned ISO27001:2005 certification for our information security
management system from the British Standards Institution (BSI). It is thus clear that the changeover
to the holding company has helped make group members more competitive.

(3) Risks associated with concentration of business, and response measures
To avoid allowing our business to become overly concentrated, TFH's banking subsidiary has set
limits on the percentage of loans and investments that can go to any particular type of customer
or economic sector, or to affiliated enterprises. TFH has a detailed and comprehensive integrated
risk control system to exercise rigorous monitoring and control over the degree of concentration of
large risk exposures to any single party, single group of related parties, or single group of related
enterprises.

(4) What is the effect upon and risk to the company in the event a major quantity of
shares belonging to a director, supervisor, or shareholder holding greater than a
1 percent stake in the company has been transferred or has otherwise changed
hands? What response measures are being or will be taken?
None (TFH is a state-run enterprise wholly owned by the government, with its shares owned
by the Ministry of Finance. All our directors and supervisors are the Ministry's juristic-person
representatives.)
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SOWING THE SEEDS OF A

Bountiful Harvest

Focus on the essentials, build up strength
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Bringing you the best, with professionalism and integrity

Matters of special note

VIII. Matters of special note

1. TFH affiliates

4. Overseas branch units of the Bank of Taiwan

(i) Organizational charts for TFH affiliates: See page 15, "Chart of Relations Within the TFH Group"
under "III. Corporate Governance Report."
(ii) Basic data on TFH affiliates
Name
Bank of Taiwan
BankTaiwan Life
Insurance
BankTaiwan Securities

Date founded

Address

Paid-in capital

No.120, Chongcing South Road
Section 1, Taipei

NT$45 billion

2 Jan. 2008

Fls. 1 & 3-8, No.69, Dunhua South
Road Section 2, Taipei

NT$5 billion

2 Jan. 2008

No.58, Chongcing South Road,
Taipei

20 May 1946

Main businesses or
products

Name

Telephone

SWIFT

Fax

New York Branch

100 Wall Street, 11th Floor
New York, NY 10005 U.S.A.

1-212-968-8128

BKTWUS33

1-212-968-8370

Los Angeles Branch

601 S. Figueroa Street, Suite 4525
Los Angeles, CA 90017 U.S.A.

1-213-629-6600

BKTWUS6L

1-213-629-6610

Hong Kong Branch

4th Fl., 9 Queen's Road, Central,
Hong Kong

852-2521-0567

BKTWHKHH

852-2869-4957

65-6536-5536

BKTWSGSG

65-6536-8203

Banking
Life insurance
Singapore Branch

NT$3 billion

Address

Securities

(iii) Among these three affiliates, is there presumed to be a relationship of control and subordination

Tokyo Branch

7F, Fukoku Seimei Building, 2-2 Uchisaiwaicho
81-3-3504-8881
2-Chome Chiyoda-Ku, Tokyo 100-0011, Japan

BKTWJPJT

813-3504-8880

South Africa Branch

No.11, Cradock Ave. Rosebank 2196,
Johannesburg, South Africa

27-11-880-8008

BKTWZAJJ

27-11-447-1868

London Branch

Level 5, City Tower, 40 Basinghall Street,
London, EC2V 5DE, U.K.

44-20-7382-4530 BKTWGB2L

44-20-7374-8899

Trade Center of
Taiwan in Panama

P. O. BOX 0302-00451
Colon Free Zone, Rep.of Panama

507-445-2277
507-445-2885

507-441-4106

as defined in Article 369-3 of the Company Act?
No
(iv) What types of business are conducted by TFH affiliates?
Banking, insurance, and securities

2. In 2008, or in the current year as of the date of printing of this annual
report, has TFH conducted any private placement of securities?

80 Rafﬂes Place #28-20 UOB Plaza 2 Singapore
048624

----

No

3. In 2008, or in the current year as of the date of printing of this annual
report, has any subsidiary held or disposed of TFH stock?
No
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